ICAM\(\Sigma'21\)

International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering

http://icame.balikesir.edu.tr



Book of Abstracts



 al Conference on . September	 ikesir, Türkey	

ICAMΣ'21

September 1-3, 2021 - Balikesir, TURKEY

International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering

Book of Abstracts

September, Balıkesir

Cite articles as follows:

Author surname, Initial., Author surname, Initial., Paper Title. In Proceedings of the Second International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering (ICAME'21), Balikesir, Turkey, September 1-3, 2021, Page number.

Preface

We would like to welcome all participants to join "The Second International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering (ICAME'21)", which will be held September 1 to September 3, 2021 in Burhaniye/Balikesir, Turkey.

This conference allows an ideal academic platform for researchers to present the latest research and evolving findings of applied mathematics on engineering, physics, chemistry, biology, and statistics.

The conference also provides the opportunity of discussing advances in the field of applied mathematics, its effect on engineering and real-life problems. Especially, the conference discusses the most current applied mathematical problems in the world. For example, fractional calculus and its real-life applications, operational research, mathematical modeling in health science and engineering, optimization and control in engineering, non-linear dynamical systems and chaos, optimization and control problems are main topics of the conference.

In this conference, 143 oral presentations will be given to an audience with over 120 participants from 27 countries.

ICAME'21 is an achievement of international cooperation we continuously endeavor to carry out and develop. In this context, on behalf of the chairs of this conference, we would particularly like to thank: plenary speakers Albert C. J. Luo (Southern Illinois University Edwardsville, USA), Sverre Holm (University of Oslo, Norway), Gerhard-Wilhelm Weber (Poznan University of Technology, Poland) and Praveen Agarwal (Anand International College of Engineering, Jaipur, India) invited speakers Carla Pinto (School of Engineering, Polytechnic of Porto, Portugal), Huseyin Merdan (TOBB University of Economy and Technology, Turkey) and Amin Jajarmi (Department of Electrical Engineering, University of Bojnord, Iran) as well as the organizers of special sessions, and the members of the international scientific committee for their contributions and supports.

We would like to extend our best wishes to all of you with a hope that you go back with actual and more powerful ideas, and with new science networks renewed or extended.

Best wishes for an enjoyable and memorable conference.

On behalf of the organization committee,

Chair	Co-chair	Co-chair	Co-chair
Ramazan Yaman	J. A. Tenreiro Machado	Dumitru Baleanu	Necati Ozdemir
Istanbul Atlas University	Polytechnic of Porto	Cankaya University	Balikesir University

Co-chair

Jordan Hristov Univ. of Chemical Tech. and Metallurgy, Bulgaria

Committee

Honorary Chair

Ilter Kus, Balikesir University (Rector), Turkey

Chair

Ramazan Yaman, Istanbul Atlas University, Turkey

Co-chairs

J. A. Tenreiro Machado, Polytechnic Institute of Porto, Portugal Necati Ozdemir, Balikesir University, Turkey Dumitru Baleanu, Cankaya University, Turkey Jordan Hristov, Univ. of Chemical Tech. and Metallurgy, Bulgaria

International Scientific Committee

Abdeljawad, T., Saudi Arabia Agarwal, R.P., USA

Agarwal, P., India Ahmad, I., Saudi Arabia Akin, O., Turkey Andrade, J.M., UK Area, I., Spain

Atanackovic, T., Serbia Atangana, A., South Africa

Ayaz, F., Turkey
Bagirov, A., Australia
Baskonus, H.M., Turkey
Baleanu, D., Turkey
Bohner, M., USA
Bulut H., Turkey
Caputo, M., Italy
Cattani, C., Italy
Celik, E., Turkey
Chen, W., China
Dassios, I., Ireland
Debbouche, A., Algeria

El-Khazali, R., United Arab Emirates

El-Sayed, A., Egypt Erdogan, F., Turkey Erturk, V.S., Turkey Fernandez, A., Turkey Golmankhaneh, A.K., Iran

Gulsu, M., Turkey Gurbuz, B., Turkey Hammouch, Z., Morocco Holm, S., Norway Hristov, J., Bulgaria Inc, M., Turkey Jafari, H., South Africa Jarad, F., Turkey Karapinar, E., Turkey Kaya, D., Turkey Kazmi, I., Pakistan Keedwell, E.C., UK Keskin, G., Turkey Klimek, M. Poland Konuralp, A., Turkey Kumar, D., India Kumar, S., India

Leblebicioglu, K., Turkey

Li, C.P., China Liu, F., Australia Luo, A.C.J, USA

Machado, J.A.T., Portugal

Magin, R. L., USA Marin, M., Romania Mandzuka, S., Crotia Markowski, K.A, Poland Merdan, H., Turkey Momani, S., Jordan Nigmatullin, R. R., Russia Pinto, C.M., Portugal Podlubny, I., Slovakia Povstenko, Y., Poland Prodanov, D., Belgium Sari, M., Turkey Shahzad, M., Pakistan Singh, J., India Shimizu, N., Japan Sproessig, W., Germany

Sulaiman, S., Malaysia Tabucanon, M.T., Thailand Tank, F., Turkey Tarasov, V.E., Russia

Thuto, M.V., Botswana Torres, D.F.M., Portugal Townley, S. UK

Trujillo, J.J., Spain Weber, G.W., Poland

Wu, G.C., China Yang, X.J., China Zhang, D.Z., UK

Organizing Committee

Yaman, R., Turkey (Chair) Machado, J.A.T., Portugal (Co-chair) Baleanu, D., Turkey (Co-chair) Ozdemir, N., Turkey (Co-chair) Jordan Hristov, Bulgaria (Co-chair)

Local Organizing Committee

Akdemir, M., Turkey Avci, D., Turkey Demirtas, M., Turkey Ergun, K., Turkey Evirgen, F., Turkey Inan, D., Turkey Iskender, B.B., Turkey Karaoglan, A.D., Turkey Kasemi, E.C., Kosova Kaymak, O.O., Turkey Kucukkoc, I., Turkey Ucar, E., Turkey Ucar, S., Turkey Yaman, G., Turkey Yavuz, M., Turkey Yildirim, H.H., Turkey

Plenary Speakers

Albert C. J. Luo

Southern Illinois University Edwardsville, USA



Infinite Unstable Periodic Orbits to Infinite Homoclinic Orbits in the Lorenz System

In nonlinear dynamics, homoclinic orbits are very essential for a better understanding of the corresponding global dynamics. However, it is very difficult to determine homoclinic orbits in 3-D or higher-dimensional nonlinear dynamical systems. In this talk, the routes from unstable periodic orbits to infinite homoclinic orbits are presented in the Lorenz system, and such homoclinic orbits are pertaining to unstable periodic orbits on bifurcation trees. Thus, a semi-analytical method is presented for determining

unstable periodic orbits. This is because traditional computational methods cannot obtain unstable periodic orbits in nonlinear dynamical systems due to computational errors and perturbations. For demonstration, a period-doubling bifurcations tree of the period-1, period-2 and period-4 motions are presented. Periodic orbits and homoclinic orbits in the Lorenz system are illustrated through 3-D views, from which one can imagine complex stable and unstable periodic motions and the Lorenz attractors. Further, the corresponding mathematical structures of homoclinic orbits and Lorenz attractors can be further developed.

J. A. Tenreiro Machado

Institute of Engineering, Polytechnic of Porto, Portugal



The Logical Song

Data analytics is penetrating in all areas of the human activity. The availability of data measuring the behavior of complex phenomena allows a new quantitative perspective not conceivable with classical mathematical tools. This presentation addresses 3 distinct areas of key impact in society and that reflect the behavior of men kind. We consider music, artistic painting and soccer as manifestations of the human spirit that can be processed and analyzed, since large volumes of data are presently available in digital form. The data records are studied using several mathematical and computational tools, such as, fractional calculus, entropy, multidimensional scaling,

hierarchical clustering and scientific visualization. The embedding of mathematical, computational and algorithmic modeling leads to the emergence of patterns that are analyzed and interpreted.

Sverre Holm

University of Oslo, Norway



Fractional Wave Equations and Complex Acoustic Media

Wave equations with non-integer derivative operators can describe attenuation which increases with frequency with other powers than two, unlike ordinary wave equations. Such attenuation is found in many complex media. Both shear and compressional waves in media as diverse as biological tissue, rocks, and sub bottom sediments are examples of this. These wave modes are central in applications such as medical ultrasound, diagnostic shear wave imaging in elastography, seismics, and underwater acoustics. These equations can be divided into two classes depending on whether they can be derived from more fundamental principles or not. In the first class one

can find the fractional Kelvin-Voigt and fractional Zener wave equations, while several fractional Laplacian wave equations are in the second category. Such examples as well as the properties of their solutions will be presented. In many cases just having such a wave equation is enough to model a phenomenon.

In [Holm, S. (2019). Waves with power-law attenuation. Springer and ASA (Acoustical Society of America) Press] I also wanted to understand what it is about complex media that gives rise to power law behavior. The main attenuation mechanisms of standard acoustics are heat conduction and relaxation, structural relaxation, and chemical relaxation. They have fractional parallels and the first one is heat relaxation described by fractional Newton cooling due to anomalous diffusion. The most important mechanism is however the second one, the fractional parallel to structural relaxation. Instead of one there are multiple relaxation processes with a distribution of relaxation times that follows a power-law distribution, possibly indicating that the material has fractal properties. This distribution also has a relationship to the Arrhenius equation, indicating a link to chemical relaxation, albeit a quite speculative one.

Other sources of power-law behavior can be non-Newtonian rheology with time-varying viscosity and propagation when there is a fractal distribution of scatterers in an otherwise lossless medium. Existing models in sediment acoustics such as the grain shearing model and the Biot poroelastic model can also be reformulated with fractional operators. These approaches are presented in the hope of coming one step closer to answering if fractional wave equations give clues to some deeper reality, or if they are just a compact phenomenological description.

Dumitru Baleanu

Cankaya University, Turkey



On Singular and Non-Singular Fractional Operators and Their Applications in Mathematical Biology

The fractional calculus and its applications is a hot topic for researchers from many branches of science and engineering. Real world applications started to be investigated with a great sucees within this very helpful mathematical tool. In my talk I will concentrate on the sucessful applications of both singular and non-singular fractional operators to the complex dynamics of some mathematical biology systems. Besides, some new aspects of the classification of fractional operators will be presented. Illustratives examples will be provided.

Gerhard-Wilhelm Weber

Poznan University of Technology, Poland



Defined Contribution Pension Funds by Robust Stochastic Optimal Control

In the present work, we study the problem of optimal management of defined contribution pension funds, during the distribution phase, under the effect of inflation, mortality, and model uncertainty. More precisely, we consider a class of employees, who, at the time of retirement, enter a life assurance contract with the same insurance firm. The fund manager of the firm collects the entry fees to a portfolio savings account and this wealth is to be invested optimally in a Black-Scholes type financial market. As such schemes usually last for many years, we extend our framework, by: (i) augmenting the

financial market with an inflation-adjusted bond, and (ii) taking into account mortality of the fund members. Model uncertainty aspects are introduced as the fund manager does not fully trust the model he/she faces. By resorting to robust control and dynamic programming techniques, we provide: (a) closed-form solutions for the case of the exponential utility function, (b) a detailed numerical study of the qualitative features of the problem at hand that elucidates the effect of robustness and inflation on the optimal investment decisions.

Praveen Agarwal

Anand International College of Engineering, Jaipur, India



Certain Generalization of Fractional Derivative Operators

Many authors have introduced and investigated certain extended fractional derivative operators. The main object of this talk to study extended fractional differential operators(such as the Riemann-Liouville and Caputo type fractional operators) involving generalized hypergeometric functions introduced recently and investigate its various (potentially) useful and (presumably) new properties and formulas, for example, integral representations, Mellin transforms, generating functions, and the extended fractional derivative formulas for some familiar functions.

Invited Speakers

Jordan Hristov

University of Chemical Technology and Metallurgy, Bulgaria



Fractional Operators with Non-Singular Memories in Viscoelasticity: Basic Concepts Applicable to Linear and Non-Linear Viscoelasticity

The fractional operators with non-singular memory kernel described by exponential (Caputo-Fabrizio derivative) and generalized Mittag-Leffler function (Atangana-Baleanu derivative) raise many questions about their properties and mainly about their physical relevance and applications.

This lecture focuses on basic principles in description relaxation behaviors of linear and non-linear viscoelastic materials and the adequate selection of the memory kernels of the fractional operators leading to both derivatives with

singular or non-singular memories.

The targets are non-aging (linear and non-linear) viscoelastic materials with behaviors beyond the power-law limit related to the Caputo fractional derivative. The stress-strain response functions are the main physical objects allowing selecting the corresponding memories of the fractional operator sand their constructions. As a consequence of the memory kernel selection, the causality of both the constitutive equations and the frequently used rheological equations are discussed.

Carla Pinto

School of Engineering, Polytechnic of Porto, Portugal



Tackling specificities of different diseases using within-host models

Epidemics make exciting news. They are often presented with dramatic headlines, and the pictures accompanying them are of healthcare workers dressed with protective equipment or working at labs. People often forget about the behind scenes work of mathematicians, who, with more or less simplified models, help on the understanding and prediction of infections spread. In this lecture I will focus on several within-host models useful for a deeper knowledge of virus dynamics with different specificities, namely HIV, HCV, HSV-2, etc.

Huseyin Merdan

TOBB University of Economy and Technology, Turkey



Nonlinear dynamics of a ratio-dependent prey-predator model: Stability, bifurcations and chaos

Nonlinear dynamical behaviors of a prey-predator system with Leslie type will be presented. First, the dynamics of its continuous form will be analyzed; the local and global stabilities and bifurcations will be discussed. Second, the dynamical behavior of its discrete form will be analyzed; bifurcations and chaotic behavior will be shown. Numerical simulations will be given to support and extend the theoretical results. Finally, we will compare the results that we obtained.

Amin Jajarmi

Department of Electrical Engineering, University of Bojnord, Iran



Recent developments in the mathematical modelling and control of biological system

Recently, the new aspects of fractional calculus have been widely employed to investigate different features of many complex biological systems. In this direction, fractional models help us to understand how the memory of the certain components of a system affects the progress of diseases as a whole, and therefore, it enables us to implement the memory effects into the evolution of considered system together with its environment. This kind of analysis is also important in order to improve the current medications and to explore new ways of quick, effective and low-cost treatments. In this talk, we

explore a recent development in the mathematical modelling of biological systems. The complex dynamics of an epidemic are investigated within the use of both classical and a new fractional framework. The obtained results are analyzed by the help of some simulations in a comparative way for both integer- and fractional-order cases. Finally, an efficient control scheme is designed for the purpose of intervention in an appropriate, effective way.

Special Sessions

Modelling & Optimization in Engineering

Ramazan Yaman, Istanbul Atlas University, Turkey Ahmet Sahiner, Suleyman Demirel University, Turkey Fırat Evirgen, Balikesir University, Turkey

Theme

The goal of this session is to discuss recent developments in applications of optimization methods by bringing together researchers and practitioners working in the field of optimization theory, methods, software and related areas.

Topics

Mathematical programming Data mining

Global optimization Population based algorithms
Nondifferential optimization Artificial intelligence technologies
Continuous optimization Applications of optimization in natural

Combinatorial optimization sciences

Multicriteria optimization Applications of optimization in engineering Equilibrium programming Energy systems modelling and optimization

Game theory

Operational Research

Gerhard-Wilhelm Weber, Poznan University of Technology, Poland Aslan Deniz Karaoglan, Balikesir University, Turkey Ibrahim Kucukkoc, Balikesir University, Turkey Burcu Gurbuz, Uskudar University, Turkey

Theme

This session aims to bring together researchers working on the topics related to operational research to discuss recent developments in the theory and application of operational research techniques.

Topics

scheduling

Business analytics for manufacturing systems Sustainable manufacturing Analytics, optimization and machine learning Robotics in manufacturing in manufacturing and supply chains Modeling, simulation, control and monitoring Intelligent manufacturing systems of manufacturing processes Intelligent transpportation Logistics, supply chains and networks Protfolio optimization Facility planning and materials handling Network models Energy systems modelling Inventory control, production planning and Design and reconfiguration of manufacturing

systems

Control Theory & Applications

Kemal Leblebicioglu, METU, Turkey Metin Demirtas, Balıkesir University, Turkey Beyza Billur İskender Eroglu, Balikesir University, Turkey

Theme

This session aims to discuss a broad range of topics including current trends of linear, nonlinear, discrete and fractional control systems as well as new developments in robotics and mechatronics, unmanned systems, energy systems with the goal of strengthening cooperation of control and automation scientists with industry.

Topics

Adaptive control
Linear and nonlinear control systems
Optimal control
Discrete time control systems
Robust control
Fractional order systems and control
Chaotic systems and control
Evolutionary and heuristic control
Robotic control
Energy management and control
Control of unmanned air and undersea vehicles

Fractional Calculus with Applications in Biology

Dumitru Baleanu, Cankaya University, Turkey Carla Pinto, School of Engineering, Polytechnic of Porto, Portugal Necati Ozdemir, Balikesir University, Turkey

Theme

The goal of this session is to bring together creative and active researchers, in theoretical analysis and numerical tools, to discuss recent developments in applications of fractional order models of biological models. Fractional order models have become ubiquitous research topics in the last few decades. Their memory property contributes to a better and profound understanding of the dynamics of real world models, namely of biological population problems. Stochastic and deterministic models and coinfection models, as well as computational models, are welcome for HIV, HCV, Ebola, Zika, etc, in this session.

Topics

New numerical methods to solve fractional differential equations
Deterministic and stochastic fractional differential equations
Computational methods for fractional differential equations
Bifurcation theory
Stability theory
Cancer development models: chaos, synchronization
Applications in bioengineering, medicine, ecology, biology, epidemiology

Numerical Methods in Fractional Calculus

Zakia Hammouch,, Universite Moulay Ismail FSTE Errachidia, Morocco Ali Konuralp, Celal Bayar University, Turkey Mehmet Yavuz, University of Exeter, UK

Theme

In the few decades, fractional differential equations have played a very important role in various fields. Based on the wide applications in engineering and sciences such as physics, mechanics, chemistry, and biology, research on fractional ordinary or partial differential equations and other relative topics is active and extensive around the world. In the past few years, the increase of the subject is witnessed by hundreds of research papers, several monographs, and many international conferences. The objective of this special session is to highlight the importance of numerical methods and their applications and let the readers of this journal know about the possibilities of this new tool.

Topics

New methods for solving fractional differential equations

Controllability of fractional systems of differential equations or numerical methods applied to the solutions of fractional differential equations applications in physics, mechanics, and so forth

Iteration methods for solving partial and ordinary fractional equations

Numerical methods for solving fractional integro-differential equations

Numerical functional analysis and applications

Local and nonlocal boundary value problems for fractional partial differential equations

Stochastic partial fractional differential equations and applications

Computational methods in fractional partial differential equations

Numerical methods for solving variable order differential equations

Perturbation methods for fractional differential equations

New Fractional Derivatives and Their Applications

Dumitru Baleanu, Cankaya University, Turkey Jordan Hristov, Univ. of Chemical Tech. and Metallurgy, Bulgaria Derya Avcı, Balikesir University, Turkey

Theme

Nowadays, there has been an increasing interest to the new types of fractional derivatives. The well-known fractional derivatives such as Riemann-Liouville, Caputo, Riesz are successful for modelling real World problems. In addition, these fractional operators give the memory and hereditary effects in physical phenomena. However, these are non-local operators described by convolution integrals with weakly singular kernels. Due to these structures, some complexities can naturally occur in the mathematical modelling and solution processes. Because of these hardness, many researchers have paid attention to introduce new derivatives with fractional parameter in the last years. Caputo-Fabrizio, Atangana-Baleanu, Beta, Conformable derivatives with fractional parameter are pioneering definitions in this sense.

Topics

Description of new fractional derivatives
New properties of new fractional derivatives
Integral transform techniques in sense of new fractional operators
New analytical/numerical methods
Mathematical modelling in terms of new fractional operators
Foundation of new relations between existing and new fractional operators

Nonlinear Dynamical Systems and Chaos

Huseyin Merdan, TOBB ETU, Turkey Songul Kaya Merdan, METU, Turkey

Theme

This special session focuses on the dynamics of complex systems, which are one of the most attractive subjects of the modern sciences. The attractiveness of this particular area arises from two different aspects: The first one is that it provides challenges, which are connected with many uncertainties in description of irregular motions. The second one is methods of investigation, which are not yet well developed and established. Applications of complex dynamics investigations are very important and deal with a wide range of problems. They begin with mechanical problems and extend to earthquake prediction and social sciences problems. We are interested in those investigations in electrical and mechanical engineering, physics, biology, economics, finance, neuroscience, computer sciences, fluid dynamics and earthquake monitoring, which urgently need mathematical modeling of their problems and analysis through nonlinear dynamical systems approach.

Topics

ODE, DDE and PDE based modelling for complex systems
Dynamical systems and chaos
Bifurcation theory
Synchronization
Control theory
Fluid Dynamics

Stochastic complex dynamical systems and randomness
Hybrid systems
Complex networks based-models
Neural Networks
Bio-engineering, bio-imaging and bio-fluids
Population dynamics and conservation biology
Ecosystems

Evolution and ecology

Epidemiology and disease modeling

Neuroscience

Regulatory networks Cell and Tissue biophysics

Evolution and populations genetics

Cell and developmental biology

Cancer and immunology Environmental sciences Social economy systems

Climate change Financial engineering

Mathematical finance

Nonlinear Transport Phenomena and Models

Jordan Hristov, Univ. of Chemical Tech. and Metallurgy, Bulgaria

Theme

The special section focuses on modelling of nonlinear transport phenomena (heat, mass and momentum) as well as models related to real world application. Models with both local and fractional differential operators involved in modelling in such models are welcome. The topics drawn below are the main directions but no restrictive and any new problems outside them are welcome.

Topics

Nonlinear diffusion and heat transfer (conduction)

Nonlinear viscoelasticity and plasticity Modelling rheology of complex fluids, solids and granular systems (hydrodynamics, large

strain deformations and mixing)

Nonlinear kinetic and rate equations and

irreversible thermodynamics

Models of nonlinear biological and medical problems for real-world applications

Models for treatment of nonlinear signal

processing and control

Nonlinear electrical and magnetic phenomena

and nonlinear applied models in

electrotechnics (nonlinear magnetic circuits, high frequency skin effects, supercapacitors,

etc.)

Inverse problems in nonlinear models of

transport phenomena

New nonlinear models (broad aspect)

Analytical and numerical methods for solution

of nonlinear models

Scaling and dimensional analysis

Computational Methods for Treatment of Linear and Nonlinear Models

Murat Sari, Yildiz Technical University, Turkey Elvan Akin, Missouri University of Science, USA Canan Celik Karaaslanli, Yildiz Technical University, Turkey

Theme

Mathematical modeling is the art of transforming problems from a field of application into traceable mathematical formulations whose theoretical and numerical analysis provides insight, answers, and guidance useful for the better understanding the universe. Mathematical modeling is inevitable in many fields of science and gives precision, direction and low-cost for problem solutions. Mathematical modeling yields a way for better understanding or design of a system and leads to the use of modern computing capabilities.

This session will include distinguished works at the interface between applied mathematics and computational methods via linear and nonlinear models occurred in the physical, biological, engineering, and economical sciences. By considering the linear/nonlinear or deterministic/stochastic models with a flexible approach, this session encourages versatile understanding of the computational science. Robust numerical methods or simulation techniques as well as new designs of mathematical models are welcome to this session.

Topics

Numerical Solutions of Partial Differential Equations Biological Models and Computational Analysis Stochastic Models and Applications Stiff Problems and Their Numerical Investigations Discrete Models and Applications Computational Fixed-Point Methods Adaptive Numerical Methods Computational Fluid Dynamics Molecular Dynamic Simulations

Contents

Preface	2
Committee	3
Plenary Speakers	5
Invited Speakers	8
Special Sessions	10
Contents	16
Optimization of Extrusion Process by using Response Surface Methodology	21
A Reversed Fixed-Point Iteration Method for Burgers Equation	22
Modeling and Analysis of the Relationship with Regression Equation between Heating/Cooling Load Change and Outdoor Meteorological data of Business and Service Buildings	23
Vibration Monitoring of Coastal and Ocean Structures with Pile Foundations Using Compressive Sensi	ng24
Analysis of Tsunami and Tsunami-Structure Interaction Parameters by Compressive Sensing	25
Analysis of Wave Runup, Overtopping and Overwash Parameters via Compressive Sensing	26
Berezin Symbols and Related Problems	27
Mathematical Modelling of Drying Kinetics of Cantaloupe in a Solar Assisted Dryer	28
3-D MHD Flow Over Array of Cubic Ducts	29
Stabilization in 3-D FEM and Solution of MHD Duct Equations	30
Stabilized FEM Solution of Liquid-metal MHD Flow in a Rectangular Duct with Conducting Cracks	31
Numerical Simulations of the Modified Regularized Long Wave Process	32
RBF Solution of MHD Flow in a Square Duct	33
The Effects of Problem Parameters on the DRBEM Solution of MHD Flow Subjected to the Time-Varied Magnetic Field	d 34
A BEM Approach for Time-dependent Convection-Diffusion Type Equation With Variable Coefficients	35
Numerical Solutions of Kaup-Kupershmidt and Ito Equations with B-spline Collocation Method	36
Ocean Energy Conversion Analysis by Compressive Sensing	37
Stabilizing the Self-Localized Solitons of the Kundu-Eckhaus Equation by Dissipation	38
Anemia Prediction Based on Logistic Model Tree Method	39
Prediction of Anemia through Particle Swarm Optimization	40
Effects of Anemia Features on Data Mining Performances	41
Random Forest Regression Model Extended by Alternative Model Selection Procedure	42
Deep Learning with Multivariate Adaptive Regression Spline with Bagging Methods	43
The Effects of Turbulent Fluctuations on Nonlinear von Kármán Vortex Shedding	44
Numerical Solution Method for Delay Chemical Master Equation	45
The Interaction of Von Kármán Vortices with the Solitons of the Complex Ginzburg-Landau Equation	46
Inference and Marginalization Algorithms for Jump Diffusion Approximation	47
Variation of Critical Buckling Load in Beam Structures Depending on Damage Region and Direction	48

A Bidirectional Generalized Synchronization of Nonlinear Advection-Diffusion-Reaction Processes	49
Bivariate Mittag-Leffler Functions and Associations with Fractional Calculus	50
Solving Nabla Fractional Partial Difference Equations Using Discrete Homotopy Analysis Method	51
Numerical Computation of Measure-Valued Solutions to a Hyperbolic Fokker-Planck Equation Subject to Nonlocal Boundary Conditions	52
The use of mathematical modeling to analyse fear factor for a stochastic pre-predator system with linear functional response	ır 53
Dynamics of a Diffusive Oxygen– Plankton Model with Time Lag Effect and its Stability Behaviour	54
A Near Wall Model For the Navier-Stokes- $lpha$ Turbulence Model	55
Comparison of Statistical and Neural Regression Using Activation Functions Derived from Swish Activation Function	56
Discrete Sturm-Liouville Equation with Point Interaction	57
Impulsive Discrete Dirac Equation with Spectral Parameter	58
The Harmonic Response of the Circular Composite Plates Having Various Cut-Outs	59
An Integrated Model for Disassembly Line Balancing and Worker Assignment Problem: A Multi-Objectiv Optimization Approach	e 60
Global Existence of Solutions to a Singular Riemann-Liouville Fractional Differential Equation of Higher Order	61
A Comparative Study for the Numerical Solution of the Tumor Growth Model	62
Spectral Properties of the Finite System of Discrete Sturm-Liouville Operators with Hyperbolic Eigenparameter	63
Autonomous Landing of a VTOL UAV on a Stationary Landing Point	64
A Numerical Solution to the Heat Transfer in MHD Flow	65
A Smoothing Function Approach for Solving Nonlinear Complementarity Problems	66
A New Smoothing Algorithm for Solving Absolute Value Equations of the Form $Ax + Bx = b$	67
Realization of Fractional Band Stop Filter with Asymmetric Slopes and Optimized Quality Factor	68
A New Smoothing Technique for Global Optimization by Auxiliary Function Method	69
Realization and Sensitivity Analysis of Fractional Order Kerwin-Huelsman Newcomb Filter	70
Effects of a Rotating Cylinder on MHD Forced Convection in an Infinite Channel	71
Investigation of a Stabilized Finite Element Method for Navier-Stokes Equations	72
Flow in a Cavity Subjected to Two Variable Magnetic Sources	73
Detection with Bistatic Sonobuoys: Random vs Coordinated Deployments	74
An Application of Statistical Design and Analysis of Experiments for System Performance Evaluation	75
Some Iterative Methods for a Class of Inverse Problems for Semilinear Differential Equations Backward Time	in 76
Capturing The van der Pol Oscillatory Behaviors through a Stochastic Approach	77
A Linear Approximation Model for a Non-Linear Flow Shop Scheduling Problem with Learning Effect	78
A Neural Network Learning Approach for Solving the Knapsack Problem	79
LEGO ROBOT Setup and Intelligent Programming for Line Following and Obstacle Avoiding Using EV3RSTORM Software	80

$Existence\ and\ Hyers-Ulam\ Stability\ of\ Solutions\ for\ a\ Delayed\ Hyperbolic\ Partial\ Differential\ Equation$	81
Analytical and Numerical Assessments of Boundary Perturbations in Steklov Eigenvalue Problem	82
Approximation to Fractals by Means of Non-Affine Contraction Mappings	83
Solving Stochastic Differential Equations with Generalized Entropy Optimization Methods and Simulat	tion 84
Parabolic Optimal Control Problems Described by Partial Differential Inclusions	85
Successive Iterations and Positive Solutions for Hadamard Type Fractional Differential Equations on a Infinite Interval	n 86
A Multi-Objective Approach for a Cubic Cell Formation with Quality Index	87
Ball Balancing Table PID Controller Design with Optimization Algorithms	88
A Chaotic Dynamical System on the Box Fractal	89
Multi-Derivative, Multi-Stage and Multi-Step Time Integration Methods	90
The Construction of a Dynamical System on the Sierpinski Propeller	91
An Application of Double Stranded Smoothing Technique in Image Processing	92
Fractional Mathematical Model Created to Prevent Cancer Cells from Escaping the Immune system	93
Solution of First-Order Hyperbolic Partial Differential Equation Using Neural Networks	94
Household Lockdowns on Weekends can Marginally Reduce the Need for Contact Isolation and Social Distancing to Protect Economic Activity	95
Hermite-Bell Based Bernoulli Polynomials	96
Degenerate Poisson-Charlier Polynomials	97
An Elliptically Shaped Ice Particle with Non-Uniform Density and Air Interplay Between Parallel Side Walls	98
Stability of Common Research Lab with Asymmetric Firms: Effects of an Exclusive Membership Rule Versus an Open Membership Rule Approach	99
Genetic Algorithm Responses of Advection-Diffusion Processes	100
New Algorithms for Two-Sided Disassembly Line Balancing Problem	101
Mathematical Behaviour of Solutions for Kirchhoff-Type System with Logarithmic Nonlinearity	102
Two Modular Equations Close to the Discrete Logarithm Problem	103
Design of UHF band Yagi-Uda TV Antenna	104
Bipolar Fuzzy Soft Filter	105
Vibration Controls of a Pier Using Deep Learning LSTM Network	106
Analysis Methods and FPAA Implementation of Hyperchaotic Systems	107
Machine Learning-Based Profit Analysis of Aviation Sector During The Covid-19 Pandemic	108
Blow up of Solutions for a Wave Equation with Delay	109
Nonexistence of Global Solutions for a Hyperbolic-Type Equation with Delay Term	110
Measuring the Service Quality Performance of Hospitals in Managing the COVID-19 Vaccine Process	111
Convolutional Neural Network for Arabic Word Recognition	112
Constraint Programming Model for Rich Electric Vehicle Routing Problems	113
A DSS for Assessing the Health Performance: The Case of City Hospitals	114

Optimizing Seasonal Grain Intakes with Non-Linear Programming: An Application In The Feed Industry	ry
	115
Verhulst Lotka Volterra fractional differential SEIRS model: Analysis of SARS-CoV-2 pandemic diseases	se 116
Analysis and Dynamics Behavior of Ψ -Hilfer Fractional Order Three Dimensional Model	117
Efficient Solution of Fractional-Order SIR Epidemic Model of Childhood Diseases with Optimal Homore Asymptotic Method	topy 118
dsPIC-based sensorless control of induction motor and real-time monitoring on Simulink	119
Optimal TID controller design for dsPIC-based induction motor drive	120
A Novel Analytical study of Boussinesq-type equations	121
Cubic Cell Formation Problem Considering Identical Parallel Machines	122
Errors of the Smoothing Techniques	123
An Effective Numerical Approach for RLW Equation	124
A Goal Programming Approach for Resource Dependent Assembly Line Balancing Problem	125
Organizational Configurations Boosting Enterprise Performance and Job Satisfaction*	126
Combining Fuzzy Full Consistency Method and Fuzzy Axiomatic Design for Facility Layout Selection	127
Quantum Analog of Some Simpson and Bullen Type Inequalities for Convex Functions	128
A Simulated Annealing Based Fix-and-Optimize Algorithm for the Assembly Line Worker Assignment Balancing Problem	and 129
A Unique Hamilton–Jacobi–Bellman Equation Having Periodic Solutions and their Computation Using Higher-Order Finite Difference Schemes	3 130
$Optimization\ versus\ metaheuristics\ in\ forecasting:\ A\ comparative\ study\ for\ energy\ demand\ forecast\ optimization\ versus\ metaheuristics\ in\ forecasting:\ A\ comparative\ study\ for\ energy\ demand\ forecast\ optimization\ versus\ metaheuristics\ in\ forecast\ optimization\ versus\ metaheuristics\ in\ forecast\ optimization\ versus\ optimization\ versus\ optimization\ versus\ optimization\ versus\ optimization\ versus\ optimization\ versus\ optimization\ optimi$	of 131
A Novel Finite Volume Scheme for the Numerical Investigation of Bacterial Communication Model	132
A Numerical Approach on Fitzhugh-Nagumo Model	133
An Application of Multi-Objective Scheduling with Fuzzy Measure	134
$\label{thm:pairwise} Pairwise\ comparison\ scale's\ with\ Analytic\ Hierarchy\ Process:\ Gsm\ operator\ preference\ of\ university\ students$	135
Financial Efficiency of Companies Operating in the Kosovo Food Sector: DEA and DEAHP	136
A Caputo Fractional Order Model for Tumor-Immune System-Host Cells Interaction: A Lung Cancer Application	137
Design of Clamps for Use in Flexible Pipes and Development of Production System	138
Suggestion of Standard and Optimized Stages in LOC (Lab On A Chip), LOD (Lab On A Disc), POC (Poir Care) Development Process for Biomedical Applications	nt Of 139
Heat Waves Due To Cattaneo-Hristov Heat Diffusion Occurring on the Half-Real Axis	140
Optimal Control of a Fractional Computer Virus Propagation Model	141
Fractional Optimal Control Problem For A Delayed Computer Virus Propagation	142
Could Stem Cells' Behaviors be Modeled as an Optimization Algorithm?	143
Exact Solutions of Lienard II-type oscillator equation by group classification	144

Finite Element Method with Crank-Nicolson Scheme for the Nonlinear Klein-Gordon Equation in de S	itter
Spacetime	145
Reliable Fast Algorithm of Taylor Wavelet Method for Some Fractional Delay Differential Equations	146
A New Coding/Decoding Algorithm Based on k -Fibonacci Numbers	147
Analysis of Artificial Intelligence in the Web of Science Database via Topic Modeling	148
The center problem for some biochemical systems	149
Algebraic and Numerical Analysis of Chaos Transition Mechanisms in Electronic Circuits	150
Solutions of Modified Schrödinger Equation by Using Analytical and Numerical Methods	151
A Computational Approach to Shallow Water Forced Korteweg–De Vries Equation on Critical Flow Ox	er a
Hole with Three Fractional Operators	152
A Risk-Averse Two-Stage Stochastic Programming Model for a Joint Multi-Item Capacitated Line Bala	ncing
and Lot-Sizing Problem	153
Effects of Scanning Strategies on Thermal Behavior and Stress Fields During Selective Laser Melting O	Of
316L Stainless Steel	154

Optimization of Extrusion Process by using Response Surface Methodology

Aslan Deniz Karaoglan[⊠], Gulistan Bicen, Rabia Durak

Balikesir University, Industrial Engineering Department, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

One of the most widely used methods in the production of plastic products is the extrusion process. Plastic Extrusion method is a manufacturing method used especially in the production of plastic materials such as pipes, hoses, cables, profiles. In this process, an engine rotates the screw in a sleeve coated with a heater to melt the plastic granules under temperature and pressure. The molten plastic is shaped and cooled along the mold and the production takes place. Many parameters affect product quality during the extrusion process. Optimization of these parameters aims to reduce time, labor and energy costs. This study was carried out in a manufacturer that meets the plastic cups requirement of the food sector. The aim of the study is to find the mathematical relationship between the parameters affecting the thickness of the sheet in the extrusion process by the regression equation and to find out the optimum factor levels in order to obtain the target sheet thickness. Response surface methodology (RSM) is one of the widely used modeling and optimization method [1-3]. By using this method, it is possible to model the relations in terms of quadratic and interaction terms in the regression equation. For this purpose, Minitab statistical analysis program was used. In order to determine whether the number of factors constituting the regression equation is sufficient or not, R² determination coefficient is calculated and it is seen that it is quite close to 1. Then, ANOVA analysis results were examined and it was concluded that the regression equation was significant at 95% confidence level (which means alpha=5%=0.05). According to Minitab ANOVA results; p-value is calculated as 0.04 which is lower than alpha=0.05. This means the regression equation is significant. After finding an available regression equation, the final step was optimization with the help of Minitab Response Optimizer module. Verification of the optimum result was performed by field tests and it was found that there was no significant difference between the expected output value and the observed and the results were quite successful.

Keywords: Response surface methodology, optimization, plastic extrusion method

Acknowledgements

This research is supported by Sahlan Plastics Co. (Balıkesir –Turkey). The authors would gratefully like to thank this firm, whose valuable supports lead to reveal this paper. Also the authors would gratefully like to thank Omer Vural and Sibel Gyunay Sali for their support.

- [1] Myer, R.H., Montgomery, D.C., Anderson-Cook, C.M. (2008). Response Surface Methodology: Process and Product Optimization Using Designed Experiments, 3rd Ed., John Wiley & Sons, Hoboken, New Jersey.
- [2] Montgomery, D.C. (2008). Design and Analysis of Experiments, 8th ed., John Wiley & Sons, Hoboken, New Jersey.
- [3] Mason, R.L., Gunst, R.F., Hess J.L. (2003). Statistical Design and Analysis of Experiments, 2nd ed., John Wiley & Sons, Hoboken, New Jersey.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: deniz@balikesir.edu.tr

A Reversed Fixed-Point Iteration Method for Burgers Equation

Tahir Cosgun^{1,2,⊠}, Murat Sari¹

¹Yildiz Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Istanbul, Turkey ²Amasya University, Department of Mathematics, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Although the equation

$$u_t + uu_x = \varepsilon u_{xx}$$

was discovered by Bateman [1], it has been called with the name of Burgers because of his considerably important contributions. Undoubtedly, one of the most important contributions is that Burgers discover the relationship between turbulent flows and this equation [2]. Later, this equation has been solved simultaneously by Cole and Hopf via a nonlinear transformation by converting it to a linear heat equation [3,4].

Burgers equation continues to attract the attention of many researchers from various disciplines since it is the simplification of the Navier-Stokes equation to the one-dimensional case without force and pressure terms. Moreover, being a quasilinear partial differential equation, Burgers equation includes both an advection term and a diffusion term, and so, it is also a test problem for a lot of numerical methods.

In this study, the Burgers equation has been discussed by using a newly developed numerical approach that is called the reversed fixed-point iteration method. The proposed method has been constructed to find out the repelling fixed points of a nonlinear mapping and has been observed to be an effective tool to capture the unstable behavior of a nonlinear dynamical system. The current method has been compared fairly with the conventional fixed-point iteration method by considering both advantageous and disadvantageous aspects.

Keywords: Nonlinear dynamical systems, fixed point theory, unstable equilibrium

- [1] Bateman, H. (1915). Some recent researches on the motion of fluids. Monthly Weather Review, 43, 163–170.
- [2] Burgers, J. (1948). A mathematical model illustrating the theory of turbulence. Advances in Applied Mechanics, 1, 171-199.
- [3] Cole, J. (1951). On a quasilinear parabolic equation occurring in aerodynamics. Quarterly of Applied Mathematics, 9, 225-236.
- [4] Hopf, E. (1950). The partial differential equation $u_t + uu_x = vu_{xx}$. Communications on Pure and Applied Mathematics, 3, 201-230.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: tahircosgun@gmail.com

Modeling and Analysis of the Relationship with Regression Equation between Heating/Cooling Load Change and Outdoor Meteorological data of Business and Service Buildings

Okan Kon^{1,⊠}, Bedri Yuksel², Aslan Deniz Karaoglan³

¹Balikesir University, Mechanical Engineering Department, Balikesir, Turkey ²Gelisim University, Mechatronics Engineering Department, Istanbul, Turkey ³ Balikesir University, Industrial Engineering Department, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, Balikesir University Rectorate Building was chosen as the business and service building. In the winter months, measurements were made in the hot water boiler for the heating load. For the cooling load, measurements were made in the chiller groups. Taking the working hours into consideration, the average daily values were determined. As meteorological data, 8 factors such as outdoor temperature, relative humidity, solar radiation, wind speed, atmospheric pressure, sunshine duration, steam pressure and 1 m underground temperature were taken into account. In the study, the relationship between summer cooling load and meteorological factors affecting this load is modeled with a regression equation that includes linear terms and quadratic terms. Modeling was carried out with the help of the Minitab statistical analysis program and 37 samples were used for this purpose. R2 (coefficient of determination) was calculated as 96.20% for the model and R2 - prediction value was calculated as 84.22%. These values show that 8 factors included in the model during the modeling phase are sufficient to explain the change in cooling load. When the Analysis of variance (ANOVA) was examined, the model was found to be significant. Similarly, the relationship between winter heating load and meteorological factors affecting this load is modeled with a regression equation that includes linear terms and interactions. 55 samples were used. For the model, R2 was calculated as 99.94% and R2 prediction value was calculated as 81.95%. When the Analysis of variance (ANOVA) was examined, the model was found to be significant. As a result, the regression equations created for both periods were tested with samples from the relevant periods but not used in the modeling stage and provided high accuracy prediction opportunities for days with very low estimation errors.

Keywords: Heating and cooling load, meteorological factors, regression analysis.

- [1] Myer, R.H., Montgomery, D.C., Anderson-Cook, C.M. (2008). Response Surface Methodology: Process and Product Optimization Using Designed Experiments, 3rd Ed., John Wiley & Sons, New Jersey.
- [2] Montgomery, D.C. (2008). Design and Analysis of Experiments, 8th ed., John Wiley & Sons Inc., New York.
- [3] Mata, E., Lopez, F., Cuchi, A. (2009). Optimization of the management of building stocks: an example of the application of managing heating systems in university buildings in Spain. Energy and Building, 41,12,1334-1346.
- [4] Sun, H. S. and Lee, S. E. (2006). Case study of data centers' energy performance. Energy and Buildings, 38,5,522-533.
- [5] Catalina, T., Virgone, J. and Blanco, E. (2008). Development and validation of regression models to predict monthly heating demand for residential buildings. Energy and Buildings, 40,10, 1825-1832.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>okan@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Vibration Monitoring of Coastal and Ocean Structures with Pile Foundations Using Compressive Sensing

Cihan Bayındır^{1⊠},

¹ İstanbul Technical University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey.

Abstract

Structural health monitoring of the maritime structures is a rapidly developing research area. One of the research directions followed within this context is the development of efficient mathematical data and signal processing techniques and their possible usage methods for health monitoring of coastal and ocean structures. In this paper, we investigate the possible usage of one of such methods, namely the compressive sensing technique (CS), for the measurement and reconstruction of the vibration data of the coastal and ocean structures. CS algorithm outperforms the classical sampling theory by using far fewer measurements for the reconstruction of signals having sparse representation in different orthogonal domains [1-3]. The aforementioned maritime structures are continuously subjected to harmonic loads in the marine environment, as well as impact loads such as shiploads, earthquakes [4]. Thus CS algorithm can be used for the reconstruction of vibration velocities, acceleration, and similar parameters under such loadings, which have sparse representations in Fourier or temporal/spatial domains. Implementing a circular cylinder [4] and hollow circular cylinder model [5] for the modeling of the pile foundations, we show that CS can be effectively used for the monitoring and reconstruction of such vibration parameters under cyclic harmonic loads [6-7] and impact loads [8] including shiploads and earthquakes. We discuss our findings and their possible applicability and usage.

Keywords: Coastal and ocean structures, structural vibration monitoring, compressive sensing.

Acknowledgements

The author gratefully acknowledges the support of the İstanbul Technical University. This work was supported by the Research Fund of the İstanbul Technical University. Project Code: MGA-2020-42544. Project Number: 42544.

- [1] Candes, E. J., Romberg, J., & Tao, T. (2006). Robust uncertainty principles: Exact signal reconstruction from highly incomplete frequency information, IEEE Trans. on Inf. Theory, 52 (2), 489-509.
- [2] Candes, E. J. (2006). Compressive sampling, Proc. Int. Congr. Math., 3, 1433-1452.
- [3] Candes, E. J., Romberg, J., & Tao, T. (2006). Stable signal recovery from incomplete and inaccurate measurements, Comm. Pur. Appl. Math., 59 (8), 1207-1223.
- [4] Dean, R. G. & Dalrymple, R. A. (2000). Water Wave Mechanics for Engineers and Scientists, Advanced Series on Ocean Engineering-Volume 2, World Scientific, New Jersey.
- [5] Forrest, J. A., & Hunt, H. E. M. (2006). A three-dimensional tunnel model for calculation of train-induced ground vibration, Journal of Sound and Vibration, 294 (4-5), 678-705.
- [6] Bayındır, C. (2019). Early detection of rogue waves using compressive sensing, TWMS Journal of Applied and Engineering Mathematics, 9 (2), 198-205.
- [7] Bayındır, C., & Namlı, B. (2021). Efficient sensing of the von Karman vortices using compressive sensing, Computers & Fluids, to appear, 2021. (arXiv preprint arXiv: 2005.08325).
- [8] Bayındır, C. (2021). Efficient sensing of ground-borne vibrations induced by pile driving using compressive sampling, TWMS Journal of Applied and Engineering Mathematics, to appear.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>cbayindir@itu.edu.tr</u>

Analysis of Tsunami and Tsunami-Structure Interaction Parameters by Compressive Sensing

Cihan Bayındır $^{1\boxtimes}$,

¹ İstanbul Technical University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey.

Abstract

Tsunamis are among the most devastating hazards that can be observed in nature. Observation, sensing, recording, and analysis of the tsunami and tsunami-structure interaction parameters are of crucial importance for the safety of the coastal zone and communities. These parameters include but are not limited to tsunami water surface fluctuations, particle velocities, inundation, runup, sediment deposit, their dynamics pressures on structures. Efficient sensing, data recording, and analysis of these parameters are critically important for the reconnaissance, assessment, early warning, and avoidance of catastrophic consequences of tsunamis. One of the most successful sensing algorithms of the big data era is the compressive sensing technique (CS), which can outperform classical sampling methodologies by using far fewer samples while achieving exact recovery [1-2]. In this paper, we investigate the possible usage of the CS for the effective measurement and reconstruction of the tsunami parameters of water surface fluctuation, particle velocities, and tsunami-induced wave pressures [3]. Using the data sets of the Japanese Tohoku Tsunami occurred in 2011 after a major earthquake of Mw 9.0 [4], provided by the USA's National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA)'s Deep-Ocean Assessment and Reporting of Tsunamis (DART) portal, we show that CS can be used as an effective tool for the measurement, analysis, and reconstruction of the tsunami and tsunami-structure interaction parameters. Although we limit ourselves with the reconstruction of water surface fluctuations, particle velocities and tsunami-induced dynamic pressures, the CS can be applied for monitoring of the tsunami parameters in more general settings including the effects of vortices and shorter waves [5, 6]. We discuss our findings and comment on their possible applicability and usage.

Keywords: Tsunamis, tsunami-structure interaction, compressive sensing.

Acknowledgements

The author gratefully acknowledges the support of the İstanbul Technical University. This work was supported by the Research Fund of the İstanbul Technical University. Project Code: MGA-2020-42544. Project Number: 42544.

- [1] Candes, E. J., Romberg, J., & Tao, T. (2006). Robust uncertainty principles: Exact signal reconstruction from highly incomplete frequency information, IEEE Trans. on Inf. Theory, 52 (2), 489-509.
- [2] Candes, E. J. (2006). Compressive sampling, Proc. Int. Congr. Math., 3, 1433-1452.
- [3] Goda, Y. (2010). Random Seas and Design of Maritime Structures, Advanced Series on Ocean Engineering-Volume 33, World Scientific, New Jersey.
- [4] Koshimura, S. and Shuto, N. (2015). Response to the 2011 great east Japan earthquake and tsunami disaster, Phil. Trans. R. Soc. A., 373, 20140373.
- [5] Bayındır, C. (2019). Early detection of rogue waves using compressive sensing, TWMS Journal of Applied and Engineering Mathematics, 9 (2), 198-205.
- [6] Bayındır, C., & Namlı, B. (2021). Efficient sensing of the von Karman vortices using compressive sensing, Computers & Fluids, to appear, 2021. (arXiv preprint arXiv: 2005.08325).

[™] Corresponding Author Email: cbayindir@itu.edu.tr

Analysis of Wave Runup, Overtopping and Overwash Parameters via Compressive Sensing

Ali Rıza Alan^{1⊠}, Cihan Bayındır^{1, 2}

¹ İstanbul Technical University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey. ² Boğaziçi University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey.

Abstract

The analysis of wave overtopping and overwash is fundamental to prevent damage to coastal structures and zones. There are many studies in the literature on this subject that shed light on today's research [1-2]. Wave overwash modeling methods are principally based on the prediction and generation of overtopping parameters as the essential inputs [3]. Currently, available methods are inefficient for the evaluation of the big field data. Recording and analyzing these data with efficient sensing are fundamentally significant for the observation, appraisal, and prevention of catastrophic results of coastal hazards. For this purpose, new algorithms should be developed, implemented, and tested. Compressive sensing technique (CS) is one of the most efficient algorithms that can beat old-style sensing approaches by utilizing far fewer samples while accomplishing accurate recovery [4-5]. In this paper, we investigate the possible usage of the CS for the viable estimation and analysis of wave runup, overtopping, and overwash for coastal areas. Using the time-series data sets of wave runup, overtopping, and overwash, as well as some other empirical formulas proposed by Mase [6], we show that CS may be utilized as a powerful instrument for the estimation, investigation, and analysis of wave overtopping and overwash in coastal areas and structural health monitoring. We discuss our results and remark on their pertinency and possible usage areas. The results of this study will be useful for the coastal engineering community in implementing wave runup, overtopping, and overwash reduction strategies to mitigate coastal hazards and the associated human and economic losses.

Keywords: Wave runup, wave overtopping, wave overwash, compressive sensing.

Acknowledgements

The authors gratefully acknowledge the support of the İstanbul Technical University. This work was supported by the Research Fund of the İstanbul Technical University. Project Code: MGA-2020-42544. Project Number: 42544.

- [1] Kobayashi, N., Tega, Y., & Hancock, M. W. (1996). Wave reflection and overwash of dunes. Journal of Waterway, Port, Coastal, and Ocean Engineering, 122(3), 150-153.
- [2] van der Meer, J. W. (1995). Wave run-up and wave overtopping at dikes. Wave forces on inclined and vertical structures, ASCE.
- [3] Tuan, T. Q., Verhagen, H. J., Visser, P., & Stive, M. J. (2006). Wave overwash at low-crested beach barriers. Coastal Engineering Journal, 48(4), 371-393.
- [4] Candès, E. J., Romberg, J., & Tao, T. (2006). Robust uncertainty principles: Exact signal reconstruction from highly incomplete frequency information. IEEE Transactions on information theory, 52(2), 489-509.
- [5] Candès, E. J. (2006). Compressive sampling. Proceedings of the international congress of mathematicians, 3, 1433-1452.
- [6] Oliveira, J. N. C., Oliveira, F. S., Neves, M. G., Clavero, M., & Trigo-Teixeira, A. A. (2020). Modeling Wave Overtopping on a Seawall with XBeach, IH2VOF, and Mase Formulas. Water, 12(9), 2526.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: alan21@itu.edu.tr

Berezin Symbols and Related Problems

Ulaş Yamancı[⊠]

Süleyman Demirel University, Department of Statistics, Isparta, Turkey

Abstract

The Berezin symbol which was introduced by Berezin (1972) is a bounded function by the norm of the operator. Every bounded operator on the most familiar RKHS is uniquely determined by its Berezin symbol. We discuss some problems in terms of the Berezin symbol of diagonal operator in the reproducing kernel Hilbert space.

Keywords: Berezin symbol, reproducing kernel, reproducing kernel Hilbert space, diagonal operator, radial limit.

- [1] Ash, J.M., & Karaev, M.T. (2012). On the Boundary Behavior of Special Classes of C[^]{∞}-Functions and Analytic Functions. International Mathematical Forum, 7(4), 153-166.
- [2] Berezin, F.A. (1972). Covariant and contravariant symbols for operators., Math. USSR-Izv., 6, 1117-1151.
- [3] Karaev, M.T., (2003). On the Berezin symbol. J. Math. Sci. (New York), 115, 2135--2140 (Translation from Zap. Nauch. Semin. POMI 270 (2000) 80-89).
- [4] Karaev, M.T. (2005). On some problems related to Berezin symbols. C. R. Acad. Sci. Paris, Ser I, 340(10), 715--718.
- [5] Karaev, M.T., Gürdal, M., & Yamancı, U. (2014). Some results related with Berezin symbols and Toeplitz operators. Mathematical Inequalities & Applications, 17(3), 1031-1045.
- [6] Yamancı, U. (2018). On the summability methods of logarithmic type and the Berezin symbol. Turk J. Math, 42(5), 2417-2422.
- [7] Zorboska, N. (2003). The Berezin transform and radial operators. Proc. Amer. Math. Soc., 131, 793--800.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ulasyamanci@sdu.edu.tr</u>

Mathematical Modelling of Drying Kinetics of Cantaloupe in a Solar Assisted Dryer

Melike Sultan Karasu Asnaz ^{1⊠}

¹ Balikesir University, Industrial Engineering Department, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

Crop drying, which aims to reduce the moisture content to a certain level, is a method used to extend the shelf life, and prevent it from spoiling. One of the oldest food preservation techniques is open sun or shade drying. Even though this technique is the most affordable of all drying methods, there are some drawbacks such as contamination by insects, environmental pollution, windborne dust, and direct expose to weather conditions such as wind, rain, hail [1]. However, solar dryers that provide a hygienic and controllable environment to preserve food and extend its shelf life have been developed and used to dry agricultural products. Thus, foods can be dried quickly without being affected by weather variables and quality products can be obtained [2].

This research is mainly devoted to investigating the modelling of drying kinetics of cantaloupe in a forced convection solar dryer. Mathematical models for the drying process should be defined to simulate the drying behavior of the foodstuff, which will greatly contribute to the development of solar dryer designs [3]. Thus, drying experiments were conducted and replicated five times, and various data such as temperature, relative humidity, solar irradiation, drying air speed, and weight were instantly monitored and recorded. Moisture content of sliced and pretreated cantaloupe were converted into moisture ratio, and then fitted against drying time for constructing drying curves. Then, 10 quasitheoretical and empirical drying models were applied to find the best drying curve equation according to the Levenberg-Marquardt nonlinear optimization method. The best fitted mathematical drying model was selected according to the highest coefficient of determination (R^2), and the mean square of the deviations (χ^2) and root mean square error (RMSE) criteria [4]. The best fitted model was utilized to simulate a thin layer solar drying of cantaloupe, and the simulation results were compared with the experimental data for validation purposes.

Keywords: Solar dryer, mathematical modelling, drying kinetics, cantaloupe drying.

Acknowledgements

This study was supported by Scientific Research Coordination Unit of Balikesir University under the project number BAP.2019/081.

- [1] Fudholi, A., & Sopian, K. (2019). A review of solar air flat plate collector for drying application. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 102, 333–345.
- [2] Kumar, P., & Singh, D. (2020). Advanced technologies and performance investigations of solar dryers: A review. Renewable Energy Focus, 35, 148–158.
- [3] Aghbashlo, M., Kianmehr, M. H., Arabhosseini, A., & Nazghelichi, T. (2011). Modelling the carrot thin-layer drying in a semi-industrial continuous band dryer. Czech Journal of Food Sciences, 29(5), 523–538.
- [4] Lakshmi, D. V. N., Muthukumar, P., Layek, A., & Nayak, P. K. (2018). Drying kinetics and quality analysis of black turmeric (Curcuma caesia) drying in a mixed mode forced convection solar dryer integrated with thermal energy storage. Renewable Energy, 120, 23–34.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>karasu@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

3-D MHD Flow Over Array of Cubic Ducts

Selçuk Han Aydın

Karadeniz Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Trabzon, Turkey

Abstract

The magnetohydrodynamic (MHD) flow has many important applications in different area. Therefore, it is one of the most popular and important task to obtain the solution of the MHD equations formed by the coupled partial differential equations. In this study, we have considered the stabilized FEM solutions of the 3-D MHD equations over array of several cubic ducts seperated by conducting thin walls. The considered stabilization method called SUPG(Streamline Upwind Petrov-Galerkin) enables to obtain stabilized numerical solutions for the high values of the Hartmann number. Different problem configurations are considered depending on the direction of the applied magnetic field and the number of ducts. Obtained solutions are displayed in terms of figures using the 2-D slices of the 3-D plots at different levels.

Keywords: 3D MHD flow, stabilized FEM, Cubic duct.

Acknowledgements

Thanks to Prof.Dr. Münevver Tezer-Sezgin for her valuable support and motivation.

- [1] Zienkiewicz, O.C. & Taylor, R.L. (2000). The Finite Element Method, Butterworth-Heinemann, Bristol.
- [2] Sherclif, J.A. (1965). A Textbook of Magnetohydrodynamics, Pergamon Press, Oxford.
- [3] Dragos, L. (1975). Magnetofluid Dynamics, Abacus Press.
- [4] Hartmann, J., (1937). Theory of the laminar flow of an electrically conductive liquid in a homogeneous magnetic fieleld, K. Dan. Vidensk. Selsk. Mat. Fys. Medd., 15(6), 1-28.
- [5] Brooks, A.N. & Hughes, T.J.R. (1982). Streamline upwind/Petrov–Galerkin formulations for convection dominated flows with particular emphasis on the incompressible Navier–Stokes equations. Computer Methods in Applied Mechanics and Engineering, 32, 199–259.
- [6] Tezer-Sezgin, M. & Aydın, S.H. (2020). FEM solution of MHD flow in an array of electromagnetically coupled rectangular ducts. Progress in Computational Fluid Dynamics, Progress in Computational Fluid Dynamics, 20, 40–50.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: shaydin@ktu.edu.tr

Stabilization in 3-D FEM and Solution of MHD Duct Equations

Selçuk Han Aydın[⊠], Mahir Ceylan Erdoğan

Karadeniz Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Trabzon, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, we have considered the numerical solution of 3-D convection-diffusion typed equations using the finite element method (FEM). In order to show the accuracy of the FEM, firstly we have tested the numerical procedure on the Laplace equation with known exact solution on the cubic and spherical domains. Then, streamline upwind Petrov-Galerkin (SUPG) type stabilized version of FEM is introduced for the 3-D problems. The proposed algorithm is test on convection dominated convection diffusion problems on L-shaped and cubic domains where both of them contain boundary layers for the small values of the diffusion coefficients. It is seen that even there are some numerical instabilities in the numerical solutions obtained by using standart FEM, the stabilized model eliminates this difficulties and enables to obtain stable and accurate numerical results. Finally, the extended version of the stabilized numerical procedure is applied to the solution of 3-D Magnetohydrodynamic (MHD) duct equations on the cubic duct. The coupled partial differential equations for the velocity and induced magnetic field are solved simultaneously for the different values of the Hartmann number and different externally applied magnetic field directions. All of the test results are displayed in terms of the tables and figures in order to show the accuracy of the proposed algorithm. Also the boundary layer behaviors are visualized using the 2-D slices of the 3-D plots at different levels.

Keywords: 3D-FEM, Convection-diffusion equation, Stabilization, MHD duct flow

Acknowledgements

Thanks to Prof.Dr. Münevver Tezer-Sezgin for her valuable support and motivation.

References

- [1] Zienkiewicz, O.C. & Taylor, R.L. (2000). The Finite Element Method, Butterworth-Heinemann, Bristol.
- [2] Sherclif, J.A. (1965). A Textbook of Magnetohydrodynamics, Pergamon Press, Oxford.
- [3] Dragos, L. (1975). Magnetofluid Dynamics, Abacus Press.
- [4] Hartmann, J., (1937). Theory of the laminar flow of an electrically conductive liquid in a homogeneous magnetic field, K. Dan. Vidensk. Selsk. Mat. Fys. Medd., 15(6), 1-28.
- [5] Brooks, A.N. & Hughes, T.J.R. (1982). Streamline upwind/Petrov–Galerkin formulations for convection dominated flows with particular emphasis on the incompressible Navier–Stokes equations. Computer Methods in Applied Mechanics and Engineering, 32, 199–259.
- [6] Gie, G.M., Hamouda, M., Jung, C.Y. & Temam, R.M. (2018). Singular Perturbations and Boundary Layers, Springer, Switzerland.
- [7] Roos, H.G., Stynes, M. & Tobiska, L. (2000). Robust Numerical Methods for Singularly Perturbed Differential Equations, Springer-Verlag Berlin Heidelberg.
- [8] Brezzi, F., Marini, D. & Russo, A. (1998). Applications of the pseudo residual-free bubbles to the stabilization of convection-diffusion problems. Computer Methods in Applied Mechanics and Engineering, 166, 51–63.
- [9] Tezer-Sezgin, M. & Koksal, S. (1989). FEM for solving MHD flow in a rectangular duct. Int. J. Numer. Methods Engrg., 28, 445–459.

Corresponding Author Email: shaydin@ktu.edu.tr

Stabilized FEM Solution of Liquid-metal MHD Flow in a Rectangular Duct with Conducting Cracks

Münevver Tezer-Sezgin^{1⊠};Selçuk Han Aydın²

Abstract

In this study, the numerical solution of the fully developed liquid-metal magnetohydrodynamic (MHD) flow is considered in a rectangular duct with the boundary conditions as no-slip velocity and insulated walls with crack regions [1]. An external oblique magnetic field is applied with an angle α made with the y-axis. The mathematical model of the considered physical problem is governed by the coupled MHD flow equations in terms of the velocity of the fluid and the induced magnetic field. These coupled equations are transformed first into decoupled convection-diffusion type equations in order to apply the SUPG stabilization in the finite element method (FEM) solution procedure for high values of Hartmann number which determine the convection dominant case [2]. Obtained stabled numerical solutions for high values of Hartmann number and several orientation angles of external magnetic field as well as different crack configurations depict the effects of these parameters on the flow and induced current. The velocity of the fluid and the induced magnetic field display also the well-known characteristics of the MHD pipe flow as Hartmann number increases. Also, the flowrates are presented for different crack positions in the walls, and for number and the lengths of the cracks. It is found that, the flowrate drops with an increase in the number and legths of the cracks which are located on the Hartmann wall. If the crack is located on the side layer, it does not significantly affect the flowrate. The FEM with SUPG stabilization is capable of simulating flow changes for high values of Hartmann number even in the small-sized crack regions.

Keywords: Stabilized FEM, MHD pipe flow, Conducting boundary cracks.

References

- [1] Bühler, L. (1995). The influence of small cracks in insulating coatings on the flow structure and pressure
- [2] Brooks, A.N., Hughes, T.J.R. (1982). Streamline upwind/Petrov-Galerkin formulations for convection dominated flows with particular emphasis on the incompressible Navier-Stokes equations, Computer Methods in Applied Mechanics and Engineering, 32, 199-259.

Corresponding Author Email: munt@metu.edu.tr

¹Department of Mathematics, Middle East Technical University, 06800 Ankara, Turkey

²Department of Mathematics, Karadeniz Technical University, 61080 Trabzon, Turkey

Numerical Simulations of the Modified Regularized Long Wave Process

Asuman Zeytinoglu[™]

Suleyman Demirel University, Mathematics Department, Isparta, Turkey

Abstract

The purpose of this study is to introduce in capturing numerical simulations of the modified regularized long wave (MRLW) equation by obtaining efficient and accurate numerical solutions. The MRLW equation is known as the special nonlinear form of the generalized regularized long wave (GRLW) equation which models a wide range of physical processes in several areas including nonlinear transverse waves in shallow water, ion acoustics and magneto-hydrodynamic waves in plasma, longitudinal dispersive wave in elastics rods, rotating flow down a tube and pressure waves in liquid gas bubble mixtures. To produce the efficient and accurate numerical solutions for the MRLW equation, a compact finite difference scheme, which needs less storage space as opposed to the conventional numerical techniques, is preferred to discretize the spatial derivatives of the model equation without any linearization or transforming procedure, and then MacCormack method is applied to the resulting semidiscrete differential equations system in time. The proposed method is applied for some test problems. To validate the accuracy and efficiency of the method, some error norms, invariants corresponding to conservation of mass, momentum and energy, and the relative percent errors of the invariants are computed. The wave motions for considered test problems are also displayed at several times. The produced results are compared with some earlier studies, and it can be said from presented results that the method is seen to be a strongly advisable alternative to discover both qualitative and quantitative behaviors of similar physical processes.

Keywords: Modified regularized long wave equation, solitary wave, compact finite difference scheme, MacCormack method.

- [1] Bona, J.L. & Bryant, P.J. (1973). A mathematical model for long waves generated by wavemakers in non-linear dispersive systems. Mathematical Proceedings of the Cambridge Philosophical Society, 73 (2), 391-405.
- [2] Hoffmann, K.A. & Chiang, S.T. (2000). Computational Fluid Dynamics Volume III, Engineering Education System, Wichita, USA, 175p.
- [3] Khan, Y., Taghipour, R., Falahian, M. & Nikkar, A. (2013). A new approach to modified regularized long wave equation. Neural Computing and Applications, 23, 1335-1341.
- [4] Gao, Y. & Mei, L. (2015). Mixed Galerkin finite element methods for modified regularized long wave equation. Applied Mathematics and Computation, 258, 267-281.
- [5] Hammad, D.A. & El-Azab, M.S. (2016). Chebyshev-Chebyshev spectral collocation method for solving the generalized regularized long wave (GRLW) equation. Applied Mathematics and Computation, 285, 228-240.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: asumanzeytinoglu@sdu.edu.tr

RBF Solution of MHD Flow in a Square Duct

Merve Gürbüz[⊠]

¹ Başkent University, Department of Management, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

This paper considers the numerical solution of the two dimensional, steady, laminar flow of an incompressible, viscous and electrically conducting fluid in a cross-section of square duct under the impact of uniform magnetic field which is applied in the y-direction. The magnetohyrodynamics (MHD) equations [1-2] are the Navier-Stokes equations of the fluid motion coupled with Maxwell's equations of electromagnetic through Ohm's law. The non-dimensional form of the MHD equations are solved in terms of velocity and electric potential by using radial basis function (RBF) approximation for the computational efficiency and its easy implementation [3]. The boundary conditions for the electric potential are obtained from the RBF coordinate matrix for the space derivatives of the electric potential. The numerical results are simulated for several values of Hartmann number (M) and wall conductance ratios (c_1, c_r, c_t, c_b) to analyse the influences of the magnetic field and the wall conductivity, respectively, on the flow and the electric potential behaviours. It is found that, an increase in the Hartmann number causes to develop boundary layers on the Hartmann walls (perpendicular to applied magnetic field) and side walls (parallel to magnetic field). This is an expected behaviour for the MHD flow problem. As either intensity of the magnetic field or the wall conductance ratio increases, the magnitude of the flow decreases. When the wall conductance ratio is included to the boundary condition for the electric potential, M shaped flow behaviour is observed for the high Hartmann number. The increase in the wall conductance ratio decreases the magnetic potential value.

Keywords: RBF approximation, MHD flow, wall conductance ratio.

- [1] Müller, U., & Bühler, L. (2001). Magnetofluiddynamics in Channels and Containers. 1st ed. Springer, New York.
- [2] Sterl, A. (1990). Numerical simulation of liquid-metal MHD flows in rectangular ducts. Journal of Fluid Mechanics, 216, 161-191.
- [3] Chen, C.S., Fan, C.M., &Wen, P.H. (2012). The method of approximate particular solutions for solving certain partial differential equations. Numerical Methods for Partial Differential Equations, 28, 506–522.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: mervegurbuz@baskent.edu.tr

The Effects of Problem Parameters on the DRBEM Solution of MHD Flow Subjected to the Time-Varied Magnetic Field

Elif Ebren Kaya^{1⊠}, Münevver Tezer-Sezgin¹

¹ Department of Mathematics, Middle East Technical University, 06800 Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

The aim of the present study is to examine transient behavior of the MHD flow of a viscous, incompressible and electrically conducting fluid in a channel influenced by an external magnetic field $B_0(t) = B_0 f(t)$. B_0 is the intensity of the applied magnetic field at the initial time and f(t) determines the time variation of the applied magnetic field [1]. The time-varied function f(t) is chosen as a polynomial, exponential and trigonometric function to depict the effects on the flow at transient levels together with the effects of the problem parameters as R_e and R_m. The dual reciprocity boundary element method (DRBEM) [2] combined with the implicit forward finite difference for the time derivatives is used to solve coupled MHD equations in the cross-section of the channel (duct). The main advantage of DRBEM lies in the discretization of the boundary of the duct and obtaining unknown velocity and induced magnetic field both on the boundary and interior region. The study revealed that, the increase in Reynolds number (R_e) or magnetic Reynolds number (R_m) postpones the time level, that the flow elongates, to a further time level (i.e. the flow elliptical vortex turns to the direction of the applied magnetic field). Also, as R_m increases the magnitude of the flow increases, on the other hand, as R_e increases the flow is flattened as in the case of Hartmann number increase. The velocity and induced current profiles are presented at different transient levels by taking Hartmann number (Ha) as 20 and when the direction of applied magnetic field is parallel to the x-axis. For polynomial and exponential type functions, f(t), the flow and induced current keep the same behavior after the flow elongates. The trigonometric type f(t) causes the flow to repeat the original and elongation level behaviors with a period.

Keywords: Drbem, unsteady MHD duct flow, time-varied magnetic field

- [1] Bandaru V., Boeck T., Krasnov D., & Schumacher J. (2016). A hybrid finite difference-boundary element procedure for the simulation of turbulent MHD duct flow at finite magnetic Reynolds number. Journal of Computational Physics, 304, 320-339.
- [2] Partridge P.W., Brebbia C.A., & Wrobel L.C. (1992). The Dual Reciprocity Boundary Element Method, Computational Mechanics Publications, Southampton Boston.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: elifebren90@gmail.com

A BEM Approach for Time-dependent Convection-Diffusion Type Equation With Variable Coefficients

Hande Fendoğlu^{1⊠}, Canan Bozkaya¹, Münevver Tezer-Sezgin¹

¹ Middle East Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

In this work, a numerical study is carried for solving the time-dependent convection-diffusion type equations with variable coefficients by using two different boundary element approaches. That is, the governing equations are discretized by either domain BEM (DBEM) or dual reciprocity BEM (DRBEM) in the spatial domain while a backward finite difference scheme is adopted for the time integration. DBEM or DRBEM is used to transform the differential equations into equivalent integral equations by employing the fundamental solution of convection-diffusion equation. The resulting BEM integral equations contain a domain integral which is kept in DBEM and treated by numerical integration, while it is transformed into a boundary integral by means of radial basis functions in DRBEM [1,2].

The application of the methods are explained through the convection-diffusion (CD) equation with variable coefficients and the codes are validated by the exact solution of the heat conduction problem which is governed by the CD equation with varying coefficients in a square computational domain. Then, the techniques are implemented for some fluid dynamics problems, namely, lid-driven flow, natural convection flow, channel flow and MHD natural convection flow in a porous medium. All these problems are governed by the NS equations and energy equation in the presence of a heat source, in which the momentum and energy equations can be treated as CD type equations involving variable convective coefficients which are functions of the unknown.

It is observed that, for the heat conduction problems involving variable coefficients of space variable, the use of both DBEM and DRBEM with the fundamental solution of CD equation results in reasonably well compatible results with the exact solutions. It is found that for the fluid dynamics problems governed by NS equations, energy and MHD flow equations, the DBEM with the fundamental solution of CD equation can be performed as an alternative numerical technique which gives quite accurate results for small and moderate values of Reynolds, Rayleigh and Hartmann numbers.

Keywords: DRBEM, DBEM, Convection-Diffusion equation, Navier-Stokes equations.

- [1] Partridge, P., Brebbia, C. & Wrobel, L. (1992). The Dual Reciprocity Boundary Element Method, Computational Mechanics Publications, Southampton, Boston.
- [2] Cunha, C., Carrer, J., Oliveira, M., & Costa, V. (2016). A study concerning the solution of advection-diffusion problems by the boundary element method, Engineering Analysis with Boundary Elements, 65, 79-94.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: handefendoglu@gmail.com

Numerical Solutions of Kaup-Kupershmidt and Ito Equations with B-spline Collocation Method

Derya Sucu^{1⊠}, Seydi Battal Gazi Karakoç¹

¹ Nevşehir Hacı Bektaş Veli University, Department of Mathematics, Nevşehir, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, it is aimed to obtain the numerical solutions of two types of fifth-order Korteweg-de Vries (KdV) equations namely Kaup-Kupershmidt (K-K) and Ito. For this purpose, collocation finite element method is used. L_2 and L_∞ error norms are computed for single soliton solutions to demonstrate the proficiency and accuracy of the present method. The method is shown to be unconditionally stable by performing the von-Neumann stability analysis.

A well-known model of the generalized fifth-order nonlinear evolution equations of the form:

$$u_t + \alpha u^2 u_x + \beta u_x u_{xx} + \gamma u u_{xxx} + u_{xxxxx} = 0 \tag{1}$$

where α , β and γ are arbitrary nonzero and real parameters and u=u(x,t) is a differentiable function, is an important mathematical model with wide applications in quantum mechanics and nonlinear optics [1-3]. As the constants α , β and γ take different values, the properties of equation (1) drastically change. Such as K-K equation with $\alpha=20$, $\beta=25$, $\gamma=10$ is also known to be integrable [4] and to have bilinear representations [5], but the explicit form of its N-soliton solution is apparently not known. Kaup-Kupershmidt equation has the following form:

$$u_t + 20u^2u_x + 25u_xu_{xx} + 10uu_{xxx} + u_{xxxxx} = 0.$$

Ito equation with $\alpha = 2$, $\beta = 6$, $\gamma = 3$ which is not completely integrable but has a limited number of conservation laws [6] and the equation has the following form:

$$u_t + 2u^2 u_x + 6u_x u_{xx} + 3u u_{xxx} + u_{xxxxx} = 0.$$

Keywords: Kaup-Kupershmidt equation, ito equation, collocation finite element method.

- [1] Wazwaz, A.M. (2007). The extended tanh method for new solitons solutions for many forms of the fifth-order KdV equations. Appl. Math. Comput., 84(2), 1002–1014.
- [2] Sawada, K., & Kotera, T. (1974). A method for finding N-soliton solutions for the KdV equation and Kdv-like equation. Prog. Theory Phys., 51, 1355–1367.
- [3] Lax, P.D. (1968). Integrals of nonlinear equations of evolution and solitary waves. Commun. Pure Appl. Math., 62, 467–490.
- [4] Fan, E. (2003). Uniformly constructing a series of explicit exact solutions to nonlinear equations in mathematical physics. Chaos, Solitons and Fractals, 16, 819-839.
- [5] Jimbo, M., & Miwa, T. (1983). Solitons and infinite-dimensional Lie algebras. Publ. Res. Inst. Math. Sci., 19, 943-1001.
- [6] Ito, M. (1980). An extension of nonlinear evolution equations of the K-dV (mK-dV) type to higher orders. J. Phys. Soc. Jpn., 49, 771-778.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: deryasucu@aksaray.edu.tr

Ocean Energy Conversion Analysis by Compressive Sensing

Ali Rıza Alan^{1⊠}, Cihan Bayındır^{1, 2}

¹ İstanbul Technical University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey. ² Boğaziçi University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey.

Abstract

Considering that many types of energy resources in the world are limited, it is inevitable to focus on renewable energy sources to meet the needs of the world's increasing population. Ocean energy is undoubtedly one of the most efficient resources among renewable energy sources in terms of its potential. It is created by winds as they blow across the seas, and this movement gives a helpful and characteristic convergence of energy in the ocean environment [1]. There are many studies in the literature that have been conducted about energy conversion and which are guiding for further studies [2-3]. Ocean wave energy conversion modeling methods are principally based on the basic wave parameters with some additional concepts. Although some concepts have been developed so far, with the advancing technology, scientists have sought superior solutions. The methods to be used to analyze ocean wave energy are as significant as obtaining the ocean energy itself, especially in the big data era for electricity generation and grid connection purposes. The compressive sensing (CS) technique, which outperforms the classical techniques since it uses a smaller number of samples [4-5], is one of the algorithms that can be used for such purposes. In this paper, we examine the utilization of the CS for the efficient analysis and assessment of ocean wave energy and ocean energy conversion in general. Using the time series of the wave energy flux given in an experimental study [6], the application of the CS proves to be an advantageous tool for the analysis and assessment of wave energy and ocean energy conversion. We discuss our findings and comment on their possible usage and applications.

Keywords: Ocean energy, wave energy, energy converter, compressive sensing

Acknowledgements

This work was supported by the Research Fund of the İstanbul Technical University. Project Code: MGA-2020-42544. Project Number: 42544.

- [1] Clément, A., McCullen, P., Falcão, A., Fiorentino, A., Gardner, F., et.al. (2002). Wave energy in Europe: current status and perspectives. Renewable and sustainable energy reviews, 6(5), 405-431.
- [2] Ruellan, M., BenAhmed, H., Multon, B., Josset, C., Babarit, A., & Clement, A. (2010). Design methodology for a SEAREV wave energy converter. IEEE Transactions on Energy Conversion, 25(3), 760-767.
- [3] Moretti, G., Rosati Papini, G. P., Daniele, L., Forehand, D., Ingram, D., Vertechy, R., & Fontana, M. (2019). Modelling and testing of a wave energy converter based on dielectric elastomer generators. Proceedings of the Royal Society A, 475(2222), 20180566.
- [4] Candès, E. J., Romberg, J., & Tao, T. (2006). Robust uncertainty principles: Exact signal reconstruction from highly incomplete frequency information. IEEE Transactions on information theory, 52(2), 489-509.
- [5] Candès, E. J. (2006). Compressive sampling. Proceedings of the international congress of mathematicians, 3, 1433-1452.
- [6] Huang, Z. C., Lenain, L., Melville, W. K., Middleton, J. H., Reineman, B., Statom, N., & McCabe, R. M. (2012). Dissipation of wave energy and turbulence in a shallow coral reef lagoon. Journal of Geophysical Research: Oceans, 117(C3).

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>alan21@itu.edu.tr</u>

Stabilizing the Self-Localized Solitons of the Kundu-Eckhaus Equation by Dissipation

Hazal Yurtbak ^{1⊠}, Cihan Bayındır ^{2,3}

¹Czech Technical University, Mathematical Engineering Department, Prague, Czechia ²İstanbul Technical University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey. ³Boğaziçi University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey.

Abstract

The Kundu-Eckhaus equation (KEE) is a nonlinear partial differential equation in the nonlinear Schrödinger equation (NLSE) class. This equation was introduced to the scientific literature independently by Kundu [1] and Eckhaus [2]. It is well-known that KEE admits many different analytical solutions like the NLSE. Those solutions of the KEE are widely used in fields such as nonlinear optics, fiber optical waveforms, water waves mechanics, and hydraulics, just to name a few. In this study, the effect of loss/gain on the soliton solutions of the KEE has been investigated. With this aim, we study the dissipative Kundu-Eckhaus equation (dKEE) [4-5]. We analyze the effects of dissipation in the form of a loss term on the self-localized solitons of the dKEE. For this purpose, we propose a Petviashvili method (PM) for the numerical construction of the soliton solution of the dKEE [6]. Using PM, we first numerically compute the soliton solutions of the dKEE and discuss their properties. Then, we analyze the effects of dissipation on the dynamics and stabilities of those soliton using a split-step Fourier method (SSFM) implemented for time-stepping purposes. We show that the dKEE equation admits one and two soliton solutions for zero potential and for photorefractive potential $(V = I_0 \| \cos \| ^2(x))$ cases. Since the solitons under the photorefractive potentials turned out to be unstable during temporal evolution, we introduce and discuss the effects of dissipation on the dynamics and stabilization of those solitons. The effects of dissipation on soliton characteristics and power are also discussed.

Keywords: Dissipative Kundu-Eckhaus equation, Petviahvili method, Split-step Fourier scheme, solitons.

References

- [1] Kundu, A. (1984). Landau&Lifshitz and higher-order nonlinear systems gauge generated from nonlinear Schrödinger-type equations. Journal of Mathematical Physics, 25, 3433-3438.
- [2] Eckhaus, W. (1986). The long-time behaviour for perturbed wave-equations and related problems. In: Kröner E., Kirchgässner K. (eds) Trends in Applications of Pure Mathematics to Mechanics. Lecture Notes in Physics, vol 249. Springer, Berlin, Heidelberg.
- [3] Demiray, H. (2003). An analytical solution to the dissipative nonlinear Schrödinger equation. Applied Mathematics and Computation, 145 (1), 179-184.
- [4] Bayındır, C. & Yurtbak, H. (2021). A split-step Fourier scheme for the dissipative Kundu-Eckhaus equation and its rogue wave dynamics. TWMS Journal of Applied and Engineering Mathematics, 11 (1), 56-65.
- [5] Yurtbak, H. (2019). Analytical and numerical analysis of the dissipative Kundu-Eckhaus equation, MS Thesis, FMV Işık University. Available from: https://acikerisim.isikun.edu.tr/xmlui/handle/11729/841/browse?value=Yurtbak%2C+Hazal&type=author
- [6] Petviashvili, V.I. (1976). Equation of an extraordinary soliton. Soviet Journal of Plasma Physics, 257 (2).

_ _

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>yurtbakhazal@gmail.com</u>

Anemia Prediction Based on Logistic Model Tree Method

Arshed A. Ahmad^{1⊠}, Ihsan Salman¹, Murat Sari², Mohammed S. Mohammed¹, Hande Uslu²

¹Diyala University, Computer Department, Diyala, Iraq ²Yildiz Technical University, Mathematics Department, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Healthcare problems require efficient implementation for building a disease prediction system in medical institutes to be helpful for diagnosis or even for treatment process. This study therefore aims to predict anemia from a population through biomedical variables. So, the anemia prediction system are enhanced here by using three different techniques; Hoeffding Tree, Logistic Model Tree (LMT), and Random Tree. To achieve this, a dataset consisting of 539 subjects [1,2] has been considered under the consideration of useful features. Applying attribute selector on the present methods provides lower cost, faster prediction and more accurate than just a traditional method. The LMT has provided higher accuracy comparison to other two techniques due to, more importantly, advantage of combination a tree and logistic regression [3-7].

Keywords: Anemia, Logistic Model Tree, Hoeffding Tree, Random Tree, Prediction

- [1] Ahmad A.A., & Sari, M. (2020). Anemia Prediction with Multiple Regression Support in System Medicinal Internet of Things. Journal of Medical Imaging and Health Informatics, 10(1), 261-267.
- [2] Ahmad, A.A., & Sari, M. (2019). Parameter Estimation to an Anemia Model Using the Particle Swarm Optimization. Sigma: Journal of Engineering & Natural Sciences, 37(4), 1331-1343.
- [3] Hamdi, T., Ali, J.B., Di Costanzo, V., Fnaiech, F., Moreau, E., & Ginoux, J.M. (2018). Accurate Prediction of Continuous Blood Glucose Based on Support Vector Regression and Differential Evolution Algorithm. Biocybernetics and Biomedical Engineering, 38(2), 362-72.
- [4] Dauvin, A., Donado, C., Bachtiger, P., Huang, K.C., Sauer, C.M., Ramazzotti, D., Bonvini, M., Celi, L.A., & Douglas, M.J. (2019). Machine Learning Can Accurately Predict Pre-Admission Baseline Hemoglobin and Creatinine in Intensive Care Patients. NPJ Digital Medicine, 2(1), 1-10.
- [5] Zou, Q., Qu, K., Luo, Y., Yin, D., Ju, Y., & Tang, H. (2018). Predicting Diabetes Mellitus with Machine Learning Techniques. Frontiers in Genetics, 9, 515.
- [6] Martínez-Martínez, J.M., Escandell-Montero, P., Barbieri, C., Soria-Olivas, E., Mari, F., Martínez-Sober, M., Amato, C., López, A.J., Bassi, M., Magdalena-Benedito, R., Stopper, A. (2014). Prediction of the Hemoglobin Level in Hemodialysis Patients Using Machine Learning Techniques. Computer Methods and Programs in Biomedicine, 117(2), 208-217.
- [7] Laengsri, V., Shoombuatong, W., Adirojananon, W., Nantasenamart, C., Prachayasittikul, V., & Nuchnoi, P. (2019). ThalPred: A Web-Based Prediction Tool for Discriminating Thalassemia Trait and Iron Deficiency Anemia. BMC Medical Informatics and Decision Making, 19(1), 212.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: arshed980@gmail.com

Prediction of Anemia through Particle Swarm Optimization

Arshed A. Ahmad^{1⊠}, Khalid M. Saffer², Murat Sari³, Hande Uslu³

¹Diyala University, Computer Department, Diyala, Iraq ¹Diyala University, Computer Science Department, Diyala, Iraq ²Yildiz Technical University, Mathematics Department, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Healthcare needs the maintenance or improvement of health via the prevention, diagnosis, treatment, and other physical and mental cares for people. So, anemia is one of the most common health issues at this era. This paper aims at estimating pathological individuals from a population through various biomedical variables by using particle swarm optimization (PSO). Dataset consisting of some blood variables (eight blood variables, sex, and age) and output (anemia types) and conducted in terms of data set consisting of 539 subjects [1,2]. Biomedical variables are used to forecast anemia types as independent parameters. Since the PSO starts randomly and walks all solution space, the produced results in terms of the proposed PSO algorithm seem to be reasonably good for predicting anemia types with large number of the biomedical variables [3-7].

Keywords: Anemia, Particle Swarm Optimization, Prediction

- [1] Ahmad, A.A., & Sari, M. (2019). Parameter Estimation to an Anemia Model Using the Particle Swarm Optimization. Sigma: Journal of Engineering & Natural Sciences, 37(4), 1331-1343.
- [2] Ahmad, A.A., Sari, M., & Coşgun, T. (2020). A Medical Modelling Using Multiple Linear Regression. In Mathematical Modelling and Optimization of Engineering Problems, Springer, Cham, 71-87.
- [3] Sari, M., Tuna, C., & Akogul, S. (2018). Prediction of Tibial Rotation Pathologies Using Particle Swarm Optimization and K-Means Algorithms. Journal of Clinical Medicine, 7(4), 65.
- [4] Jaiswal, M., Srivastava, A., & Siddiqui, T.J. (2019). Machine Learning Algorithms for Anemia Disease Prediction. In Recent Trends in Communication, Computing, and Electronics, Springer, Singapore, 463-469.
- [5] Liu, X., & Fu, H. (2014). PSO-Based Support Vector Machine with Cuckoo Search Technique for Clinical Disease Diagnoses. The Scientific World Journal.
- [6] Kennedy, J., & Eberhart, R. (1995). Particle Swarm Optimization. In Proceedings of IEEE International Conference on Neural Networks, 4, 1942-1948, IEEE.
- [7] Soliman, O.S., & Aboelhamd, E. (2014). Classification Of Diabetes Mellitus Using Modified Particle Swarm Optimization And Least Squares Support Vector Machine. arXiv preprint arXiv:1405.0549.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: arshed980@gmail.com

Effects of Anemia Features on Data Mining Performances

Mohammed S. Mohammed ^{1⊠}, Ahmed Kh. Abbas¹, Murat Sari², Arshed A. Ahmad¹, Hande Uslu²

¹University of Diyala, Computer Department, Diyala, Iraq ²Yildiz Technical University, Mathematics Department, Istanbul, 34220, Turkey

Abstract

Implementation of a single system of machine learning methods for biomedical problems has been affected by disease features. Anemia is one of the diseases that need a fast and accurate diagnosis to prevent it or just to reduce possible danger in early stages. This talk aims to investigate if there is a relation between the biomedical factors through on developing machine learning prediction by specifying which techniques are mainly affected by blood variables [1,2]. Neglecting the less effective features of the patients leads to the reduction of cost and time and improve system performance. Relatively less maount of data needs accurate techniques to deal with it regardless of the number of features [3-8].

Keywords: Anemia, Data Mining, Biomedical variables

- [1] Ahmad, A.A., Sari, M., & Cosgun, T. (2020). A Medical Modelling Using Multiple Linear Regression. In Mathematical Modelling and Optimization of Engineering Problems, Springer, Cham, 71-87.
- [2] Sari, M., & Ahmad, A.A. (2019). Anemia Modelling Using the Multiple Regression Analysis. International Journal of Analysis and Applications, 17(5), 838-849.
- [3] Dithy, M.D., & KrishnaPriya, V. (2019). Anemia Selection in Pregnant Women by using Random prediction (Rp) Classification Algorithm. International Journal of Recent Technology and Engineering, 8(2), 2623-2630.
- [4] Abdullah, M., & Al-Asmari S. (2017). Anemia Types Prediction Based on Data Mining Classification Algorithms. Communication, Management and Information Technology–Sampaio de Alencar (Ed.).
- [5] Yu, C.H., Bhatnagar, M., Hogen, R., Mao, D., Farzindar, A., & Dhanireddy, K. (2017). Anemic Status Prediction using Multilayer Perceptron Neural Network Model. InGCAI, 50, 213-220.
- [6] Neto, C., Brito, M., Lopes, V., Peixoto, H., Abelha, A., & Machado, J. (2019). Application of Data Mining for the Prediction of Mortality and Occurrence of Complications for Gastric Cancer Patients. Entropy, 21(12), 1163
- [7] Hasani, M., & Hanani, A. (2017). Automated Diagnosis of Iron Deficiency Anemia and Thalassemia by Data Mining Techniques. International Journal of Computer Science and Network Security (IJCSNS), 17(4), 326-331
- [8] El-Halees, A.M., & Shurrab, A.H. (2017). Blood Tumor Prediction Using Data Mining Techniques. Health Informatics An International Journal (HIIJ), 6(2), 23-30.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: mohammed sami9@yahoo.com

Random Forest Regression Model Extended by Alternative Model Selection Procedure

Mehmet Ali Kaygusuz[⊠], Vilda Purutçuoğlu

 Middle East Technicial University, Department of Statistics, Ankara, Turkey
 Middle East Technicial University, Department of Statistics and Department of Bioengineering, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Multiple testing procedures are very popular in recent years due to te huge amount of data in genetics, engineering and finance. In order to construct proper models for those data, different approaches are suggested. More recently, Candes et al. (2018) propose the conditional randomization tests (CRT) while there is no distributional assumption about the model. On the other hand, Tansey et al. (2019) suggest the hold-out-randomization test by using both bootstrap and cross validation algorithms. Previously, the causal additive model for the high dimensional regression is presented by Buehlmann et al. (2014). Then, Heize-Deml et al. (2018) study independent test for the causal additive model. Currently, Bates et al. (2020) apply the Model-X knockoff filter for these models. Hereby, in this study, we investigate the computational cost and statistical properties of the random forest model which is one of the well-known causal addive regression approaches. In our analyses, we detect its accuracy by using two distinct model selection criteria, namely, consistent Akaike information criterion (AIC) with Fisher information matrix and Information and COMPlexity criterion (ICOMP). We evaluate the performance of the underlying extended model via protein-protein interaction networks' datasets under different dimensions and compare the results via the original random forest model.

Keywords: Causality, nonparametric regression, independent test, model selection.

- [1] Bates, S., Messia, M., Sabatti, C. and Candes, E, (2020). Causal inference in Genetic Trio Studies, ArXiv.
- [2] Buehlmann, P., Peters, J. and Ernst, J., (2014). CAM: Causal Additive Models, High dimensional order search and penalized regression, The Annals of Statistics, 42(6), 2526-2556.
- [3] Candes, E.J., Fan, Y., Janson, L and Lv, J., (2018). Panning for gold: Model-X knockoff for high dimensional variable selection, The Journal of Royal Statistical Society: Series B, 80(3), 551-577.
- [4] Heinze-Deml, C., Peters, J. and Meinhausen, N., (2018). Invariant causal prediction for nonlinear modelss, Journal of Causal Inference, 6(2), 361-375.
- [5] Tansey, W., Veitch, V., Zhang, H., Rabadan, R., and Blei, R.M., (2019). the holdout randomization test: principled and easy block-box feature selection, ArXiv.

 $^{^{\}bowtie}$ Corresponding Author Email: $\underline{vpurutcu@metu.edu.tr}$

Deep Learning with Multivariate Adaptive Regression Spline with Bagging Methods

Mehmet Ali Kaygusuz¹, Abdullah Nuri Somuncuoğlu², Vilda Purutçuoğlu ^{⊠1,2}

Middle East Technical University, Department of Statistics, Ankara, Turkey
 Middle East Technical University, Department of Biomedical Engineering, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Deep learning methods have huge success in application in the recent years. Bauer and Kohler et al. (2020) studied the relationship between deep generative networks and Multivariate adaptive regression spline (MARS) regression in low dimensionality. On the other hand, this problem can be very difficult when the number of parameter is more than the number of samples which is called the overparametrized problem. The main purpose of this study is to investigate the computational and statistical properties of deep learning with the MARS regression in such a way that the classified object via deep learning will be modelled by MARS whose model selection will be further optimized by information complexity approach (Koc and Bozdogan, 2015). By this way the plausible groups in the data can be detected, resulting in better fitting when MARS is implemented within each group separately. Because, MARS has a great flexibility to explain explanatory variables with the help of spline functions (Friedman, 1991). Moreover, to cope with the problem of bias-variance trade-off in the calculation, bagging (Bootstrap aggreating) methods (Breiman, 1991) may be more appropriate for the MARS regression (Buehlmann and Yu (2002)) since bagging approaches are variance reduction techniques and have less computational cost. In our assessment, we examine our proposal approaches in different dimensional protein-protein interaction networks data and distinct biomedical signal datasets.

Keywords: Deep learning, Bagging methods, MARS regression.

- [1] Breiman, (1996). Bagging predictors, Machine learning, 24(2), 123-140.
- [2] Buehlmann, P and Yu, B., (2002). Analyzing bagging, The Annals of Statistics, 30(3), 927-961.
- [3] Friedman, J.H., (1991). Multivariate adaptive regression spline, The Annals of Statistics, 19(1), 1-141.
- [4] Koc, E.K. and Bozdogan, H., (2015). Model selection in multivariate adaptive regression spline (MARS) using information complexity as the fitness function, Machine Learning, 101, 35-58.
- [5] Kohler, M., Kryzak, A., Langer, S., (2020). Estimation of a function of low local dimensionality by deep neural networks, Arxiv

Corresponding Author Email: <u>vpurutcu@metu.edu.tr</u>

The Effects of Turbulent Fluctuations on Nonlinear von Kármán Vortex Shedding

Kubilay Ateş^{1⊠}, Cihan Bayındır^{2, 3}

¹Yıldız Technical University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey. ²İstanbul Technical University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey. ³Boğaziçi University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey.

Abstract

Flows around bluff bodies generate wakes and vortices downstream of flow. This phenomenon is known as vortex shedding and such vortices are generally named as von Kármán vortices after Theodore von Kármán. Although such a phenomenon is introduced to the scientific literature by the study of fluid flows, it is also observed in other fields such as Bose-Einstein condensation. Due to the complexity of the governing equations and involved complex geometries, such phenomena are generally studied numerically using different software and various turbulent modeling techniques. One of the other commonly utilized models for the study of nonlinear vortex shedding is the complex Ginzburg-Landau (GL) equation [1-4]. This dynamic equation is an equation in the nonlinear Schrödinger class and also appears in various other branches of science. In this paper, we investigate the effects of turbulent fluctuations on the vortex shedding in the frame of the GL equation. With this aim, we solve the GL equation using a spectral scheme with a 4th order Runge-Kutta time integrator. For the spectral solution, efficient FFT routines are employed. We analyze the possible modulation instabilities causes by turbulent fluctuations, their effects on the regular stable vortices, and possible rogue vortex formation [5-6]. We also study the dynamics and statistics of such vortices under the effect of turbulent fluctuations. Our findings can be used for controlling, mitigating, or resonating the vortices and wake for many different engineering purposes including but are not limited to structural safety and serviceability considerations, noise reduction, energy harvesting, just to name a few.

Keywords: Vortex shedding, Ginzburg-Landau equation, turbulent fluctuations, spectral method

- [1] Gillies, E. A. (1998). Low-dimensional control of the circular cylinder wake. Journal of Fluid Mechanics, 371, 157-178.
- [2] Roussopoulos, K., & Monkewitz, P.A. (1996). Nonlinear Modeling of Vortex Shedding Control in Cylinder Wakes. Physica D, 97, 264-273.
- [3] Gillies, E.A. (2001). Multiple Sensor Control of Vortex Shedding, AIAA Journal, 39 (4), 748-750.
- [4] Cohen, K., Siegel, S., McLaughling, T. & Myatt, J. (2003). Fuzzy logic control of circular cylinder vortex shedding model, 41st Aerospace Sciences Meeting and Exhibit AIAA 2003-1290.
- [5] Bayındır, C. (2016). Rogue waves of the Kundu-Eckhaus equation in a chaotic wavefield, Phys. Rev. E., 93, 032201.
- [6] Bayındır, C. (2016). Rogue wave spectra of the Kundu-Eckhaus equation, Phys. Rev. E., 93, 062215.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: 14918015@std.yildiz.edu.tr

Numerical Solution Method for Delay Chemical Master Equation

Derya Altıntan[⊠]

Selcuk University, Mathematics. Department, Konya, Turkey

Abstract

The Chemical Master Equation (CME) or Kolmogorov forward equation is a system of Ordinary Differential Equation (ODEs) that explains the random dynamics of different stochastic processes modeled by Continuous-Time Markov Chains (CTMCs). For each state in the system, CME produces a new differential equation. As a result of this fact, the size of the system of the differential equation increases exponentially with the number of states. Therefore, numerical methods are needed to obtain numerical solutions of the CME [4]. The dynamics of some stochastic processes such as cellular processes, biochemical reactions etc. at given specific time can hinge on the dynamics of the earlier times. This issue necessitates the extension of the CME to a delay CME, namely, the Delay Chemical Master Equation (DCME) [3]. Similar to the CME, DCME produces Delay Differential Equation (DDE) system whose size depends on the number of states in the system. Therefore, DCME also suffers from the curse of dimensionality.

In this study, we propose a Runge-Kutta method to obtain numerical solutions of the DCME [1,2] and implement the method to biochemical reaction systems.

Keywords: Chemical master equation, delay differential equations, delay chemical master equation

- [1] Hout K. J. in 't (1992). A new interpolation procedure for adapting Runge-Kutta methods to delay differential equations. BIT 32:634–649.
- [2] Hu, G.-D., Meguid, S.A. (1999). Stability of Runge-Kutta methods for delay differential systems with multiple delays. IMA J. of Numerical Analysis 19:349–356.
- [3] Leier, A. & Marquez-Lago, T. T. (2015). Delay chemical master equation: direct and closed-form solutions. Proc. Math. Phys. Eng. Sci., 471, 20150049
- [4] Mikeev, L., Sandmann, W. (2019). Approximate numerical integration of the chemical master equation for stochastic reaction networks. arXiv preprint arXiv:1907.10245

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>altintan@selcuk.edu.tr</u>

The Interaction of Von Kármán Vortices with the Solitons of the Complex Ginzburg-Landau Equation

Sofi Farazande^{1⊠}, Cihan Bayındır^{1,2}

¹Boğaziçi University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey ²İstanbul Technical University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey

Abstract

The complex Ginzburg-Landau (GL) equation is a well-known equation in various areas of physics that is also widely used to model vortex shedding phenomena occurring around a bluff body in a flow field, which is named as von Kármán vortex street [1-2]. In addition, it describes nonlinear waves, secondorder phase transitions, superconductivity, superfluidity, Bose-Einstein condensation, liquid crystals, and strings in field theory, etc. [3]. Moreover, the GL equation can be utilized to find soliton solutions of many nonlinear systems [4]. Solitons are self-localized, solitary, nonlinear wave which emerges from a collision with a similar pulse having unchanged shape and speed [5]. Most of its applications lie in the domains of optics and fluid mechanics, which are attained by solutions of some familiar partial differential equations as Korteweg-de-Vries, modified Korteweg-de-Vries, Sine-Gordon and nonlinear Schrödinger equations [6], apart from GL equation. In the present study, we aim to analyze the interaction of the soliton solutions of the GL equation with von Kármán vortex street. For this purpose, we solve the GL equation to obtain the vortex shedding, by adopting a spectral scheme using FFT routines for the space derivative, and a 4th order Runge-Kutta time-stepping method. Subsequently, we construct the soliton solutions of GL either using analytical techniques [4] and/or numerical Petviashvili method, and superpose them with vortex figures to observe their interaction. We investigate how the vortex structure and stability are affected and whether the vortex fluctuations are reduced by the solitons. We analyze the spectral properties of their interactions and the mechanisms that lead to changes in vortex shedding. We discuss our findings and their possible usage in controlling the vortices by solitons for structural damage prevention and resonating for energy harvesting.

Keywords: von Kármán vortex, solitons of Ginzburg-Landau equation, numerical model, soliton-vortex interaction

References

- [1] Roussopoulos, K., & Monkewitz, P. A., (1996) Nonlinear Modeling of Vortex Shedding Control in Cylinder Wakes. Physica D, 97, 264-273.
- [2] Cohen, K., Siegel, S., McLaughling, T. & Myatt, J., (2003). Fuzzy logic control of circular cylinder vortex shedding model, 41st Aerospace Sciences Meeting and Exhibit AIAA 2003-1290.
- [3] Aranson, I. S. & Kramer, L., (2002). The world of the complex Ginzburg-Landau equation. Rev. Mod. Phys. 74, 99.
- [4] Akhmediev, N. & Ankiewicz, A., (2001). Solitons of the complex Ginzburg-Landau equation. Spatial Solutions, 311-341.
- [5] Scott, A. C., Chu, F. Y. F. & Mc Laughlin, D. W., (1973). The soliton: A new concept in applied science. Proceeding of the IEEE, 61, 1443-1483.
- [6] Helal, M. A., (2002). Solution solutions of some nonlinear partial differential equations and its applications in fluid mechanics. Chaos, Solitons & Fractals, 13, 1917-1929.

. .

Corresponding Author Email: sofi.farazande@boun.edu.tr

Inference and Marginalization Algorithms for Jump Diffusion Approximation

Derya Altıntan^{1,⊠}, Heinz Koeppl²

¹Selcuk University, Mathematics. Department, Konya, Turkey ²Department of Electrical Engineering and Information Technology, Technische Universitat, Darmstadt, Darmstadt, Germany

Abstract

In cellular reaction systems, the abundance of species and the speed of reactions can change in a wide range. To exploit this multi-scale nature, we presented jump diffusion approximation which couples Markov updating algorithm with diffusion (Langevin) approach updating algorithm based on an error bound [3]. We also proved that the joint probability distribution of this hybrid model satisfies the hybrid master equation [1]. It is not always possible to know all states/parameters of cellular reaction systems. Therefore, inference algorithms are needed to estimate the unknown quantities. In this study, we develop bootstrap filtering/smoothing algorithms for reaction systems whose probability density function satisfies the hybrid master equation [2]. Isogenic cells, grown in the same environment, can be very different from each other. This variability is the result of intrinsic noise which refers to the inherent randomness hidden in the particular process and extrinsic noise which refers to the effect of other cellular processes in the reaction system under consideration. In this study, we also propose a mathematical framework that uncouples the reaction network modeled by jump-diffusion approximation from its extrinsic noise by using marginalization [4]. We implement all proposed algorithms to different types of reaction systems.

Keywords: Jump diffusion approximation, hybrid master equation, filtering/smoothing algorithms.

Acknowledgements

This work is supported by the Scientific and Technological Research Council of Turkey (TÜBİTAK) Program no:3501 Grant, no. 115E252.

- [1] Altıntan, D., Koeppl, H. (2020). Hybrid Master Equation for Jump-Diffusion Approximation of Biomolecular Reaction Networks. BIT Numerical Mathematics, 60, 261-294.
- [2] Doucet, A., Johansen, A. M. (2011). A tutorial on particle filtering and smoothing: Fifteen years later. Nonlinear Filtering Handbook. Editörler: Crisan, D., Rozovsky, B. Oxford University Press.
- [3] Ganguly A., Altıntan D., Koeppl H. (2015). Jump-diffusion approximation of stochastic reaction dynamics: Error bounds and algorithms. SIAM Journal of Multiscale Modeling and Simulations, 13(4) 1390-1419.
- [4] Zechner, C., Koeppl, H. (2014). Uncoupled analysis of stochastic reaction networks in fluctuating environments, PLoS Comput Biol, 10, e1003942.

Corresponding Author Email: altintan@selcuk.edu.tr

Variation of Critical Buckling Load in Beam Structures Depending on Damage Region and Direction

Can Gonenli^{1⊠}

¹ Ege University, Ege Vocational School, Machine Drawing and Construction Department, Izmir, Turkey

Abstract

Beam structures are the primary elements of many engineering designs. It is well known that defects lead to different dynamic effects on the structures, and they may cause those structures to fail. In this context, many researchers have investigated the effects of damages on different types of structures [1-3]. Also, some researchers investigated the critical buckling load of the structures, which is one of the dynamic characteristics of engineering designs [4-6]. In this study, the buckling analysis of steel beam structures with two different cross-sectional areas, one square (50x50 mm) and one rectangular (50x25 mm) is performed for the first three critical buckling loads by employing SolidWorks. In the buckling analysis of the square section beam with a length of 1 meter, the fixed dimensions of the cut-out (10x10 mm) are added separately to nine different points, and the buckling analysis is repeated. The buckling analysis is repeated in the rectangular section beam by adding the fixed damage at nine different points in two different directions. It has been determined that the critical buckling load of the structure varies according to the region and direction of the damage. While the effect of the damage on the bending zones of the structure is greater due to the buckling mode, the damage has no effect in the regions that are not affected by the relevant buckling mode. In addition, it seems possible to determine the region of damage by using dynamic characteristics in future studies.

Keywords: Buckling, beam, damage

- [1] Qian, G. L., Gu, S. N., & Jiang, J. S. (1991). A finite element model of cracked plates and application to vibration problems. Computers & Structures, 39(5), 483–487.
- [2] Krawczuk, M. (1993). A rectangular plate finite element with an open crack. Computers & Structures, 46(3), 487-493.
- [3] Zeng, H. C., Huang, C. S., Leissa, A. W., & Chang, M. J. (2016). Vibrations and stability of a loaded side-cracked rectangular plate via the MLS-Ritz method. Thin-Walled Structures, 106, 459–470.
- [4] Huang, C. S., Lee, M. C., & Chang, M. J. (2018). Vibration and Buckling Analysis of Internally Cracked Square Plates by the MLS-Ritz Approach. International Journal of Structural Stability and Dynamics, 18(09), 1850105.
- [5] Analooei, H. R., Azhari, M., Foroushani-Sarrami, S., & Heidarpour, A. (2020). On the vibration and buckling analysis of quadrilateral and triangular nanoplates using nonlocal spline finite strip method. Journal of the Brazilian Society of Mechanical Sciences and Engineering, 42(4).
- [6] Anamagh, M. R., & Bediz, B. (2020). Free vibration and buckling behavior of functionally graded porous plates reinforced by graphene platelets using spectral Chebyshev approach. Composite Structures. 253, 112765.

Corresponding Author Email: can.gonenli@ege.edu.tr

A Bidirectional Generalized Synchronization of Nonlinear Advection-Diffusion-Reaction Processes

Shko Ali Tahir^{1⊠}, Murat Sari²

University of Sulaimani, Department of Mathematics, Sulaimani, İraq
 Yildiz Technical University, Department of Mathematics, İstanbul, Turkey

Abstract

This research focuses on generalized synchronization (GS) of two dependent chaotic nonlinear advection-diffusion-reaction (ADR) processes with forcing term. Based on the drive-response concept, which bidirectionally coupled is derived. The approach combins backward differentiation formula-Spline (BDFS) scheme with the Lyapunov direct method. To illustrate the proposed approach, simulation examples based on the ADR equations that provide the synchronization and the observer conception are presented.

Keywords: Nonlinear ADR equations, generalized synchronization, BDFS method, Lyapunov direct method

- [1] Pecora, L.M. & Carroll, T.L. (1990). Synchronization in chaotic systems. Physical Review Letters. 64, 821-824.
- [2] Prasolov, A.V. (2015). A direct Lyapunov method for delay differential equations. International Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics. 4, 823-834.
- [3] Sari M., Tahir, S.A. & Bouhamid, A. (2019). Behaviour of advection-diffusion-reaction processes with forcing terms. Carpathian Journal of Mathematics. 35, 233-252.
- [4] Sari, M. & Tahir, S.A. (2020). Synchronization of the nonlinear advection-diffusion-reaction processes. Mathematical Methods in the Applied Sciences. 1, 1-15.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: shko.tahir@univsul.edu.iq

Bivariate Mittag-Leffler Functions and Associations with Fractional Calculus

Arran Fernandez^{1⊠}, Cemaliye Kürt¹, Mehmet Ali Özarslan¹

Abstract

The classical Mittag-Leffler function $E_{\alpha}(z)$, defined as a power series in one variable z with one parameter α , has deep and fundamental connections with fractional calculus. It appears naturally in the solutions of fractional differential equations, and it has been used as a kernel in some modern fractional operators. This function has been generalised to Mittag-Leffler functions with one variable z and two or more parameters, such as $E_{\alpha,\beta}(z)$, and these have also been studied in connection with fractional calculus.

We will discuss the extension of Mittag-Leffler functions to bivariate and multivariate versions, functions of two or more variables defined using double or multiple power series. Several authors have defined such functions and studied their basic mathematical properties [1,2,3], but there are many different aspects to the study of bivariate Mittag-Leffler functions which are only just emerging now.

In particular, we will focus on one bivariate Mittag-Leffler function which arose naturally from applications in bioengineering, and on the associated operators of fractional calculus defined using this function in the kernel [4]. This function appears as the solution to some elementary fractional differential equations with two independent fractional orders of differentiation, and its Laplace transform is in a useful and easily manipulable form. The associated fractional integral operators have a semigroup property which enables corresponding fractional derivative operators to be defined in a natural way. The resulting model of fractional calculus can be used in bioengineering applications.

Keywords: fractional calculus, Mittag-Leffler functions, bivariate Mittag-Leffler functions

- [1] Saxena, R.K., Kalla, S.L., & Saxena, R. (2011). Multivariate analogue of generalised Mittag-Leffler function. Integral Transforms and Special Functions, 22(7), 533–548.
- [2] Garg, M., Manohar, P., & Kalla, S.L. (2013). A Mittag-Leffler-type function of two variables. Integral Transforms and Special Functions, 24(11), 934–944.
- [3] Özarslan, M.A., & Kürt, C. (2019). Bivariate Mittag-Leffler functions arising in the solutions of convolution integral equation with 2D-Laguerre-Konhauser polynomials in the kernel. Applied Mathematics and Computation, 347, 631–644.
- [4] Fernandez, A., Kürt, C., & Özarslan, M.A. (2020). A naturally emerging bivariate Mittag-Leffler function and associated fractional-calculus operators. Computational and Applied Mathematics, 39, 200.

¹ Department of Mathematics, Eastern Mediterranean University, Famagusta, Northern Cyprus

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>arran.fernandez@emu.edu.tr</u>

International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering (ICAME) September 1-3, 2021 - Balikesir, Turkey

Solving Nabla Fractional Partial Difference Equations Using Discrete Homotopy **Analysis Method**

Figen Özpınar ^{1⊠}

¹ Afyon Kocatepe University, Bolvadin Vocational School, Afyonkarahisar, Turkey

Abstract

Fractional calculus has been of considerable interest in numerous fields of science and engineering, such as electrical networks, chemical physics, optics and signal processing, diffusion, viscoelasticity, and so on. Nabla fractional is a discretized version of the fractional derivative. Discrete fractional calculus has been recognized as a powerful instrument to explore the secret ways of physical processes and various materials, expressed by discrete versions of integrals and derivatives of arbitrary orders, called fractional sums and differences. We propose the discrete homotopy analysis method to solve linear and nonlinear nabla fractional initial value problems in the present paper. Nabla fractional differences are described by Caputo's sense. To illustrate the applicability of our approach, we apply the discrete homotopy analysis method to nabla fractional partial difference equations with initial value problems. Obtained results show that the approaches are easy to apply and accurate when implemented to time-fractional difference equations. Unlike the other analytical techniques, the discrete homotopy analysis method is independent of small/large physical parameters. Since the discrete homotopy analysis method has many advantages compared to other analytical methods, it is employed to solve linear and nonlinear nabla fractional initial value problems. The discrete homotopy analysis method contains the auxiliary parameter, which provides a simple way to guarantee the convergence region of the solution series. This method is quite powerful in solving wide classes of nabla fractional partial difference equations.

Keywords: Discrete homotopy analysis method, nabla fractional sum, Caputo-like nabla fractional difference, nabla difference equations.

- [1] Abdeljawad, T. (2013). On Delta and nabla Caputo fractional differences and dual identities. Discrete Dynamics in Nature and Society, 2013, Article ID 406910, 12 pages.
- [2] Atici, F.M., & Eloe, P.W. (2007). Discrete fractional calculus with the nabla operator. Electronic Journal of Qualitative Theory of Differential Equations, 3, 1–12.
- [3] Caputo, M. (1967). Linear models of dissipition whose Q is almost independent, II, Geophys. J. Roy. Astron. 13, 529–539.
- [4] Liao, S.J. (1992). The Proposed Homotopy Analysis Technique for the Solution of Nonlinear Problems. PhD Thesis, Shanghai Jiao Tong University.
- [5] Özpınar, F. (2018). Applying discrete homotopy analysis method for solving fractional partial differential equations. Entropy, 20(5), 332.
- [6] Özpınar, F. (2018). Solving fractional difference equations by discrete Adomian decomposition method. Journal of Balıkesir University Institute of Science and Technology, 20(3), 15-22.
- [7] Özpınar, F. & Belgacem, F.B.M. (2019). The discrete homotopy perturbation Sumudu transform method for solving partial difference equations. Discrete Continuous Dynamical Systems - S, 12(3), 615-624.
- [8] Podlubny, I. (1999). Fractional Differential Equations, Academic Press: San Diego.
- [9] Zhu, H., Shu, H.& Ding, M. (2010). Numerical solutions of partial differential equations by discrete homotopy analysis method. Appl. Math. Comput., 216, 3592–3605.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>fozpinar@aku.edu.tr</u>

Numerical Computation of Measure-Valued Solutions to a Hyperbolic Fokker-Planck Equation Subject to Nonlocal Boundary Conditions

Hidekazu Yoshioka^{1⊠}, Kunihiko Hamagami², Haruka Tomobe³

Shimane University, Graduate School of Natural Science and Technology, Matsue, Japan
 Iwate University, Faculty of Agriculture, Morioka, Japan
 Tokyo Institute of Technology, Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering, Kanagawa, Japan

Abstract

Fokker-Planck equations are partial integro-differential equations (PIDEs) governing probability densities of stochastic dynamics. Numerical computation of a Fokker-Planck equation is an important topic in both science and engineering because probability densities characterize macroscopic system dynamics. Stochastic dynamics driven by Lévy processes [1] were extensively studied as they are representative white noise processes; however, dynamics driven by non-standard noises, such as the continuous-state branching processes with immigration (CBI processes in short) [2], have not been studied well. We derive and analyze a Fokker-Planck equation of a nonsmooth stochastic dynamical system governing macroscopic hydrodynamics and sediment storage in aquatic environments, such as rivers, lakes, and seas. The former dynamics is represented by a CBI process, while the latter by simple nonsmooth storage dynamics where the nonsmoothness comes from a physical constraint that there is no sediment transport when the sediment is depleted. We consider an urgent engineering problem where the sediment is replenished randomly if the storage is below a threshold. The resulting Fokker-Planck equation is a unique hyperbolic PIDE having a singular integral subject to nonlocal boundary conditions, and admits measure-valued solutions in a Radon's sense. The equation has not been found in the literature so far. Based on experimental data, we present demonstrative computational examples of the equation using a globally-conservative finite volume scheme and apply it to the evaluation of replenishment schemes to suppress the bloom of nuisance benthic algae in a river. Future research direction coupling micro-macro dynamics and regularity of physical coefficients are also discussed.

Keywords: Nonsmooth stochastic dynamics, Fokker-Planck equation, Sediment replenishment

Acknowledgements

The Yanmar Environmental Sustainability Support Association (No. KI0212021), Environmental Research Projects from the Sumitomo Foundation (No. 203160), and a grant from MLIT Japan for management of seaweed in Lake Shinji support this research.

- [1] Kyprianou, A. E. (2014). Fluctuations of Lévy processes with Applications: Introductory Lectures. Springer, Berlin, Heidelberg.
- [2] Li, P. S., Yang, X., & Zhou, X. (2019). A general continuous-state nonlinear branching process. Annals of Applied Probability, 29(4), 2523–2555.

^{*} Corresponding Author Email: yoshih@life.shimane-u.ac.jp

The use of mathematical modeling to analyse fear factor for a stochastic pre-predator system with linear functional response

Aytül Gökçe^{1⊠}

¹Ordu University, Department of Mathematics, Ordu, Turkey

Abstract

In this presentation, a prey-predator model including the cost of fear in the prey dynamics is considered with a linear functional response [1]. The density of prey species may be affected not only from direct predation, e.g. through killing, but also as a result of indirect predation, e.g. physiological changes in prey species [2,3,4]. Firstly, the mathematical analyses show that change in the level of fear in prey population does not effect the local stability of the system around the equilibria. Numerical simulations given in this presentation is performed to analyse the relationship between prey populations as a function of different system parameters. As a result, only transcritical bifurcation has been observed. Secondly, the model is analysed with noise term incorporated in the prey's death rate. The presence of noise term turns the given prey-predator model into stochastic differential equation and non-periodic noise related oscillations can be observed in both prey and predator densities. The conditions for extinction of the species with noise is also numerically and mathematically analysed.

Keywords: Stability analysis, linear functional response, population dynamics, stochastic differential equations

- [1] Wang, X., Zanette, L., & Zou, X. (2016). Modeling the fear effect in predator-prey interactions. Journal of mathematical biology, 73(5), 1179-1204.
- [2] Cresswell, W. (2011). Predation in bird populations. Journal of Ornithology, 152(1), 251-263.
- [3] Preisser, E. L. & Bolnick, D. I. (2008). The many faces of fear: comparing the pathways and impacts of nonconsumptive predator effects on prey populations. PloS one, 3(6), e2465.
- [4] Upadhyay, R.K., & Mishra, S. (2018). Population dynamic consequences of fearful prey in a spatiotemporal predator-prey system. Mathematical biosciences and engineering: MBE, 16(1), 338-372.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: aytulgokce@odu.edu.tr; aytulgokceodu@gmail.com

Dynamics of a Diffusive Oxygen- Plankton Model with Time Lag Effect and its Stability Behaviour

Aytül Gökçe^{1⊠}, Samire Yazar¹, Yadigar Sekerci²

¹ Ordu University, Department of Mathematics, Ordu, Turkey ² Amasya University, Department of Mathematics, Amasya, Turkey

Abstract

In this presentation, we analyse a generic diffusive model of dissolved oxygen, phytoplankton and zooplankton species, for which constant time delays are incorporated in growth response of phytoplankton and in the gestation time of zooplankton [1, 2]. We mainly focus on the stability analysis of the coexisting states and the existence of Hopf bifurcation through the characteristic equation, where time delay and oxygen production rate are chosen as control parameters for all cases. Although both delays have a destabilising effect, our results show that time delay in gestation may induce sharp irregularity in the spatiotemporal dynamical regimes (leading to chaotic oscillations) whereas time delay in phytoplankton growth lead to more regular but higher frequency oscillations for oxygen-plankton interactions.

Keywords: Stability, time delay, prey-predator interactions, oxygen-plankton system, chaos

- [1] Sekerci Y, & Petrovskii S. (2015). Mathematical modelling of spatiotemporal dynamics of oxygen in a plankton system. Mathematical Modelling of Natural Phenomena, 10(2), 96–114.
- [2] Misra A, Chandra P, & Raghavendra V. (2011). Modeling the depletion of dissolved oxygen in a lake due to algal bloom: Effect of time delay. Advances in Water Resources, 34(10), 1232–1238.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>aytulgokceodu@odu.edu.tr</u>

A Near Wall Model For the Navier-Stokes-α Turbulence Model

Özgül İlhan^{1⊠}

¹ Muğla Sıtkı Koçman University, Mathematics Department, Muğla, Turkey

Abstract

The question of finding appropriate boundary conditions when using a constant length is known as Near Wall Model. Very often, there are difficulties in LES models about predicting turbulence generated by interactions of a flow with a boundary. We used boundary conditions similar to those used by Navier [1] and Maxwell [2] in their work. Firstly, we compute appropriate friction coefficient using power law and then analyze its asymptotic behavior as the averaging radius $\delta \to 0$, and as the Reynolds number $Re \to \infty$. In this study, we don't purpose to develop new theories of laminer boundary layer, we use existing boundary layer theories and improve numerical boundary conditions for flow averages. We consider exactly this problem herein and we apply this boundary condition to Navier-Stokes- α model (NS- α) [3]. Numerical tests on two dimensional channel flows across a step using this boundary condition on the top and bottom wall as well as on the step are performed [4].

Keywords: Boundary Layers, Turbulence, Near Wall Models (NWM), Power Law, Navier-Stokes- α model (NS- α).

- [1] Navier, C.L.M.H., "Memoire sur les lois du movement des fluiales", Mem. Acad. Royal Society 6, 389-440, 1823.
- [2] Maxwell, J.C., On stresses in rarefied gases arising from inequalities of temperature. Royal Society Phil. Trans., 170., 249-256, 1879.
- [3] Hill R. Gregory., Benchmark Testing the α -models of Turbulence. Master's thesis, The Graduate School of Clemson University, 2010.
- [4] Sahin N., Derivation, Analysis and Testing of New Near Wall Models for Large Eddy Simulation. PhD thesis, Department of Mathematics, Pittsburgh University, 2003.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: oilhan@mu.edu.tr

Comparison of Statistical and Neural Regression Using Activation Functions Derived from Swish Activation Function

Yılmaz Koçak^{1⊠}, Gülesen Üstündağ Şiray²

¹ Cukurova University, Adana Vocational School of Higher Education, Adana, Turkey ² Cukurova University, Faculty of Arts and Sciences, Department of Statistics, Adana, Turkey

Abstract

Artificial Neural Network (ANN) is a kind of artificial intelligence and it has been commonly used by scientists and practitioners. ANNs are computational tools that are widely accepted in many disciplines for modelling complex real-world problems such as function approximation, classification, regression, pattern recognition, and forecasting. The attractiveness of an ANN is due to its nonlinearity, parallelism, robustness, error and fault tolerance, learning, and ability to process. ANN learns from examples through iterations without demanding prior information on the relationships of parameters. The most important parameter of an ANN is the activation function (AF). AFs can significantly affect the performance of an ANN and therefore choosing a well-defined AF is important. In this study, we investigate the effects of AFs on the performance of any ANN for regression. For this purpose, ReLu-swish AF and generalized swish AF that are derived from the swish AF are considered. For the comparison of these AFs with swish AF, mean square error, mean absolute error, and R² metrics are utilized. To investigate the performance of these AFs, different data sets which are simulated data and some benchmark data from the University of California Irvine Machine Learning Repository are used.

Keywords: Artificial neural network, activation function, swish AF, ReLu-swish AF, generalized swish AF

References

- [1] Cheng, B., & Titterington, D. M. (1994). Neural networks: A review from a statistical perspective. Statistical science, 2-30.
- [2] Devulapalli, K. (2015). Neural Networks for Classification and Regression. Biom Biostat Int J, 2(6), 00046.
- [3] Koçak, Y., & Şiray, G.Ü. (2021). New activation functions for single layer feedforward neural network. Expert Systems with Applications, 164, 113977.
- [4] Kumar, U. A. (2005). Comparison of neural networks and regression analysis: A new insight. Expert Systems with Applications, 29(2), 424-430.
- [5] Ramachandran P., Zoph B. & Le V.Q. (2017a). Swish: A self-gated activation function. *arXiv preprint* arXiv:1710.05941v1
- [6] Ramachandran, P., Zoph, B., & Le, Q. V. (2017b). Searching for activation functions. *arXiv preprint* arXiv:1710.05941.
- [7] Warner, B., & Misra, M. (1996). Understanding neural networks as statistical tools. The american statistician, 50(4), 284-293.
- [8] White, H. (1989). Learning in artificial neural networks: A statistical perspective. Neural computation, 1(4), 425-464.

56

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ykocak@cu.edu.tr</u>

Discrete Sturm-Liouville Equation with Point Interaction

Güher Gülçehre Özbey^{1⊠}, Yelda Aygar¹, Güler Başak Öznur²

¹ Ankara University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey ² Gazi University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

We present an investigation about scattering analysis of a boundary value problem for a discrete Sturm-Liouville equation with point interaction. Here, we give polynomial type Jost solution and the scattering function of this problem and we find the properties of scattering function by using the scattering solutions. We also give an asymptotic equation for the Jost solution of this problem. We also find the Green function and resolvent operator of this boundary value problem. Finally, we apply the new results on an example.

Keywords: Scattering theory, scattering function, discrete Sturm-Liouville equation, point interaction.

- [1] Agranovic, Z. S. (1963). The Inverse Problem of Scattering Theory. Pratt Institute Brooklyn, New York.
- [2] Bainov, D.D & Simeonov, P.S. (1995). Impulsive Differential Equations: Asymptotic Properties of the Solutions. World Scientific, Singapur.
- [3] Bainov, D.D. & Simeonov, P.S. (1998). Oscillation Theory of Impulsive Differential Equations. Orlando, FL, USA: International Publications.
- [4] Naimark, M.A. (1995). Linear differential operators. Part II: Linear differential operators in Hilbert space, World Scientific Publishing Co., Inc., River Edge.
- [5] Bairamov, E., Aygar, Y. & Karslioglu, D. (2017). Scattering analysis and spectrum of discrete Schrödinger equations with transmission conditions. Filomat, 31 (17), 5391-5399.
- [6] Küçükevcilioğlu, Y.A., Bayram, E., & Özbey, G.G. (2021). On the spectral and scattering properties of eigenparameter dependent discrete impulsive Sturm-Liouville equations. Turkish Journal of Mathematics, 45(2), 988-1000.
- [7] Bairamov, E., Aygar, Y., & Eren, B. (2017). Scattering theory of impulsive Sturm-Liouville equations. *Filomat*, 31(17), 5401-5409.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: ozbeyguher@gmail.com

Impulsive Discrete Dirac Equation with Spectral Parameter

Güler Başak Öznur^{1⊠}, Elgiz Bairamov², Yelda Aygar²

¹ Gazi University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey ² Ankara University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

The aim of this study is to examine the scattering analysis of an impulsive discrete Dirac equation. The novelty in this study is that the boundary condition depends on the spectral parameter. This gives a new perspective to the problem. The first part of this study consists of basic definitions and theorems [1-4]. In the second part, after getting the Jost solution, we find the scattering function and examine the properties of the scattering function. Furthermore, we obtain Green function and resolvent operator of this impulsive discrete Dirac equation. Using resolvent operator, we investigate eigenvalues and spectral singularities of the problem. We also obtain continuous spectrum of this impulsive problem [5,6]. In the last part of this study, we handle an example to demonstrate the application of our results.

Keywords: Dirac systems, scattering function, spectral parameter, resolvent operator

- [1] Bairamov, E., & Celebi, O. (1999). Spectrum and spectral for the nonselfadjoint discrete Dirac operators. The Quarterly Journal of Mathematics, 50, 371–384.
- [2] Lakshmikantham, V., Bainov D.D., & Simeonov, P.S. (1989). Series in Modern Applied Mathematics, Vol. 6: Theory of Impulsive Differential Equations. World Scientific, Teaneck, NJ, USA.
- [3] Levitan, B.M., & Sargsjan, I.S. (1991). Sturm-Liouville and Dirac Operators. Kluwer, London.
- [4] Naimark, M.A. (1968). Linear Differential Operators. Frederick Ungar Publishing Co., New York.
- [5] Glazman, I.M. (1966). Direct Methods of Qualitative Spectral Analysis of Singular Differential Operators. Israel Program for Scientific Translations, Jerusalem.
- [6] Lusternik, L.A, & Sobolev V.I. (1974). Elements of Functional Analysis. Halsted Press, New York, USA.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: basakoznur@gazi.edu.tr

The Harmonic Response of the Circular Composite Plates Having Various Cut-Outs

Oguzhan Das^{1⊠}

¹ Dokuz Eylul University, Department of Motor Vehicles and Transportation Technologies, Izmir, Turkey

Abstract

Harmonic excitation is widely observed in various engineering problems, especially those of which include rotating structures. It is essential to examine the dynamic response of such structures since they may be subjected to dynamic forces that may lead them to operate under close-to-resonance frequencies. These structures may include cut-outs in various forms for several purposes such as riveting, piping, weight reduction, maintenance, or optimizing the dynamic properties of a structure [1,2]. Therefore, the shape of the cut-out becomes a significant parameter to investigate their effects on the harmonic responses of the structure in which it exists. Researchers conducted various studies including the harmonic response of structures considering different parameters [1-5] In this study, the effect of the shape of cut-out on the harmonic response of the circular cross-ply composite plate has been measured. For this purpose, circular cross-ply graphite-epoxy composite plates having triangular, square, pentagon, hexagon, and circular cut-outs have been modeled and analyzed via ANSYS Workbench 18.2. The composite material has been implemented in detail by using the ANSYS Composite Pre-Post (ACP) module. For analysis, the circular plate has been considered as a thin structure. The harmonic response analysis of the structure has been performed under fixed boundary conditions. Besides, the dynamic load has been subjected to the whole surface of the circular plate. The analysis results have been compared in terms of the difference in fundamental frequency, phase angle, maximum deformation, maximum deformation location, maximum stress, and maximum stress location. To understand the effect of the cut-out itself, a circular plate with no cut-outs has been also taken into account. It has been concluded that the cut-outs generally increase the fundamental frequency, maximum displacement, and stress values of the structure. Besides, increasing the number of vertex of the geometric shape of the cutout decreases the maximum displacement and stress values, while increases the fundamental frequency value of the circular structure.

Keywords: Harmonic response, finite element analysis, cut-out, circular composite plates

- [1] Venkateshappa, S.C., Kumar, P., & Ekbote, T. (2019). Free vibration studies on plates with central cut-out. CEAS Aeronautical Journal, 10, 623-632.
- [2] Narwariya, M., Patidar, V., & Sharma, A. K. (2019). Vibration and harmonic analysis of moderately thick anti-symmetric cross-ply laminated composite plate using FEM. IOP Conference Series: Materials Science and Engineering
- [3] Kıral, Z. (2009). Numerical investigation of the dynamic response of symmetric laminated composite beams to harmonic excitations. Advanced Composite Letters.
- [4] Kıral, Z. (2014). Harmonic response analysis of symmetric laminated composite beams with different boundary conditions. Science and Engineering of Composite Materials, 21(4), 559-569
- [5] Yang, Z. X., Han, Q. K., Chen, Y.G., & Jin, Z.H. (2017). Nonlinear harmonic response characteristics and experimental investigation of cantilever hard-coating plate. Nonlinear Dynamics, 89, 27-38.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>oguzhan.das@deu.edu.tr</u>

An Integrated Model for Disassembly Line Balancing and Worker Assignment Problem: A Multi-Objective Optimization Approach

Yildiz Kose^{1⊠}, Emre Cevikcan¹

¹ Istanbul Technical University, Industrial Engineering Department, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Disassembly line balancing efforts aim to increase the efficiency of product recovery in terms of remanufacturing [1]. Even if advanced technology and autonomous for productivity are used, there is a need for the resource-effective execution of disassembly activities in disassembly lines where the workforce is still actively used. Multi-manned workstations present the potential of increasing disassembly line performance. Moreover, on the condition that workload differences among workers in multi-manned workstations have been focused enhancement of the line efficiency is provided by considering the worker performance. This paper introduces a mixed-integer linear programming (MILP) model and a novel framework heuristic algorithm to minimize the number of workers and stations as well as the workload differences between workstations in the disassembly line. MILP model has been applied to a dishwasher disassembly system. The application results indicate that the line balancing with multi-manned has superiority over the classical disassembly system design. Moreover, the proposed heuristic has been executed on newly generated test problems for DLBP. The results confirm that desired solutions are presented and large-sized problems are solved within a reasonable time. The potential contributions of the study come up with two aspects both the task characteristics and organizational viewpoints. The first one is related to human factors which chancing potentials in terms of skill and effort for disassembly tasks. As far as the organizational viewpoint, the synchronous consideration of disassembly line balancing and worker assignment provides a proactive design process for disassembly line since constraints of line balancing and operators' workload are addressed even during line design. The study also gives the opportunity to obtain accordance between flexible working conditions and disassembly line balancing. In other words, the workload of operators is deployed to the line design in a more sensitive manner considering the workload differences.

Keywords: Disassembly, line balancing, worker assignment, multi-manned workstations

References

[1] Güngör, A., & Gupta, S.M. (2002). Disassembly Line Product Recovery. International Journal of Production Research, 40(10), 2569-2589.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>kose18@itu.edu.tr</u>

Global Existence of Solutions to a Singular Riemann-Liouville Fractional Differential Equation of Higher Order

Şeyma Ramazan^{1⊠}, Müfit Şan¹

¹ Cankırı Karatekin University, Department of Mathematics, Çankırı, Turkey

Abstract

Initial and boundary value problems (IVPs and BVPs) for fractional differential equations are two of the most investigated subjects in the theory of Fractional Calculus. In the recent literature, some published papers (See [1],[2]) reconsider some IVPs and BVPs previously studied and reveal some inconsistency and incorrectness in converting the problems into the corresponding integral equations. On the basis of these studies besides [3],[4], this work presents an investigation for an initial value problem involving a singular Riemann-Liouville fractional differential equation of higher order when the right-hand side function has a singularity. It is proposed some condition under which the problem can be reduced to a Volterra integral equation having a doubly singular kernel. By a lemma for continuous function we can show that the existence and uniqueness using Grönwall inequality for integral equation with a single (not double) singular kernel given in [5].

Keywords: Existence and uniqueness, Grönwall inequality, fractional differential equation.

- [1] Lan, K. (2020). Equivalence of higher order linear Riemann-Liouville fractional differential and integral equations. Proceedings of the American Mathematical Society, 148(12), 5225-5234.
- [2] Webb, J. R. (2019). Initial value problems for Caputo fractional equations with singular nonlinearities. Electron. J. Differential Equations, (117), 1-32.
- [3] Bilgici, S.S., Şan, M., (2020) Existence and Uniqueness Results for a nonlinear fractional differential equations of order $\sigma \in (1, 2)$. TWMS Journal of Applied and Engineering Mathematics (accepted)
- [4] Kilbas, A. A., Srivastava, H. M., Trujillo, J. J. (2006). Theory and applications of fractional differential equations (Vol. 204) Elsevier.
- [5] Henry, D. (2006). Geometric theory of semilinear parabolic equations, (Vol. 840). Springer

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>demirsym@gmail.com</u>

A Comparative Study for the Numerical Solution of the Tumor Growth Model

Sıla Övgü Korkut^{1⊠}

¹ Izmir Katip Celebi University, Department of Engineering Sciences, Izmir, Turkey

Abstract

The main purpose of this study is to present a comparative work for solving the tumor growth model. To do this, we restrict ourselves to the glioblastomas which is one of the most aggressive forms of cancer with a non-linear heterogeneous diffusion logistic density model. For solving the equation, various discretization techniques on the spatial domain are combined with the 4th order Runge–Kutta Method. The novelty of the study is that some of the techniques are applied to the specified equation for the first time and such a comparative study is also studied for the first time, as well. After the convergence analyses of all hybrid methods are provided theoretically, detailed comparative computational results are presented. All these methods are compared in terms of their efficiencies in varying time-step and mesh-discretization not only to one another but also with the methods given in the literature.

Keywords: The tumor growth model, Glioblastomas, mesh-discretization

References

- [1] Athanasakis, I. E., Papadomanolaki, M. G., Papadopoulou, E. P. & Saridakis, Y. G. (2013). Discontinuous Hermite Collocation and Diagonally Implicit RK3 for a Brain Tumour Invasion Model. Proceedings of the World Congress on Engineering 2013 Vol I, WCE 2013, London, U.K.
- [2] Boyd, J. P. (2000). Chebyshev and Fourier Spectral Methods. DOVER Publications, Inc., New York
- [3] Cruywagen, G.C., Woodward, D.E., Tracqui, P., Bartoo, G.T., Murray, J.D. & Alvord, E.C. (1995). The modelling of diffusive tumours. J. Biol. Syst. 3(4), 937–945.
- [4] Darvishi, M.T. & Javidi, M. (2006). A numerical solution of Burger's equation by pseudospectral method and Darvishi's preconditioning. Appl. Math. Comput. 173(1), 421–429.
- [5] Fornberg, B. & Sloan, D. M. (1994). A review of pseudospectral methods for solving partial differential equations. Acta Numerica 3, 203–267.
- [6] Fyfe, D. J. (1969). The use of cubic splines in the solution of two-point boundary value problems. The Computer Journal 12(2), 188–192.
- [7] Iqbal, M.K., Abbas, M. & Khalid, N. (2018). New Cubic B-spline Approximation for Solving NonlinearSingular Boundary Value Problems Arising in Physiology. Communications in Mathematics and Applications 9(3), 377–392.
- [8] Javidi, M. & Golbabai, A. (2007). Spectral Collocation Method for Parabolic Partial Differential Equations with Neumann Boundary Conditions. Applied Mathematical Sciences 1(5), 211–218.
- [9] Munguia, M., Bhatta, D. Use of Cubic B-Spline in Approximating Solutions of Boundary Value Problems. Appl. Appl. Math. 10(2), 750–771.
- [10] Murray, J. D. (2003). Mathematical biology II: spatial models and biomedical applications. 536–61, Springer, New York.
- [11] Özuğurlu, E. (2015). A note on the numerical approach for the reaction-diffusion problem to model the density of the tumor growth dynamics. Computers & Mathematics with Applications 69, 1504–1517.
- [12] Swanson, K.R., Rostomily, R.C. & Alvord, Jr. E.C. (2008) A mathematical modelling tool for predicting survival of individual patients following resection of glioblastoma: a proof of principle. Br. J. Cancer 98, 113–119
- [13] Swanson, K.R., Alvord, Jr. E.C. & Murray, J.D. (2000). A quantitative model for differential motility of gliomas in grey and white matter. Cell Prolif. 33, 317–329.
- [14] Woodward, D.E., Cook, J., Tracqui, P., Cruywagen, G.C., Murray, J.D. & Alvord, Jr. E.C. (1996) A mathematical model of glioma growth: the effect of extent of surgical resection. Cell Prolif. 29, 269–288.

 \square

62

[☐] Corresponding Author Email: silaovgu.korkut@ikcu.edu.tr

Spectral Properties of the Finite System of Discrete Sturm-Liouville Operators with Hyperbolic Eigenparameter

Nimet Coskun^{1⊠}

¹ Karamanoglu Mehmetbey University, Mathematics Department, Karaman, Turkey

Abstract

In this presentation, spectrum and spectral properties of the finite system of Sturm-Liouville type difference operators with hyperbolic eigenparameter have been taken under investigation. The transformation choosen for the eigenparameter affects drastically the representation of Jost solution and analicity region of the Jost function [1-5]. Hence, determining the sets of eigenvalues and spectral singularities, we generalize the recent results [3,5] to the hyperbolic eigenparameter case.

Keywords: Spectral theory, difference operators, Sturm-Liouville operator, spectral singularities

- [1] Marchenko, V.A. (1986). Sturm-Liouville Operators and Applications, Birkhauser Verlag, Basel.
- [2] Naimark, M.A. (1960). Investigation of the spectrum and the expansion in eigenfunctions of a non-selfadjoint operator of a second order on a semi-axis. AMS Transl. 2, 103-193.
- [3] Yokus, N., & Coskun, N. (2016). Jost Solution and the spectrum of the discrete Sturm-Liouville equations with hyperbolic eigenparameter, Neural. Parallel, and Scientific Computations, 24, 419-430.
- [4] Bairamov, E., Krall, A.M., & Cakar, O. (2001). Non-selfdjoint difference operators and Jacobi matrices with spectral singularities, Math. Nachr. 229, 5-14.
- [5] Kir, E. (2011). Spectral properties of a finite system of Sturm–Liouville difference operators. Journal of Difference Equations and Applications, 17(3), 255-266.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>cannimet@kmu.edu.tr</u>

Autonomous Landing of a VTOL UAV on a Stationary Landing Point

Gökhan Gülmez[™], Ö. Tolga Altınöz

Ankara University, Electrical and Electronics Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, a control strategy has been developed for autonomous landing of unmanned aerial vehicles that is capable of vertical landing and take-off at a target point. The solution developed for the landing of VTOL UAV's to a fixed point consists of 2 main parts: appointment and landing. When the autonomous landing application is started, there is a long xy-plane distance between the quadrotor which switches to the appointment stage, and the target landing point. At this stage, by producing waypoints for the x, y and z position controllers, tracking of a two-dimensional (xy plane) motion trajectory is provided. In this way, the appointment point (x_t, y_t, z_t) , which is vertically just above the target landing point $(x_t, y_t, 0)$, is reached. When the UAV reaches the appointment point, the position control of the quadrotor at this point is continued for 2s, in other words, before the precise landing the stabilization task is performed x_t , y_t . Thus, this stage is completed with minimum error. When the precise landing stage is started, the position control task of the x and y axes of the quadrotor (for x_t and y_t) is maintained and errors for these axes is kept at zero or minimized. At this stage, while the position control continues for the x and y axes, the task of landing from (x_t, y_t, z_t) to $(x_t, y_t, 0.1)$ along the z axis is performed. In order to land precisely and reach the point $(x_t, y_t, 0.1)$, the landing phase is completed by making an altitude control at a speed of $0.1 \, m/s$ along the z axis. The main motivation behind choosing the point $(x_t, y_t, 0.1)$ as the target instead of the point $(x_t, y_t, 0)$ is to develop a solution both by landing the quadrotor very close to the ground and not to affect from ground effect before motors stops. When the point $(x_t, y_t, 0.1)$ is reached, all rotors on the quadrotor are stopped and the landing to the target point $(x_t, y_t, 0)$ is completed with the remaining 0.1m free fall.

Keywords: VTOL UAV, autonomous, landing.

- [1] Gautam, A., Sujit, P.B., & Saripalli, S. (2015). Application of Guidance Laws to Quadrotor Landing. Int. Conf. on Unmanned Aircraft Systems, 372–379.
- [2] Bi, Y., Duan, H. (2013). Implementation of Autonomous Visual Tracking and Landing for a Low-Cost Quadrotor. Int. Journal for Light and Electron Optics, 124(18), 3296–3300.
- [3] Sani, M.F., Karimian, G. (2017). Automatic Navigation and Landing of an Indoor AR. Drone Quadrotor Using ArUco Marker and Inertial Sensors. Int. Conference on Computer & Drone App., 102–107.
- [4] Bouabdallah, S. (2007). Design and control of quadrotors with application to autonomous flying. PhD Thesis, Ecole Polytechnique Federale de Lausanne.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>gkhnglmz2@gmail.com</u>

A Numerical Solution to the Heat Transfer in MHD Flow

Canan Bozkaya[⊠]

Middle East Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Türkiye

Abstract

The steady laminar magnetohydrodynamics (MHD) flow and the heat transfer of an electrically conducting fluid in a rectangular duct subject to an oblique magnetic field is of great interest due to its wide range of applications in design of electrical devices, cooling systems in nuclear fusion reactors, metallurgical and material processing. Present study focuses on the numerical solution of the heat transfer in MHD flow which is fully developed and driven by a constant pressure gradient in the axial direction. The basic equations of the flow and the temperature fields are the combination of the Navier-Stokes equations of fluid dynamics, Maxwell's equations of electromagnetism and the energy equation of thermodynamics. The MHD flow equations, which are convection-diffusion type equations in velocity and induced magnetic field, are discretized by using a direct boundary element approach with the fundamental solution treating them directly in their original coupled form, while an alternative indirect boundary element scheme is employed for the discretization of the energy equation. The resulting system of equations involving the unknown values of velocity and induced magnetic field only on the boundary of the duct, is small in size and is solved at one stroke with no iteration. Once these values are obtained, they are used in the solution of the energy equation. Novel results are presented graphically for several values of Hartmann number and inclination angles of the magnetic field in order to investigate combined effects of these parameters not only on the velocity of the fluid and the induced magnetic field but also on the enhancement of the heat transfer rate and the temperature distribution. The results reveal that characteristic features of MHD flow with heat transfer in ducts are physically well-captured.

Keywords: MHD, duct flow, boundary elements, heat transfer

[™] Corresponding Author Email: bcanan@metu.edu.tr

A Smoothing Function Approach for Solving Nonlinear Complementarity Problems

Nurullah Yılmaz^{1⊠}

¹Süleyman Demirel University, Department of Mathematics, Isparta, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, we focus on solving nonlinear complementarity problems (NCP). We consider two different types of smoothing functions in a new formulation of the NCP. We investigate the relations between the original and reformulated problems. We develop a new smoothing-type algorithm for solving NCP and demonstrate the efficiency of our algorithm on some numerical examples. Finally, the comparison of the obtained results with the other methods is presented.

Keywords: Nonlinear complementarity problems, smoothing function approach, Newton-type algorithms

- [1] Facchinei, F. & Soares, J. (1997). A new merit function for nonlinear complementarity problems and a related algorithm. SIAM J. Optim., 7, 225-247.
- [2] Qi, H.-D. & Liao, L.-Z. (2000). A smoothing newton method for general nonlinear complementarity problems. Comput. Optim. Appl., 17, 231-253.
- [3] Chu, A. Du, S. & Su, Y. (2015). A new smoothing conjugate gradient method for solving nonlinear nonsmooth complementarity problems. Algorithms, 8, 1195-1209.
- [4] Zhu, J. & Hao, B. (2019). A new smoothing method for solving nonlinear complementarity problems. Open Math. 17, 104-119.
- [5] Alcantara, J. H., Lee C.-H., Nguyen, C. T., Chang, Y. -L. & Chen, J. –S. (2020). On construction of new NCP functions. Oper. Res. Lett., 48, 115-121.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>nurullahyilmaz@sdu.edu.tr</u>

International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering (ICAME) September 1-3, 2021 - Balikesir, Turkey

A New Smoothing Algorithm for Solving Absolute Value Equations of the Form Ax + B|x| = b

Nurullah Yılmaz^{1⊠}, Ayşegül Kayacan¹

¹ Suleyman Demirel University, Mathematics Department, Isparta, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, we concentrate on solving absolute value equations (AVE) of the form, Ax + B|x| = b where A, B are $n \times n$ type real matrices and b is n —dimensional real vector. The current form of AVE is described as a system of non-smooth equations. We first transform the AVE into a family of parametrized smooth equations by the help of smoothing techniques. We propose two different smoothing function approaches based on S —shaped functions. By the help of these smoothing techniques, we develop a new smoothing-type algorithm. The numerical experiments have been carried out on some randomly generated test problems. Finally, the comparison with other methods is illustrated to show the effectiveness of the proposed method.

Keywords: Absolute value equations, smoothing technique, nonsmooth equations

- [1] Caccetta, L., Qu, B., & Zhou, G. (2011). A globally and quadratically convergent method for absolute value equations. Comput. Optim. Appl., 48, 45-58.
- [2] Jiang, X. & Smith, G. (2013). A smoothing-type algorithm for absolute value equations. J. Ind. Manage. Optim., 9(4), 789-798.
- [3] Saheya, B., Yu, C.H. & Chen, J. S. (2018). Numerical comparisons based on four smoothing functions for absolute value equation. J. Appl. Math. Comput., 56, 131-149.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>nurullahyilmaz@sdu.edu.tr</u>

Realization of Fractional Band Stop Filter with Asymmetric Slopes and Optimized Quality Factor

Sunil Narayan[™], Utkal Mehta, Varian Akwai, Steven Weago and Kajal Kothari

Electrical and Electrical Engineering, School of Information Technology, Engineering, Mathematics, and Physics, TheUniversityof the South Pacific, Laucala Campus, Suva, Fiji

AbstractThe paper focuses on realization of fractional band stop filter (FBSF) to improve the quality factor and

asymmetric slopes. The concept is based on introducing a fractional calculus to approximate fractional capacitors and inductors of impedance , $z_{\alpha}=\frac{1}{s^{\alpha}c_{\alpha}}$ and order α (0< α <1). The quality factors and the asymmetric slope magnitude response of the FBSF have been optimized using new technique by proposing new transfer function and implementing it using different passive and active realization technique. The result shows a better control of the magnitude slope and quality factor of the filter through optimum coefficient parameter combinations and by tuning the value of order α (0< α <1). The quality factors and the asymmetric slope magnitude response of the FBSF have been optimized using genetic algorithm (GA). The filter was verified by plotting MATLAB simulation results for different values of α and showing its comparison with experimental results.

Keywords: Fractional Band Stop Filter (FBSF), Quality Factor, and Particle Swarm Optimization (PSO)

- [1] Freeborn, T., Maundy, B. and Elwakil, A. (2013). Fractional Resonance-Based RLβCα Filters. Mathematical Problems in Engineering, vol. 2013, 726721, 1-10.
- [2] Bošković, M., Šekara, T., Rapaić, M., Lutovac, B., Daković, M. and Govedarica, V. (2018). Analysis of the Band-pass and Notch filter with dynamic damping of fractional order including discrete models. Telfor Journal, 10(1), 32-37.
- [3] David, K., Todd, F. and Jaroslav, K. (2019). Fractional-order band pass filter design using fractional characteristic specimen functions. Microelectronics Journal, 2019.
- [4] Singh, N., Mehta, U., Kothari, K. and Cirrincione, M. (2020). Optimized fractional low and high pass filters of $(1 + \alpha)$ order on FPAA. Bulletin of the Polish. Academy of sciences: Technical science, 68(3).
- [5] Langhammer, L., Dvorak, J., Jerabek, J., Koton, J. and Sotner, R. (2018). Fractional-order low-pass filter with electronic tunability of its order and pole frequency. Journal of Electrical Engineering, 69(1), 3-13.
- [6] Yousri, D., AbdelAty, A.M., Said, L.A., AboBakr, A. and Radwan, A.G. (2017). Biological inspired optimization algorithms for cole-impedance parameters identification. AEU International Journal of Electronic and Communication, 78–89.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: spnz2014@gmail.com

A New Smoothing Technique for Global Optimization by Auxiliary Function Method

Ahmet Şahiner^{1⊠}, Gülden Kapusuz¹

¹Süleyman Demirel University, Mathematics. Department, Isparta, Türkiye

Abstract

In this study, a new smoothing technique is introduced to solution of min-max optimization problem and its applications by using Cubic Bezier Curve, the effectiveness of the technique is tested on the solutions of nonlinear global optimization problems by auxiliary function method.

Keywords: Non-Smooth Optimization, Smoothing Technique, Bezier Curves

References

- [1] Ge, R. P., & Qin, Y. F. (1987). A class of filled functions for finding global minimizers of a function of several variables. Journal of Optimization Theory and Applications, 54(2), 241-252.
- [2] Wei, F., Wang, Y., & Lin, H. (2014). A new filled function method with two parameters for global optimization. Journal of Optimization Theory and Applications, 163(2), 510-527.
- [3] Pinar, M.C. & Zenios,S. (1994)On smoothing exact penalty functions for convex constrained optimization. SIAM Journal on Optimization, 4, 468-511.
- [4] Rao S.S. (2009). Engineering Optimization 4th ed. John Wiley & Sons, New Jersey.
- [5] Sun, W. & Yuan Y. X. (2006) Optimization Theory and Method: Nonlinear Programing Springer, New York.
- [6] Sahiner, A., Kapusuz, G. & Yilmaz, N. (2016) A new smoothing approach to exact penalty functions for inequality constrained optimization problems, Numerical Algebra Control and Optimimization, 6(2), 161-173.
- [7] Sahiner, A., Yilmaz, N. & Kapusuz, G. (2017). A descent global optimization method based on smoothing techniques via Bezier curves. Carpathian Journal of Mathematics, 33(3), 373-380.

[™]Corresponding Author Email: <u>ahmetsahgulden32@gmail.com</u>

Realization and Sensitivity Analysis of Fractional Order Kerwin-Huelsman Newcomb Filter

Sunil Narayan^{1 ⋈}, Utkal Mehta¹

¹TheUniversityof the South Pacific, Schoolof Engineering and Physics, Suva, Fiji

Abstract

The paper presents a design, realization and sensitivity analysis of a fractional order Kerwin-Huelsman Newcomb filter. The filter will be realized using two fractional order capacitors of order α and β (0< α , $\beta \leq 1$). The paper will focus on the fractional order Kerwin-Huelsman Newcomb filter low-pass , high-pass filters and band pass are investigated based on the coefficient for the transfer function is obtained by optimization technique. The effects of the exponents α and β of the realized KHN filter has been examined where two fractional order elements of order α and β (0 < α , $\beta \leq 1$) are used for realization. The sensitivity analysis is carried out to see the performance of the FO filter due to the parameter variations. The responses of the realized filter are obtained by using Matlab simulation and it is seen that the pole fequency and qulaity factor of FO filter is more sensitive towards component variations as comapred to interger order

Keywords: Kerwin-Huelsman Newcomb filter, Quality Factor, and optimasation

- [1] Freeborn, T.J., Maundy, B. and Elwakil, A. (2013). Fractional Resonance-Based RLβCα Filters. Mathematical Problems in Engineering, vol. 2013, 726721, 1-10.
- [2] Freeborn, T.J., Maundy, B. and Elwakil, A. (2012). Fractional-step Tow-Thomas biquad filters. IEICE Nonlinear Theory and its Applications, 357–374.
- [3] Singh, N., Metha, U., Kothari, K. And Cirrincion, M. (2020). Optimized fractional low and high pass filters of $(1 + \alpha)$ order on FPAA. Bulletin of the Polish Academy of Sciences-Technical Sciences, 68(3).
- [4] Said, L.A., Ismail, S.M., Radwan, A.G., Madian, A.H., El-Yazeed, M.F.A. and Soliman, A.M. (2016). On the optimization of fractional order low-pass filters. Circuits Syst. Signal Process, 2017–2039.
- [5] AbdelAty, A.M., Soltan, A., Ahmed, W.A. and Radwan, A.G. (2018). On the analysis and design of fractional-order chebyshev complex filter. Circuits Syst. Signal Process, 915–938.
- [6] Said, L.A., Radwan, A.G., Madian, A.H. and Soliman, A.M. (2017). Three fractional-order-capacitors-based oscillators with controllable phase and frequency. Journal of Circuits Systems and Computers, 1750160.
- [7] Tsirimokou, G., Psychalinos, C., Elwakil, A. and Salama, K. (2016). Experimental verification of on-chip cmos fractional-order capacitor emulators. Electron device Letters, 1298–1300.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: spnz2014@gmail.com

Effects of a Rotating Cylinder on MHD Forced Convection in an Infinite Channel

F. Sidre Oglakkaya^{1⊠}, Canan Bozkaya²

¹ Osmaniye Korkut Ata University, Department of Mathematics, Osmaniye, Turkey ² Middle East Technical University, Department of Mathematics Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

The magnetohydrodynamic forced convection in an infinite channel including a rotating cylinder is numerically investigated under the effect of a uniform magnetic field. The fluid flow under consideration is two-dimensional, steady, laminar and obeys the Boussinesq approximation while the effects of the radiation and viscous dissipation are neglected. It is assumed that the working fluid is incompressible and Newtonian. The temperature of input fluid, which is taken smaller than that of horizontal walls, enters the heated duct. Further, isothermal boundary condition for the rotating cylinder is imposed, respectively. A uniform magnetic field of strength B_0 is vertically applied to the whole channel. The governing equations in terms of stream function, vorticity and temperature are numerically solved using the dual reciprocity boundary element method in which the governing equations are transformed into integral equations only on the boundary by using the fundamental solution of the Laplace equation and treating all the other terms as nonhomegeneity through radial basis function approximation. Thus, the resulting discretized system is small in size compared to the ones obtained by domain discretization techniques, and hence the computational cost in obtaining the solution is small. The numerical simulations are carried out to investigate the effects of the physical parameters such as Hartmann number, the cylinder rotation angle on the flow field and heat transfer. The results indicate that increasing the Hartmann number enhances the average heat transfer, while the angular rotational speed of the cylinder results in a decrease or an increase in the heat transfer rate at spatial regions inside the channel. Thus, the cylinder rotation angle under the various combination of physical parameters can be used as a control parameter for the heat transfer inside the channel.

Keywords: MHD, DRBEM, Rotating cylinder, Forced convection

- [1] Brebbia, C.A., Partridge, P.W. & Wrobel, L.C. (1992). The Dual Reciprocity Boundary Element Method. Computational Mechanics Publications, Southampton, Boston.
- [2] Selimefendigil, F., Oztop, H.F., (2014). Effect of a rotating cylinder in forced convection of ferrofluid over a backward facing step, International Journal of Heat and Mass Transfer, 71, 142-148.
- [3] Rahman, M.M., Alim, M.A., (2010). MHD mixed convection flow in a vertical lid-driven square enclosure including a heat conducting horizontal circular cylinder with Joule heating, Nonlinear Analysis: Modelling and Control, 15 (2), 199-211.
- [4] Bozkaya, C., Magnetohydrodynamic convection of *Cu*-water nanofluid in a square cavity with a circular cylinder, International Journal of Mathematical Models and Methods in Applied Sciences, 10, 332-339.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>fsidreoglakkaya@osmaniye.edu.tr</u>

Investigation of a Stabilized Finite Element Method for Navier-Stokes Equations

Fatma G. Eroglu ^{1⊠}

¹ Bartin University, Department of Mathematics,, Bartin, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, an efficient and reliable numerical algorithm for Navier Stokes equations (NSE) is investigated by using streamline upwind Petrov Galerkin-pressure stabilizing Petrov Galerkin (SUPG-PSPG) and grad-div stabilization methods. It is known that instability occurs in the case of small diffusion, lack of mass conservation and violation of the inf-sup stability. These cause contamination of solutions with large spurious oscillations. Therefore, efficient methods are needed to damp oscillations.

SUPG method, as one of the most popular residual-based stabilization methods, has been utilized in many engineering and scientific applications, see [1,2,3]. The main idea of SUPG is to reduce the oscillations and stabilize the convection dominance by adding artificial diffusion to each mesh cell along the streamlines of the solution. However, with the use of piecewise polynomial and discontinuous finite element pressure spaces, an additional term is required to add a control on the lack of the inf-sup stability condition. To address this issue, the PSPG method has been found successful, see [4]. In addition, the grad-div method is used to reduce the negative effect of pressure on velocity error and to get control on the lack of the principle of mass conservation [3,5].

We extend the novel idea of [2,6] to the SUPG-PSPG and grad-div settings for the time-dependent incompressible NSE. First, we establish the existence and uniqueness theorems of the solutions. Then, the stability and convergence analyses of the proposed method are presented with the backward Euler temporal discretization. Finally, to obtain optimal error estimation, the choice of stabilization parameters and time-step restrictions are investigated, and the paper is concluded with a summary.

Keywords: streamline upwind Petrov Galerkin (SUPG) method, pressure stabilizing Petrov Galerkin (PSPG) method, grad-div stabilization

- Chen, M., Luan, S. & Lian, Y. (2021). Fractional SUPG finite element formulation for multi-dimensional fractional advection diffusion equations. Comput. Mech. 67, 601-617.
- [2] John, V., & Novo, J. (2011). Error analysis of the SUPG finite element discretization of evolutionary convection-diffusion-reaction equations, SIAM J. Numer. Analysis 49(3), 1149-1176.
- [3] Yılmaz, F. N., (2018). Comparison of the stabilized finite element solutions of optimal control of convection diffusion equation, Proceedings of the International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering (ICAME18), pp. 171, June 27-29, Balikesir, Turkey.
- [4] John, V., & Novo, J. (2015). Analysis of the PSPG Stabilization for the evolutionary Stokes equations avoiding time-step restrictions. SIAM J. Numer. Anal.,53(2):1005-1031.
- [5] Kaya, S., & Kökten, İ. T., (2018). Numerical Study on Blood Flow Modelling in Arteries, Proceedings of the International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering (ICAME18), pp. 130, June 27-29, Balikesir, Turkey.
- [6] John, V. (2016). Finite element methods for incompressible flow problems, Springer Series in Computational Mathematics, vol. 51, Springer-Verlag, Berlin.

Corresponding Author Email: fguler@bartin.edu.tr

Flow in a Cavity Subjected to Two Variable Magnetic Sources

Pelin Senel^{1⊠}

¹ Karadeniz Technical University, Mathematics Department, Trabzon, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, influences of two variable magnetic sources on the steady, fully developed, Ferrohydrodynamics (FHD) flow of magnetizable fluid [1] are investigated. The fluid is pumped within the duct due to a constant pressure gradient in the axial direction. Two semi-cylinders are symmetrically located on the left and the bottom walls of the duct and two thin-wires, carrying electric current, are passing through axes of these semi-cylinders. The fully developed flow is modeled in velocity-pressure form on the 2D cross-section of the duct [2]. On this cross-section (cavity), wires act as point magnetic sources placed at the centers of semi-circles. Governing equations are discretized by the dual reciprocity boundary element method (DRBEM) [3] and solved iteratively. Pressure boundary conditions are obtained through momentum equations by approximating pressure gradients using finite differences and all the space derivatives of the unknowns using the DRBEM coordinate matrix. Velocity and the pressure profiles are obtained for different strengths of magnetic sources. Numerical results show that, when both magnetic sources are uniform and they increase with the same rate, pressure in the cavity increases and the flow in the axial direction decelerates around semi-circles. When sources have different strengths, the flow and the pressure profiles are dominated by the strong magnetic source. The numerical results are achieved with less computational cost due to the boundary only nature of the DRBEM.

Keywords: FHD flow, variable magnetic sources, DRBEM

- [1] Rosensweig, R.E. (2014). Ferrohydrodynamics. Dover Publications, New York.
- [2] Tzirtzilakis, E.E., Sakalis, V.D., Kafoussias, N.G. & Hatzikonstantinou, P.M. (2004). Biomagnetic fluid flow in a 3D rectangular duct. International Journal for Numerical Methods in Fluids, 44, 1279-1298.
- [3] Partridge, P.W., Brebbia, C.A. & Wrobel L.C. (1992). The Dual Reciprocity Boundary Element Method. Computational Mechanics Publications, Sauthampton, Boston.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: psenel@ktu.edu.tr

Detection with Bistatic Sonobuoys: Random vs Coordinated Deployments

Mümtaz Karataş¹, Levent Erişkin¹⊠

¹ National Defence University, Turkish Naval Academy, Industrial Engineering Department, Tuzla, İstanbul, Turkey

Abstract

The problem of assessing the coverage quality of underwater sensor networks for search, detection and surveillance is an important research topic both for practitioners and researchers. Among different underwater sensor types, multistatic and bistatic sonars are effectively used by navies worldwide for protecting maritime zones and friendly units against hostile submerged targets. Such systems consist of sources and receivers which need not be collocated. If a multistatic underwater surveillance system is composed of single independent source and receiver at different locations, these systems are called bistatic sensors [1,2]. Target detection or area coverage performance of a bistatic sonar is based on the distance between the source and target as well as the distance between the target and receiver. In particular, for a given environmental condition and target type, the sensing zone of a bistatic sonar is characterized by a set of distinct ovals named as Cassini ovals [3]. In this study, we consider comparing the performance of random and coordinated deployment strategies of bistatic sonobuoys against stationary and mobile targets. To achieve this, using underwater acoustic theory, we first model the coverage zone of a bistatic sensor couple as a group of Cassini ovals. Next, using simple analytical geometry, we map the problem to a two dimensional geometric problem. Finally, we approximate the expected coverage area of bistatic sensors by using equations derived from this mapping and analyse the relationship between the dimensions of the search field and coverage. We also use results from previous work obtained for the coordinated deployment of bistatic sensors against mobile targets and compare the results. The results obtained from this work can be utilized by decision-makers and practitioners for back-of-the-envelope analysis to estimate the search performance of bistatic sensors.

Keywords: Acoustics, bistatic sonar, random deployment

- [1] Karatas, M., Craparo, E., & Akman, G. (2018). Bistatic sonobuoy deployment strategies for detecting stationary and mobile underwater targets. Naval Research Logistics (NRL), 65(4), 331-346.
- [2] Fügenschuh, A. R., Craparo, E. M., Karatas, M., & Buttrey, S. E. (2020). Solving multistatic sonar location problems with mixed-integer programming. Optimization and Engineering, 21(1), 273-303.
- [3] Craparo, E. M., Fügenschuh, A., Hof, C., & Karatas, M. (2019). Optimizing source and receiver placement in multistatic sonar networks to monitor fixed targets. European Journal of Operational Research, 272(3), 816-831.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>leriskin@dho.edu.tr</u>

An Application of Statistical Design and Analysis of Experiments for System Performance Evaluation

Levent Erişkin^{1⊠}, Mümtaz Karataş¹

¹ National Defence University, Turkish Naval Academy, Industrial Engineering Department, Tuzla, İstanbul, Turkey

Abstract

In this paper, we consider evaluating and comparing candidate systems for acquisition using statistical design and analysis of experiments techniques. Due to numerous decision variables inherent in acquisition decisions and the high technology of the candidate systems, enterprises need decision support for making these decisions. In this regard, utilizing quantitative methods is of utmost importance. To address this issue, statistical design and analysis of experiments field provides quantitative techniques for designing appropriate experiments and analyzing the experimental data. These techniques are particularly useful for enterprises that procure systems as Commercial-Off-The-Shelf (COTS). COTS systems are already developed and produced systems that are available for acquisition. Even though procuring a COTS has advantages for ensuring a shorter acquisition lead time, it inherently involves risks. For instance, COTS are developed for the common user, and may not be compatible and interoperable with buyer's systems that are already in the inventory [1]. Moreover, design specifications declared by the provider may not reflect the real performance of the system under various operating conditions. Consequently, these risks oblige the buyers to conduct a rigorous evaluation.

In order to show how these quantitative techniques can be applied to real-life problems, we present an application dealing with the acquisition of a Naval Gun System (NGS) as COTS. The naval guns are directed to surface targets with Fire Control Radars (FCRs). There are two FCRs within each NGS. The FCR used in firing affects the performance of a NGS and both FCRs are used interchangeably in surface warfare. Since FCRs are specific to each NGS, levels of FCR factor are nested under the levels of NGS factor. Therefore, we design an experiment with both nested and factorial factors and conduct the pertaining statistical analysis to determine the significant effects and the superior NGS [2]. The case study shows that the analysis provides adequate decision support for evaluating and comparing candidate system alternatives.

Keywords: Design of experiments, nested design, system performance evaluation

- [1] Eriskin, L., & Gunal, M. M. (2019). Test and evaluation for weapon systems: concepts and processes. Operations Research for Military Organizations, 98-110.
- [2] Montgomery, D. C. (2017). Design and Analysis of Experiments. Eighth ed. John Wiley & Sons, Hoboken, NJ.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: leriskin@dho.edu.tr

Some Iterative Methods for a Class of Inverse Problems for Semilinear Differential Equations Backward in Time

Ali Ugur Sazaklioglu^{1⊠}

¹ University of Turkish Aeronautical Association, Department of Astronautical Engineering, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

It is known that the problems for differential equations backward in time take a major role especially in the natural and engineering sciences in the framework of determination of the initial condition (state). Similarly, the identification problems for differential equations, in which one or more control parameters are determined, are quite significant for controlling a process. Hence, in order to explore the complex dynamical systems and processes in the real life and also to improve the technological achievements related to these, the two problems mentioned above, among the others, are studied extensively by the researchers. In this study, some problems comprising the arguments of those two problems and also nonlinearity are considered.

In this study, some iterative methods involving some finite difference schemes are proposed for the numerical solution of the following abstract inverse problem governed by a semilinear differential equation backward in time:

$$\begin{cases} \frac{du}{dt} - Au = p + f(t, u), 0 < t < T, \\ u(T) = \psi, u(T_1) = \varphi, 0 \le T_1 < T, \end{cases}$$

$$\tag{1}$$

where (u,p) is the solution pair of the problem, and A is a linear, self-adjoint and positive definite operator in a Hilbert space H. Since there are several operators satisfying the properties of the operator A, problem (1) is in fact a class of some source identification problems for some semilinear parabolic equations backward in time. Note also that when $0 < T_I < T$, problem (1) becomes an inverse problem of simultaneous determination of the source p and the initial condition u(0).

The applications of problem (1) on semilinear parabolic equations and the difference schemes proposed for them are carried out. Moreover, the results on the existence and uniqueness of the solution of problem (1), its applications and the difference schemes proposed for the numerical solutions of all these problems are established using some ideas in [1, 2]. Finally, the proposed methods are performed on some model problems to acquire their initial conditions, source terms and solutions, simultaneously. Furthermore, for showing the efficiency of the proposed methods a numerical analysis is given.

Keywords: Inverse problem, numerical solution, iterative method

References

[1] Ashyralyyev, C. (2020). Stability of Rothe difference scheme for the reverse parabolic problem with integral boundary condition. Mathematical Methods in the Applied Sciences, 43(8), 5369–5379.

[2] Sazaklioglu, A.U., Erdogan, A.S., & Ashyralyev, A. (2018). Existence and uniqueness results for an inverse problem for a semilinear equation with final overdetermination. Filomat, 32(3), 847–858.

http://icame.balikesir.edu.tr

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ausazaklioglu@thk.edu.tr</u>

Capturing The van der Pol Oscillatory Behaviors through a Stochastic Approach

Hande Uslu^{1⊠}, Murat Sari¹

¹ Yildiz Technical University, Mathematics Department, İstanbul, Turkey

Abstract

For decades, oscillatory behavior mostly encountered both in biological and physical sciences has been paid high attention [1]. Even though just solving the model equations has a charming effect, capturing the behavior of physical processes by dealing with a suitable method is also challenging issue [2-4]. There are various conventional methods to solve those equations suffering from difficulties; high computational cost, computational error or mathematical complexities of realistic systems [5,6]. In this respect, this study aims at focusing on nonlinear oscillatory behaviors represented by the van der Pol equation through stochastic approaches. Thus, a Monte Carlo based algorithm is presented for solving the van der Pol equations [7-9]. To properly discuss the simulated behaviors, detailed analysis has been carried out in an illustrative manner.

Keywords: Van der Pol Equation, Nonlinear Oscillatory Behavior, Stochastic Approach

- [1] Wiggins, S. (1990). Introduction to Applied Nonlinear Dynamical Systems and Chaos. New York: Springer, Verlag, p.179.
- [2] Algaba, A. & Chung, K.W. & Qin, B.W. & Rodríguez-Luis, A.J. (2020). Analytical approximation of the canard explosion in a van der Pol system with the nonlinear time transformation method, Physica D: Nonlinear Phenomena, 406.
- [3] Gani, S. & Aamer, S. (2020). A new iterative technique for solving Van der pol equation, Mathematical Theory and Modeling, 10 (4).
- [4] Kumar, M. & Varshney P. (2021). Numerical Simulation of Van der Pol Equation Using Multiple Scales Modified Lindstedt–Poincare Method, Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences, India Section A: Physical Sciences, 91, 55-65.
- [5] Kyziol J., & Okninski, A. (2015). The Duffing-Van der Pol equation: Metamorphoses of resonance curves, Nonlinear Dynamics and Systems Theory, 15(1), 25-31.
- [6] Kinoshita, S. (2013) Introduction to Nonequilibrium Phenomena, Editor: Shuichi Kinoshita, in: Pattern Formations and Oscillatory Phenomena, Elsevier, 1-59.
- [7] Fishman, G. (1999). Monte Carlo: Concepts, Algorithms and Applications. 1st ed. Springer, Stanford, USA.
- [8] Rubinstein, R.Y., & Kroese, D.P. (2017). Simulation and The Monte Carlo Method. 3rd ed. Wiley, New Jersey, USA.
- [9] Uslu, H., Sari M., & Coşgun, T. (2020). Qualitative Behavior of Stiff ODEs through a Stochastic Approach. An International Journal of Optimization and Control: Theories & Applications (IJOCTA), 10 (2), 181-187.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: usluh@yildiz.edu.tr

A Linear Approximation Model for a Non-Linear Flow Shop Scheduling Problem with Learning Effect

Augusto Ferraro¹, Daniel Alejandro Rossit¹-2 ⋈, Adrián Toncovich¹

¹ Engineering Department, Universidad Nacional del Sur, Bahía Blanca, Argentina ² INMABB, CONICET, Bahía Blanca, Argentina

Abstract

Learning effects have been considered in operations management problems since the early twentieth century [1]. The learning effect has a direct influence on production scheduling problems, since it modifies the use of production machines [2], and for this reason, it has been a problem widely studied by the scheduling community [3]. However, modeling the learning effect in scheduling problems by means of mathematical programming requires the use of non-linear expressions [4], this has limited the majority of works to be focused on single-machine problems [2] [5]. In this work, it is proposed to extend these formulations for the case that the learning effect is exponentially dependent on the previous jobs processed in the sense of [5]. This mathematical model is clearly non-linear, and by having several machines in which the learning process occurs, the probability of getting trapped in poor local optimums is very high. The proposal of this work is a linear approximation scheme, which can be implemented by a standard MIP solver such as CPLEX, in order to obtain very high quality solutions, without requiring sophisticated and tailored methods. The approximation scheme is based on a set of straight lines, which approximate the expected learning effect, generating a convex shell to the problem with expected values, thus avoiding falling into poor quality local optimal points. For creating the convex shell, a least-squares problem must be solved, which is also non-linear, but does not require integer variables, then, it can be solved by simple solvers like the ones provided by spreadsheet software. To evaluate the capability of the solution scheme, the proposed linear model solution was compared with the solution obtained by a proven MINLP solver such as DICOPT [6], in flow shop problems with makespan as the objective function. The results show that the proposed scheme notably improves the solutions obtained by DICOPT, reducing the makespan in up to 12%.

Keywords: flow shop, learning effect, non-linear mixed integer programming, linear approximation

- [1] Wright, T. P. (1936). Factors affecting the cost of airplanes. Journal of the aeronautical sciences, 3(4), 122-128.
- [2] Biskup, D. (1999). Single-machine scheduling with learning considerations. European Journal of Operational Research, 115(1), 173-178.
- [3] Biskup, D. (2008). A state-of-the-art review on scheduling with learning effects. European Journal of Operational Research, 188(2), 315-329.
- [4] Azzouz, A., Ennigrou, M., & Ben Said, L. (2018). Scheduling problems under learning effects: classification and cartography. International Journal of Production Research, 56(4), 1642-1661.
- [5] Wang, J. B., Wang, D., Wang, L. Y., Lin, L., Yin, N., & Wang, W. W. (2009). Single machine scheduling with exponential time-dependent learning effect and past-sequence-dependent setup times. Computers & Mathematics with Applications, 57(1), 9-16.
- [6] Kronqvist, J., Bernal, D. E., Lundell, A., & Grossmann, I. E. (2019). A review and comparison of solvers for convex MINLP. Optimization and Engineering, 20(2), 397-455.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: daniel.rossit@uns.edu.ar

A Neural Network Learning Approach for Solving the Knapsack Problem

Ertan Yakıcı^{1⊠}, Tolga Önel²

National Defence University, Barbaros Naval Sciences and Engineering Institute, İstanbul, Turkey
 National Defence University, Computer Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Among a finite number of items, whose weights and benefits are known, choosing a subset with the maximum benefit without exceeding the maximum weight that can be carried is referred to as 0-1 Knapsack problem (KP01) [1]. KP01 is known as a Non-deterministic polynomial-time complete (NP-complete) problem [2]. Therefore, no algorithm proposed until now can solve KP01 in polynomial time with the exact solution. Dynamic programming, branch and bound, brute force, Lagrangian decomposition based and many heuristic algorithms are proposed in the literature to solve KP01 [3]. Genetic algorithm with O(n) time complexity [4] is the fastest of all.

Supervised learning algorithms are used for learning a function with an input-output pair. With the learned function, the output for an input that is not seen before, can be approximately predicted. Neural networks are widely used as a supervised learning mechanism to extract information from data. A neural network can be trained using known inputs and outputs related to the phenomenon. With an unprecedented example of the phenomenon, the output corresponding to the input can be determined with the trained neural network in O(1) time.

In this study, the use of neural networks is proposed for solving the KP01 problem. We train a neural network using exactly solved KP01 examples. Using the trained neural network, we manage to achieve good results which have high similarity with the pre-solved KP01 test set examples. Hence, the proposed method is suitable for the applications where, fast but approximate solutions are required. Our findings also show that the use of neural networks can be a good candidate mechanism for solving optimization problems.

Keywords: Knapsack problem, neural networks, optimization

- [1] Lv, J., Wang, X., Huang, M., Cheng, H., Li, F. (2016). Solving 0-1 knapsack problem by greedy degree and expectation efficiency. Applied Soft Computing, 41, 94-103.
- [2] Basset, M.A., Shahat, D.E., Henawy, I.E. (2017). Solving 0-1 knapsack problem by binary flower pollination algorithm. Neural Computing and Applications, 31(9), 5477-5495.
- [3] Pan, X., Zhang, T. (2018). Comparison and analysis of algorithms for the 0/1 knapsack problem. Journal of Physics: Conference Series 1069(1), p.012024. IOP Publishing.
- [4] Shaheen, A., Sleit, A. (2016). Comparing between different approaches to solve the 0/1 knapsack problem. International Journal of Computer Science and Network Security, 16(7), 1.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: eyakici@dho.edu.tr

LEGO ROBOT Setup and Intelligent Programming for Line Following and Obstacle Avoiding Using EV3RSTORM Software

Ashwin Chand^{1⊠}, Sunil Narayan¹, Utkal Mehta¹

¹TheUniversityof the South Pacific, Schoolof Engineering and Physics, Suva, Fiji

Abstract

The paper focus on the progressively essential that up and coming age of understudies must secure critical thinking, basic reasoning and cooperative abilities to prevail in their profession desires in the 21st century. Innovation assumes a critical part in the absorption of these abilities. Among prospering varieties of advances, mechanical technology gives difficulties and chances to the students in creating inventive thoughts, problematic reasoning, and higher-arrange learning abilities. This paper investigates the instructive utilization of mechanical autonomy in schools and how educators can coordinate this new innovation into the educational modules. The paper additionally proposes the powerful techniques in utilizing mechanical technology as an instructive device and how it will affect understudies' interests in Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics related subjects. A few proposals to upgrade learning exercises in the enterprises are given.

Keywords: Educational Robotics, EV3RSTORM, Lego

- [1] Maraj, D. and Maraj, A. (2017). Implementation of Gesture based Applications and Communication with Lego Mindstorm EV3. Mediterranean Conference on Embedded Computing, June 2017.
- [2] Ding, J., Li, Z. and Pan, T. (2017). Control System Teaching and Experiment Using Lego MINDSTORMS NXT Robot. International Journal of Information and Education Technology, 7(4), April 2017.
- [3] Poikselka, K., Vallivaara, L. and Roning, J. (2015). Evolutionary Robotics on Lego NXT Platform. IEEE International Conference on Tools with Artificial Intelligence, 2015.
- [4] Jathavara, V. and Ashwath, P. (2017). Obstacle Avoiding Robot. International Conference on Recent Advances in Electronics and Communication Technology, 2017.
- [5] Chen, H.J. and Kao, Y.H. (2012). Design of Fuzzy Control Applied to the Path Following of Lego-NXT System. Proceedings of International Conference on Fuzzy Theory and Its Applications, November 2012.
- [6] Gomez-de-Gabriel, J.M., Mandow, A., Lozano, J.F. and Cerezo, A.J.G. (2011). Using LEGO NXT Mobile Robots With LabView for Undergraduate Courses on Mechatronics. IEEE Transactions on Education, 54(1), February 2011

[™] Corresponding Author Email: spnz2014@gmail.com

Existence and Hyers-Ulam Stability of Solutions for a Delayed Hyperbolic Partial **Differential Equation**

Canan Celik, Faruk Develi [⊠]

Yildiz Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

In this paper, we first prove the existence and uniqueness of the solutions for a delayed hyperbolic partial differential equation by applying progressive contraction technique introduced by Burton in [2] and [3] to the corresponding fixed point problem. Then we derive Hyers-Ulam stability result for this differential equation by using Wendorff-type inequality and Abstract Gronwall Lemma.

Keywords: Progressive contractions, hyperbolic partial differential equation, Hyers-Ulam stability, fixed point theory

- [1] Bainov, D., & Simeonov, P. (1992). Integral Inequalities and Applications, Kluwer Academic Publishers, Dordrecht.
- [2] Burton, T.A. (2016). Existence and uniqueness results by progressive contractions for integro-differential equations, Nonlinear Dyn. Syst. Theory, 16(4), 366-371.
- [3] Burton, T.A. (2019). A note on existence and uniqueness for integral equations with sum of two operators: progressive contractions, Fixed Point Theory, 20(1), 107-113.
- [4] Burton, T.A., & Purnaras, I.K. (2017). Global existence and uniqueness of solutions of integral equations with delay: progressive contractions, Electron. J. Qual. Theory Differ. Equ. 2017(49), 1-6.
- [5] Hyers, D.H. (1941). On the stability of the linear functional equation, Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. USA 27(4), 222-
- [6] Jung, S.-M. (2009). Hyers-Ulam stability of linear partial differential equations of first order, Appl. Math. Lett., 22(1), 70-74.
- [7] Jung, S.-M., & Lee, K.-S. (2007). Hyers-Ulam stability of first order linear partial differential equations with constant coefficients, Math. Inequal. Appl., 10(2), 261-266.
- [8] Lakshmikantham, V., Leela, S., & Martynyuk, A.A. (1989). Stability Analysis of Nonlinear Systems, Marcel Dekker, New York.
- [9] Lungu, N. & Craciun, C. (2012). Ulam-Hyers-Rassias stability of a hyperbolic partial differential equation, ISRN Math. Anal., 2012, Art. ID 609754.
- [10] Lungu, N., & Popa, D. (2012). Hyers-Ulam stability of a first order partial differential equation, J. Math. Anal. Appl., 85(1), 86-91.
- [11] Lungu, N., & Popa, D. (2014). Hyers-Ulam stability of some partial differential equation, Carpatian J. Math., 30(3), 327-334.
- [12] Lungu, N., & Rus, I.A. (2001). Hyperbolic differential inequalities, Libertas Mathematica 21, 35-40.
- [13] Lungu, N., & Rus, I.A. (2008). Ulam stability of nonlinear hyperbolic partial differential equations, Carpatian J. Math. 24(3), 403-408.
- [14] Rus, I.A. (2003). Picard operators and applications, Sci. Math. Jpn. 58(1), 191-219.
- [15] Rus, I.A. (2004). Fixed points, upper and lower fixed points: abstract Gronwall lemmas, Carpathian J. Math. 20(1), 125-134.
- [16] Ulam, S.M. (1960). A Collection of Mathematical Problems, Interscience, New York.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: fdeveli@yildiz.edu.tr

Analytical and Numerical Assessments of Boundary Perturbations in Steklov Eigenvalue Problem

Eylem Bahadır^{1⊠}, Önder Türk^{2⊠}

¹ Gebze Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Kocaeli, Turkey ² Middle East Technical University, Institute of Applied Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, we investigate the influence of boundary perturbations on the eigenvalues of the Steklov eigenvalue problem (EVP) both analytically and numerically. Various one- and two- dimensional cases are considered with different families of boundary conditions by introducing a set of differing perturbations. Theoretically, we explore the convergence together with its order of the perturbed eigenvalues to the original eigenvalues by Taylor's series expansion of the errors between the two eigenvalues in terms of a characteristic perturbation parameter. We further investigate numerically the convergence properties of the approximate eigenvalues of the perturbed problem obtained using the finite element method to those of the continuous (unperturbed) problem. These results reveal the fact that for a fixed mesh, the dependence on the perturbation parameter is in coherence with the already mentioned behavior. Moreover, the Steklov EVP is considered on regular polygons, which are assumed to be variations of the unit disc and inscribed in this disc with an increasing number of sides. We numerically show that the multiple eigenvalues on the polygon can be represented in terms of inverse powers of the number of the sides, as given in [1] for the simple eigenvalues of the Laplace EVP. We propose a procedure based on the shape derivative formula given in [2] to analytically investigate the series representation of the eigenvalues of the Steklov EVP on regular polygons. In the numerical investigation, the eigenvalues of the Steklov EVP on regular polygons are obtained numerically using the finite element method. Furthermore, we provide a proof of convergence of the FEM solution to the exact solution for the unperturbed cases, that is based on the spectral theory.

Keywords: Steklov EVP, FEM, boundary perturbations.

- [1] Grinfeld, P., & Strang, G. (2012). Laplace eigenvalues on regular polygons: A series in 1/N. Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications, 385(1), 135–149.
- [2] Dambrine, M., Kateb D., & Lamboley J. (2016). An extremal eigenvalue problem for the Wentzell-Laplace operator, Annales de l'Institut Henri Poincare (C) Non-Linear Analysis, 33(2), 409–450.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: eylemilke@yandex.com, oturk@metu.edu.tr

Approximation to Fractals by Means of Non-Affine Contraction Mappings

İsmail Aslan¹, Nisa Aslan²

¹ Hacettepe University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey ² Eskişehir Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Eskişehir, Turkey

Abstract

Fractals are one of the popular topic in the recent years. They defined as the geometry of the nature by Mandelbrot. They also have many applications not also on applied mathematics and geometry [2,3,4], but also on physics, chemistry, biology, engineering and image processing. Many methods exist in obtaining fractals such as iterated function systems, escape time algorithms and etc [2,3,4]. In this presentation, we concentrate on the iterated function systems linking to nonlinear kernels using in approximation theory.

Although different definitions are encountered in the literature, fractals can be named as self-similar sets in general. As it is known, most of the fractals such as Sierpinski triangle, Sierpinski carpet, Sierpinski tetrahedron, Vicsek fractal and Koch curve can be obtained as an attractor of an iterated function systems [3,4]. It is seen that the contraction mappings used in obtaining these fractals are generally affine transformations. In this study, it is aimed to approach fractals which are obtained by affine or non-affine contraction mappings, by using new non-affine transformations. For this purpose firstly, non-affine transform sequences will be obtained with the help of the known contraction mappings using the Lipschitz continuity property of the kernel function sequences used in linearization of non-linear operators [1]. Later, approximations to fractals will be obtained by using iterated function systems. Construction of new self-similar sets which are obtained by new non-affine contraction mappings are also among the targets of this work. Also, approximations for some well-known fractals will be visualized with the help mathematical programs.

Keywords: Iterated function systems, non-affine contraction mappings, classical fractals

Acknowledgements

This work is supported by the Eskişehir Technical University Research Fund under contract 20ADP134.

- [1] Aslan, I. & Duman, O., (2020). Approximation by nonlinear integral operators via summability process. Math. Nachr., 293 (3), 430-448.
- [2] Aslan, N., Saltan, M. & Demir, B., (2018). A different construction of the classical fractals via the escape time algorithm. Journal of Abstract and Computational Mathematics, 3 (4), 1-15.
- [3] Barnsley, M.F., (1988). Fractals Everywhere, Academic Press, San Diego, CA, USA.
- [4] Gulick, D., (1988). Encounters with Chaos and Fractals, Boston, MA, USA: Academic Press.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ismail-aslan@hacettepe.edu.tr</u>

Solving Stochastic Differential Equations with Generalized Entropy Optimization Methods and Simulation

Nihal İnce [⊠]

Eskisehir Technical University, Department of Statistics, Eskisehir, Turkey

Abstract

In recent years, stochastic differential equations (SDEs) have been included in the literature and become an area of interest with the introduction of randomness to the structure of the problem. Stochastic differential equation models play an important role in various application areas such as biology, physics, chemistry, micro-electronics, biomedical sciences, economics, and mathematical finance. Analytical solutions to many differential equations are quite difficult to find. For SDEs, the solution is much more difficult due to the random variable. In this study, Euler-Maruyama (EM) and Milstein methods are used to numerically solve the SDEs. It should be noted that by starting given statistical data using numerical methods it is possible to construct several trajectories of SDE. At fixed time, mentioned trajectories allow attaining approximate random variable of solution of SDE. In addition, the appropriate probability density function (pdf) of the solution mentioned SDE at a fixed time is found by using Generalized Entropy Optimization Methods (GEOM). The reason for using Generalized Entropy Optimization Distributions (GEOD) represented by GEOM is fact that these distributions are more flexible than other distributions. In application, the mentioned method is fulfilled using a simulated dataset. To demonstrate the efficiency of numerical methods, approximation solutions are compared with the exact solution for different sample paths using Monte Carlo (MC) simulation for each method. GEOD evaluated for simulated data is compared with the corresponding solution of MC simulation in the sense of entropy measures and other statistical measures. In our investigations, two positions are considered. Firstly, GEOD is compared with the exact solutions of MC simulation if it exists. Secondly, if the exact solution of MC simulation doesn't exist, then by approximate methods mentioned solution is obtained and is compared with GEOD. Finally, acquired results show that the fields of applications of GEOM in SDEs can be expanded.

Keywords: Generalized entropy optimization methods, Euler-Maruyama method, Milstein method, Monte-Carlo simulation

Acknowledgements

I would like to sincerely thank my thesis supervisor, Prof. Dr. Sevil Senturk for her share of experiences and expertise. I also would like to thank Prof. Dr. Aladdin Shamilov for his theoretical support on my study.

- [1] Iacus, S. M. (2009). Simulation and inference for stochastic differential equations: with R examples. Springer Science & Business Media.
- [2] Shamilov, A. (2010). Generalized entropy optimization problems with finite moment function sets, Journal of Statistics and Management Systems, 3(3), 595-603.
- [3] İnce, N., & Shamilov, A. (2020). An application of new method to obtain probability density function of solution of stochastic differential equations. Applied Mathematics and Nonlinear Sciences, 5(1), 337-348.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: nihalyilmaz@eskisehir.edu.tr

Parabolic Optimal Control Problems Described by Partial Differential Inclusions

Sevilay Demir Sağlam^{1⊠}, Elimhan N. Mahmudov^{2,3}

¹ Istanbul University, Department of Mathematics, Istanbul, Turkey
 ² Istanbul Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Istanbul, Turkey
 ³ Azerbaijan National Academy of Sciences, Institute of Control Systems, Baku, Azerbaijan

Abstract

The paper concerns the optimization of partial differential inclusions of the parabolic type given by polyhedral set-valued mappings. We derive the optimality conditions for the problems under consideration by employing the result of the discrete approximation problem associated with the continuous problem. We formulate the sufficient conditions by passing formally to the limit as the discrete steps tend to zero in the discrete approximation problem. Over the last decade, significant progress has been made in various fields involving optimal control problems described by ordinary and partial differential equations and/or inclusions [1-9]. Variational analysis of partial differential inclusions is performed, and new optimality conditions of the Euler-Lagrange and Hamiltonian types are obtained using the process of discrete approximations and advanced generalized differentiation tools. We consider some linear optimal control problems to demonstrate the above approach.

Keywords: Partial differential inclusions, polyhedral optimization, optimality conditions

- [1] Cheng, Y., Cong, F., & Xue, X. (2011). Boundary value problems of a class of nonlinear partial differential inclusions. Nonlinear Analysis: Real World Applications, 12(6), 3095-3102.
- [2] Demir Sağlam, S. (2021). The Optimality Principle For Second-order Discrete and Discrete-Approximate Inclusions. An International Journal of Optimization and Control: Theories & Applications (IJOCTA), 11(2), 206-215.
- [3] Demir Sağlam, S., & Mahmudov, E.N. (2020). Optimality Conditions for Higher Order Polyhedral Discrete and Differential Inclusions. Filomat, 34(13), 4533-4553.
- [4] Demir Sağlam, S., & Mahmudov, E.N. (2021). Polyhedral Optimization of Second-Order Discrete and Differential Inclusions with Delay. Turkish J. of Mathematics, 45(1), 244-263.
- [5] Mahmudov, E.N. (2011). Approximation and Optimization of Discrete and Differential Inclusions. Elsevier, Boston, USA.
- [6] Mahmudov, E.N. (2008). Sufficient conditions for optimality for differential inclusions of parabolic type and duality. J. Global Optimization, 41(1), 31-42.
- [7] Mahmudov, E.N. (2021). Optimal control of first order partial differential inclusions in bounded region. International J. of Control, DOI:10.1080/00207179.2021.1886328
- [8] Mahmudov, E.N., Demir, S., & Değer, Ö. (2016). Optimization of third-order discrete and differential inclusions described by polyhedral set-valued mappings. Applicable Analysis, 95, 1831-1844.
- [9] Mordukhovich, B.S. (2006). Variational Analysis and Generalized Differentiation, Vols.I and II. Springer, Springer-Verlag Berlin Heidelberg.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: sevilay.demir@istanbul.edu.tr

Successive Iterations and Positive Solutions for Hadamard Type Fractional Differential Equations on an Infinite Interval

Fulya Yoruk Deren^{1⊠}, Tugba Senlik Cerdik²

¹ Ege University, Department of Mathematics, Izmir, Turkey
² Beykent University, Department of Mathematics, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Fractional calculus and fractional differential equations are very important subjects for scientists in investigating real world problems such as physics, control theory, chemistry, biology, engineering, economy and other areas. (See [1,2].) So far, various different definitions of fractional derivatives have been given such as Riemann Liouville, Caputo, Hadamard type fractional derivative. Except than commonly studied Riemann Liouville and Caputo fractional differential equations, we investigated Hadamard type fractional differential equations. This type of fractional derivatives involves a logarithmic function of arbitrary exponent. Recently, Thiramanus *et al.* studied the existence of nonnegative multiple solutions for Hadamard fractional differential equations on an unbounded domain by using the Leggett-Williams and Guo-Krasnoselskii's fixed point theorems [3]. Wang *et al.* considered the iterative positive solutions for a nonlocal Hadamard type fractional differential equation supplemented with nonlocal Hadamard integral and discrete boundary conditions. By employing the monotone iterative method, they obtained the twin positive solutions and the unique positive solution of the nonlocal boundary value problem [4].

In this paper, we focused on the existence results for the Hadamard fractional boundary value problem on an unbounded domain. Because of the noncompactness of an infinite interval, the fractional boundary value problems on an infinite interval have little been studied. We used monotone iterative method and the properties of the Green function to obtain the existence results of positive solutions for the fractional boundary value problem. But, we also construct the iterative scheme for approximating the solutions. Moreover, this method does not require the existence of upper and lower solutions.

Keywords: Fractional differential equations, fixed point theory, positive solutions.

- [1] Podlubny, I. (1999) Fractional Differential Equations. Academic Press, San Diego.
- [2] Kilbas, A.A., Srivastava, H.M., Trujillo, J.J. (2006) Theory and Applications of Fractional Differential Equations, in: North-Holland Mathematics Studies, vol. 204, Elsevier Science B.V, Amsterdam.
- [3] Thiramanus, P., Ntouyas, S. K., Tariboon, J. (2016) Positive solutions for Hadamard fractional differential equations on infinite domain, Adv. D. Equ. (83):18.
- [4] Wang, G., Pei, K., Agarwal, R.P., Zhang, L., Ahmad, B. (2018) Nonlocal Hadamard fractional boundary value problem with Hadamard integral and discrete boundary conditions on a half-line, Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics 343 230–239.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: fulya.yoruk@ege.edu.tr

A Multi-Objective Approach for a Cubic Cell Formation with Quality Index

Yeliz Buruk Sahin^{1⊠}, Burak Urazel²

Eskisehir Osmangazi University, Industrial Engineering Department, Eskisehir, Turkey
 Eskisehir Osmangazi University, Electrical and Electronics Engineering Department, Eskisehir, Turkey

Abstract

As a popular field, studies on cellular manufacturing systems generally deal with indicators such as grouping efficiency and grouping efficacy that considers voids and exceptional elements. Besides, it is noteworthy that human issues have been dealt with in recent years [1]. The structure, which deals with the worker-machine-part matrix in a multidimensional way, has been called as the cubic cell formation problem in the literature [2,3]. There are many studies on this subject and it can be said that an important aspect of the studies is the quality dimension [4]. Although the aim in cubic CFP studies was to minimize the movement of workers between cells, it became important to transfer skilled workers from outside the cell to produce higher quality products. Due to the importance of employees, considering their skills in part processing and machine capabilities can improve the quality of cellular manufacturing systems. Thus, it was ensured that the quality of the parts produced was increased by selecting the appropriate workers.

In this study, the part processing skills of workers and machines were taken into account, as well as well-known cell performance indicators. The study also revealed a comprehensive literature review of the literature addressing the human factor in the cellular manufacturing system. To solve the problem, a new model was developed based on the basic cell formation constraints. The model was linearized with additional constraints. The mathematical model developed for the solution of the problem was coded in the GAMS 24.2.1 software and the model effectiveness was demonstrated on the numerical examples.

Keywords: cubic cell formation, quality index, part-machine-worker matrix

- [1] Rabbani, M., Habibnejad-Ledari, H., Rafiei, H., & Farshbaf-Geranmayeh, A. (2016). A bi-objective mathematical model for dynamic cell formation problem considering learning e ect, human issues, and worker assignment. Scientia Iranica, 23(5), 2341-2354.
- [2] Bootaki, B., Mahdavi, I., & Paydar, M. M. (2014). A hybrid GA-AUGMECON method to solve a cubic cell formation problem considering different worker skills. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 75, 31-40.
- [3] Sahin, Y. B., & Alpay, S. (2016). A metaheuristic approach for a cubic cell formation problem. Expert Systems with Applications, 65, 40-51.
- [4] Bouaziz, H., Berghida, M., & Lemouari, A. (2020). Solving the generalized cubic cell formation problem using discrete flower pollination algorithm. Expert Systems with Applications, 150, 113345.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: yelizburuk@ogu.edu.tr

Ball Balancing Table PID Controller Design with Optimization Algorithms

Mahmut Gökhan Turgut[⊠], Ö. Tolga Altınöz

Ankara University, Electrical-Electronic Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

In this research a PID controller has been developed for ball balancing experimental set which is a common example of the dynamical system used to apply control concepts [1]. It aims to control the position of the ball changes according to the angle of the platform. In this study we will work on Acrome Ball Balancing Table [2]. System must be controlled to bring the ball to the desired position. Since the PID (Proportional integral derivative) controller was proposed, it has been a worldwide solution for a control system [3]. For finding the best PID controller values which are necessary to keep the ball balanced, there are several methods to determine them, such as trial and error method, mathematical methods, Ziegler Nichols method. These classical methods have some disadvantages, they need to describe with mathematical functions, and they are not flexible [4]. For that reason, we preferred nature inspired optimization algorithms which are probabilistic search methods that simulate the natural biological evolution or the behavior of biological entities. Such algorithms can be used to obtain near optimal solutions in optimization problems [5]. In optimization algorithms, fitness function, which is performance criterion, is important. Fitness functions generally based on error equations. In this study we used Particle swarm optimization (PSO), firefly optimization (FA), artificial bee colony optimization (ABC), bees optimization (BA) and invasive weed optimization (IWO) with integral absolute error (IAE) fitness function and these algorithms have been compared. PID results shown below on the table. In the research we will use different controllers based on PID, such as PIDA, PIDC, 2 DOF PID, Fuzzy PID. And the all results will be tried on the real platform.

Algorithm	Rise Time	Settling Time	Overshoot	Steady State Error
ABC	0.1268	0.5352	2.3390	0.0260
BA	0.1269	0.5211	2.4839	0.0245
FA	0.1267	0.5352	2.3446	0.0259
IWO	0.1268	0.5366	2.3427	0.0259
PSO	0.1267	0.5352	2.3432	0.0260

Keywords: Ball Balancing Table, Controller Algorithms, PID Controller, Optimization, Optimization Algorithms, PSO, ABC, IWO, FA, BA.

- [1] Nunez, D., Acosta, G., Jimenez, J. (2020). Control of a ball and plate system using a state feedback controller. Ingeniare. Revista cgilena de ingenieria, vol. 28 No 1, pp. 6-15.
- [2] Acrome Ltd., Ball Balancing Table User Manual, pp.1-64, 2014
- [3] Puangdownreong, D. (2012). Application of Current Search to Optimum PIDA Controller Design, Intelligent Control and Automation, 3, 303-312. pp 1-10.
- [4] Özsağlam, M. Y., Çunkaş M. (2008). Particle Swarm Optimization Algorithm for Solving Optimization Problems, Journal of Polytechnic, vol. 11, no. 4, pp.299-305.
- [5] Krishananand, K.R., Nayak, S.K., Panigrahi, B.K., Rout, P.K., (2009). Comparative Study of Five Bio-Inspired Evolutionary Optimization Techniques, Cong. Nature & Biologically Inspired Comp. pp.1-6.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: mahmutgokhan@hotmail.com

A Chaotic Dynamical System on the Box Fractal

Nisa Aslan^{1⊠}, Mustafa Saltan¹

¹Eskişehir Technical University, Mathematics Department, Eskişehir, Türkiye

Abstract

In the recent years, there are various studies related to fractals in the different areas such as mathematics, engineering, physics, biology, economics etc. One of the subject of these studies is to define a dynamical system on the self-similar sets. For example, a dynamical system is naturally defined by Barnsley on the right-Sierpinski gasket by using the related iterated function system (IFS) in [2]. Furthermore, in [1-5], the dynamical systems are given on the Sierpinski triangle and the Sierpinski tetrahedron which are defined by using different methods. On the other hand, to define intrinsic metrics on the fractals is also an important problem. Because of these metrics, many geometrical and topological properties of the structures can be investigated. Moreover, these metrics are necessary for examining whether a dynamical system is chaotic or not in the sense of Devaney (for details see [3]).

In this study, our aim is to define a chaotic dynamical system on the box fractal by using expanding and folding mappings. In order to express these dynamical systems more apprehensibly, we use the code representations of the points of the box fractal which provides us many conveniences when analyzing the properties of the dynamical system. Therefore, we first define a dynamical system as a composition function of expanding and folding mappings. Then we express this function on the code sets of the Box fractal by using the code representation of the points. We also give an algorithm to compute the periodic points and finally we show that this dynamical system is chaotic in the sense of Devaney by using the intrinsic metric given in [5].

Keywords: Box Fractal, Devaney chaos, code representations, dynamical system

Acknowledgements

This work is supported by the Eskişehir Technical University Research Fund under contract 19ADP160.

- [1] Aslan, N., Saltan, M. & Demir, B., (2019). The intrinsic metric formula and a chaotic dynamical system on the code set of the Sierpinski tetrahedron. Chaos, Solitons and Fractals, 123, 422-428.
- [2] Barnsley, M. F. (1988). Fractals Everywhere. Academic Press, Boston.
- [3] Devaney, R.L. (1989) An introduction to chaotic dynamical systems. Addison-Wesley Publishing Company.
- [4] Özdemir, Y., Saltan, M., & Demir, B. (2019), The intrinsic metric on the box fractal. *Bull. Iran. Math. Soc.* 45, 1269-1281.
- [5] Saltan, M., Aslan, N. & Demir, B., (2019). A discrete chaotic dynamical system on the Sierpinski gasket. Turk. J. Math., 43, 361-372.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>nisakucuk@eskisehir.edu.tr</u>

Multi-Derivative, Multi-Stage and Multi-Step Time Integration Methods

Hüseyin Tunc[™], Murat Sari

Yildiz Technical University, Mathematics Department, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

The implicit methods are the best options for solving stiff initial value problems. The implicit time-integration algorithms are computationally costly especially for solving large nonlinear systems. Thus, an implicit solver must be optimized in terms of the local degrees of freedom of the algebraic system of equations. The multi-stage implicit algorithms such as the implicit Runge-Kutta methods (IRKM), implicit Lobatto methods or implicit Radau methods have more degrees of freedom than the linear multi-step methods. The linear multi-step methods such as the backward differentiation formulations (BDFs), the Adam-Bashford methods (ABMs) and the Adam-Moulton methods (AMMs) take advantage of the optimized degrees of freedom. However, this group of algorithms have a lack of storage problems and order-preservation drawback for, especially stiff problems. Here we show that multi-step methods require generally fewer time-steps than the multi-stage methods to get the same accuracy for the solution of stiff problems. An inevitable question arises here: can a stiff solver have both optimized degrees of freedom and order preservation? By eliminating the existing drawbacks of the differential transform method (DTM) based explicit solvers, the implicit-explicit local differential transform method (IELDTM) as a multi-derivative method is here proven to satisfy both essential properties.

Keywords: Time integration, Taylor series, implicit algorithms, stiff problems, initial value problems

- [1] Tunc, H. & Sari, M. (2019). A local differential transform approach for the cubic nonlinear Duffing oscillator with damping term. Scientia Iranica, 26(2), 879-886.
- [2] Tan, Z. & Zhang, C. (2018). Implicit-explicit one-leg methods for nonlinear stiff neutral equations. Applied Mathematics and Computation, 335, 196–210.
- [3] Higueras, I. & Roldán, T. (2019). Strong stability preserving properties of composition Runge–Kutta schemes, Journal of Scientific Computing, 80, 784-807.
- [4] Cash, J.R. (2000). Modified extended backward differentiation formulae for the numerical solution of stiff initial value problems in ODEs and DAEs. Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics 125, 117-130.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: tnchsyn@gmail.com

The Construction of a Dynamical System on the Sierpinski Propeller

Nisa Aslan^{1⊠}, Saliha Şeker¹, Mustafa Saltan¹

¹Eskişehir Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Eskişehir, Türkiye

Abstract

Fractals, which are also knowns as self-similar sets, are one of the popular topics of recent years due to their relationship with nature and they have also been researched in many different fields. The self-similarity is the main common property of these sets and it comes to the fore in many studies [2]. Self-similarity can be divided into different classes such as strictly self-similar, not strictly self-similar, and random self-similarity. Sierpinski triangle, Sierpinski tetrahedron, Box (Vicsek) are important examples of strong self-similar sets. In recent years, many different studies have been carried out on these strong self-similar sets by formulating the intrinsic metric [1,4].

On the other hand, there is no known dynamical system which is expressed by using code representations of the points on a not strictly self-similar set in the literature. Our main aim is to define a dynamical system on a not strictly self-similar fractal model, Sierpinski propeller. This set is actually formed by selecting one of the corner points of the Sierpinski triangle and combining different numbers of Sierpinski triangles at this point. Each neighborhood of this corner point contains the Sierpinski propeller. The intrinsic metric formulas are defined on the Sierpinski propellers with the help of code representations of the points in [3].

In this study, in order to define a dynamical system on the Sierpinski propeller, we use some transformations in accordance with the structure of this fractal, such as expanding, folding, translation and rotation mapping. Finally, we express this dynamical system by using the code representations of the points.

Keywords: Sierpinski Propeller, dynamical system, intrinsic metric.

Acknowledgements

This work is supported by the Eskişehir Technical University Research Fund under contract 20ADP238.

- [1] Aslan, N., Saltan, M. & Demir, B., (2019). The intrinsic metric formula and a chaotic dynamical system on the code set of the Sierpinski tetrahedron. Chaos, Solitons and Fractals, 123, 422-428.
- [2] Barnsley, M. F. (1988). Fractals Everywhere. Academic Press, Boston.
- [3] Güneri, M., & Saltan, M. (2019). Intrinsic metric formulas on some self-similar sets via the code representation. Fractal and Fractional, 3(1), 13.
- [4] Saltan, M., Aslan, N. & Demir, B., (2019). A discrete chaotic dynamical system on the Sierpinski gasket. Turk. J. Math., 43, 361-372.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>nisakucuk@eskisehir.edu.tr</u>

An Application of Double Stranded Smoothing Technique in Image Processing

Ahmet Şahiner ^{1⊠}, Nurullah Yılmaz¹

¹Süleyman Demirel University, Mathematics Department, Isparta, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, using Bezier curves a double stranded smoothing function is used to smooth total variation norm (TV). Experimental results are given by comparing the results obtained by hyperbolic smoothing, and global single stranded smoothing functions.

Keywords: Smoothing technique, total variation, regularization problems

- [1] Landi, G. (2015). A Modified Newton projection method for l_1 regularized least squares image deblurring, J. Math Imaging Vis., 51, 195-208.
- [2] Liu, C., Ng, M. K.-P. & Zeng, T. (2018). Weighted variational model for selective image segmentation with application to medical images. Pattern Recognition, 76, 367-379.
- [3] Sahiner, A., Yilmaz, N. & Kapusuz, G. (2017). A descent global optimization method based on smoothing techniques via Bezier curves. Carpathian J. Math., 33(3), 373–380.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ahmetsahiner@sdu.edu.tr</u>

Fractional Mathematical Model Created to Prevent Cancer Cells from Escaping the Immune system

Esmehan Uçar^{1⊠}, Necati Özdemir¹, Eren Altun²

¹ Balıkesir University, Mathematics Department, Balıkesir, Turkey ² Balıkesir University, Medical Pathology Department, Balıkesir, Turkey

Abstract

In this article, we studied the new model created with the help of IL-10 cytokine and anti-PD-L1 inhibitor to increase the number and yield of CD8+T cells. This new model was created upon the destruction of cancer cells by the immune system, which have gained the ability to hide from the immune system. In addition, this new model is expressed with the Caputo fractional derivative because of hereditary and memory effect. We analyze stability analysis by finding eigenvalues for the this model described in this study. Finally, the graphics related to the mathematical model obtained with the fractional derivative is obtained and interpreted.

Keywords: CD8+T cells, immune system, fractional derivative

- [1] Chan I.H., Wu V., Bilardello M., Mar E., Oft M., Van Vlasselaer P., Mumm J.B. (2015). The potentiation of IFN-γ and induction of cytotoxic proteins by pegylated IL-10 in human CD8 T cell. Journal of Interferon & Cytokine Research, 35 (12): 948–955.
- [2] Fujii S., Shimizu K., Shimizu T., Lotze M.T. (2001). Interleukin-10 promotes the maintenance of antitumor CD8(+) T-cell effector function in situ. Blood, 98 (7): 2143–51.
- [3] Podlunby I. (1999) Fractioanl differential equations. Academic Press, New York.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>esucarr@gmail.com</u>

Solution of First-Order Hyperbolic Partial Differential Equation Using Neural Networks

Pelin Çelenk^{1⊠}, Seda Gülen², Murat Sari³

Yildiz Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Istanbul, Turkey
 Tekirdag Namik Kemal University, Department of Mathematics, Tekirdag, Turkey
 Yildiz Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, an artificial neural network method is proposed to solve a first-order hyperbolic partial differential equation. This technique uses a trial function that depends on a neural network and satisfies the initial and boundary conditions to approach the solution of the problem. The unknown parameters of the neural network are adjusted by the gradient-descent optimization method that is a method to minimize the lost function. The numerical results of the problem are compared with the exact and available literature solutions. It is seen that the present method solution is closer to the exact solution than the literature method. Thus, it has been found that the proposed method that can capture the behavior of the problem is reliable and accurate.

Keywords: Neural Networks, Gradient Descent, First-Order Hyperbolic Partial Differential Equation

Acknowledgements

Acknowledgements may be made to those individuals or institutions not mentioned elsewhere in the paper that made an important contribution.

- [1] Hayati, M. and Karami, B. (2007). Feedforward Neural Network for Solving Partial Differential Equations. Journal of Applied Sciences, 7(19), 2812-2817
- [2] Largris, I.E. and Likas, A. (1998). Artificial Neural Networks for Solving Ordinary and Partial Differential Equations. IEEE transaction on neural networks, 9(5), 987-1000.
- [3] Eskiizmirliler, S., Günel, K. and Polat, R. (2020). On the Solution of the Black–Scholes Equation Using Feed-Forward Neural Networks. Computational Economics, (2020)
- [4] Altıparmak, K. (2009). A numerical solution for the first-order hyperbolic partial differential equations by using a factorized diagonal non-polynomial approximation. International Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics, 52.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>pelin.emecann@gmail.com</u>

Household Lockdowns on Weekends can Marginally Reduce the Need for Contact Isolation and Social Distancing to Protect Economic Activity

Ramin Nashebi¹, Murat Sari¹, Seyfullah Enes Kotil ²

Yildiz Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Istanbul, Turkey
 Bahcesehir University, Department of Medicinal Microbiology, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Human behaviour, number of work hours, household lockdowns and economic activity are inseparably entangled in epidemic management. The majority of models are phenomenological. Complex phenomena are represented by simple mathematical expressions, treated with well mixed and meanfield approximations. To address this issue, we further augmented a stochastic, time discrete agent-based model by categorizing the nodes into three categories: household, workplaces, and social environment. By doing so, we track the place of infections. The data that we used is obtained from a real-world social network. We developed methods to simulate household lockdowns explicitly. We found that to stabilize the COVID-19 ($R_0 = 1$), an 91.67% reduction of transmission probability in non-home environments is needed when agents can work 9 hours during the weekdays and act freely on weekends. A minor decrease to 86.16% is required when agents are locked down on weekends. The household lockdown at weekends can also be regarded as a successful staying-at-home policy at weekends. Also, reduction of work hours, from 9 to 6 hours, is as effective as weekend household lockdown. The epidemic can stabilize at higher hidden R_0 depending on the success of contact-tracing/isolation. The impact of the short household lockdowns increases with higher targeted R_0 . If the hidden R_0 is 1.5, at the same conditions, the reduction is 79.34% and 65.20% for no household lockdown and household lockdown at weekends. Overall, if the public is moderately more successful in social distancing measures and policy dictates successful contact-tracing/isolation, then the household lockdowns may not be necessary. In the long run, it shows the importance of approaching pandemic management by keeping human compliance as high as possible. Additionally, our modeling allowed us to understand the contribution of non-home and home environments on overall dissemination of the epidemic. We found that although most of infections occur in homes when $R_0 < 1$, dissemination ultimately depends on non-home transmission.

Keywords: COVID-19, Agent-based model, Household effect, Social network

Acknowledgements

This work was supported by TUBITAK, 2232 - International Fellowship for Outstanding Researchers, Project number 11C244.

- [1] Nande A, Adlam B, Sheen J, Levy MZ, Hill AL (2021) Dynamics of COVID-19 under social distancing measures are driven by transmission network structure. PLOS Computational Biology 17(2): e1008684.
- [2] Stephen M. Kissler, Petra Klepac, Maria Tang (2019). Supplemental Information for: Sparking "The BBC Four Pandemic": Leveraging citizen science and mobile phones to model the spread of disease.
- [3] Hannah Ritchie (2021), COVID-19: Stay-at-Home Restrictions [online] Our World in Data. Available at: https://ourworldindata.org/covid-stay-home-restrictions [Accessed 2 Feberuary 2021]

 $^{^{\}boxtimes} Corresponding \ Author \ Email: \ \underline{enesseyfullah.kotil@med.bau.edu.tr}$

Hermite-Bell Based Bernoulli Polynomials

Uğur Duran[⊠], Mehmet Açıkgöz²

¹ İskenderun Technical University, Department of Basic Sciences of Engineering, Hatay, Turkey ² University of Gaziantep, Department of Mathematics, Gaziantep, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, we introduce Hermite-Bell based Bernoulli polynomials and then investigate multifarious relations and formulas including some implicit summation formulas, identities and derivative properties.

Keywords: Bernoulli polynomials, Bell polynomials, Hermite polynomials, Generating functions

- [1] Kim, D.S. and Kim, T. (2015). Some identities of Bell polynomials. Sci. China Math., 58, 2095-2104.
- [2] Khan, N. and Husain, S. (2021). Analysis of Bell based Euler polynomials and their application. arXiv:2104.09129v1 [math.NT].
- [3] Dere, R. and Simsek, Y. (2015). Hermite base Bernoulli type polynomials on the umbral algebra. Russ. J. Math. Phys., 22, 1–5.
- [4] Carlitz, L. (1980). Some remarks on the Bell numbers. Fibonacci Quart., 18, 66-73.
- [5] Duran, U., Araci, S. and Acikgoz, M. (2021). Bell-Based Bernoulli Polynomials with Applications. Axioms, 10, 29.
- [6] Pathan, M.A. and Khan, W.A. (2015). Some implicit summation formulas and symmetric identities for the generalized Hermite-Bernoulli polynomials. Mediterr. J. Math., 12, 679–695.
- [7] Srivastava, H.M. and Pinter, A. (2004). Remarks on some relationships between the Bernoulli and Euler polynomials. Appl. Math. Lett., 17, 375–380.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ugur.duran@iste.edu.tr</u>

Degenerate Poisson-Charlier Polynomials

Uğur Duran[⊠], Mehmet Açıkgöz²

¹ İskenderun Technical University, Department of Basic Sciences of Engineering, Hatay, Turkey ² University of Gaziantep, Department of Mathematics, Gaziantep, Turkey

Abstract

In this work, we consider degenerate form of the Poisson-Charlier polynomials and then investigate some of their properties and identities. Also, we derive some implicit summation formulas, integral representation and derivative property for the degenerate Poisson-Charlier polynomials.

Keywords: Degenerate exponential function, Poisson-Charlier polynomials, Special polynomials, Generating functions

- [1] Kucukoglu, I., Simsek, B. and Simsek, Y. (2019). Generating Functions for New Families of Combinatorial Numbers and Polynomials: Approach to Poisson–Charlier Polynomials and Probability Distribution Function. Axioms, 8, 112.
- [2] Ozmen, N. and Erkus-Duman, E. (2015). On the Poisson–Charlier polynomials. Serdica Math. J., 41, 457–470.
- [3] Simsek, Y. (2019). Formulas for Poisson–Charlier, Hermite, Milne-Thomson and other type polynomials by their generating functions and p-adic integral approach. RACSAM Rev. R. Acad. A, 113, 931–948.
- [4] Carlitz, L. (1980). Some remarks on the Bell numbers. Fibonacci Quart., 18, 66-73.
- [5] Srivastava, H.M. and Pinter, A. (2004). Remarks on some relationships between the Bernoulli and Euler polynomials. Appl. Math. Lett., 17, 375–380.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ugur.duran@iste.edu.tr</u>

An Elliptically Shaped Ice Particle with Non-Uniform Density and Air Interplay Between Parallel Side Walls

Samire Yazar[⊠]

Ordu University, Department of Mathematics, Ordu, Turkey

Abstract

A relatively quite dense particle moving within a fluid especially in the case of air being the fluid is one of the most challenging problem in the aviation industry [1,2]. In the past few years, quite a few different dynamic fluid-particle interactions have been investigated [3-6]. Applications arise in aerodynamic safety context such as the movement of the ice particles into an aircraft engine intake. This phenomenon has potential risk for aircraft passengers [1,2]. In this study, we focus on a single elliptically shaped ice particle's motion between parallel side walls filled with air. The configuration valid for the case of an ice particle surrounded by air, corresponds to the density of the elliptically shaped ice particle being remarkably larger than the density of the fluid. The kinematic relations between the unknown mass fluxes are found owing to the pressure boundary conditions. Unsteady particle motion is accompanied by a quasi-steady air flow, presented by the core equations. The gravitational effects on the ice particle are omitted in this set-up. The effects of each parameter on the system are also examined. The pressure difference creates a positive lift-force and negative moment for a uniform density distributed particle which therefore moves upwards and clockwise. Comparisons between analysis and numerical work show a good agreement. Finally, a rapid time scale is defined and it is found that the particle with nonuniform density (particularly a front-loaded ice particle) free to travel inside parallel side walls has unusual behaviour, giving antiperiodic and irregular oscillations when interacting with the air, which is a very powerful result.

Keywords: Nonlinear dynamics, air-particle interaction, computation, direct numerical simulation

Acknowledgements

The author thanks Prof Frank Smith (UCL, London) for his valuable comments and suggestions to improve the paper.

- [1] Gent, R. W., Dart, N. P., & Cansdale, J. T. (2000). Aircraft icing. Philosophical Transactions of the Royal Society of London. Series A: Mathematical, Physical and Engineering Sciences 358 (1776), 2873–2911.
- [2] Purvis, R., & Smith, F. T. (2016). Improving aircraft safety in icing conditions. In UK Success Stories in Industrial Mathematics, 145–151. Springer.
- [3] Hicks, P. D., & Purvis, R. (2013). Liquid-solid impacts with compressible gas cushioning. Journal of fluid mechanics 735,120-149.
- [4] Loisel, V., Abbas, M., Masbernat, O., & Climent, E. (2013). The effect of neutrally buoyant finite-size particles on channel flows in the laminar-turbulent transition regime. Physics of Fluids 25 (12), 123304.
- [5] Kishore, N., & Gu, S. (2010). Wall effects on flow and drag phenomena of spheroid particles at moderate reynolds numbers. Industrial & Engineering Chemistry Research 49 (19), 9486–9495.
- [6] Loth, E., & Dorgan, A. J. (2009). An equation of motion for particles of finite Reynolds number and size. Environmental Fluid Mechanics 9 (2), 187–206.

[☐] Corresponding Author Email: samirebalta@odu.edu.tr

Stability of Common Research Lab with Asymmetric Firms: Effects of an Exclusive Membership Rule Versus an Open Membership Rule Approach

Razika Sait ^{1 ⊠}, Abdelhakim Hammoudi ², Mohammed Said Radjef ¹

¹ LaMOS Research Unit, Operational Research Department, University of Bejaia, Bejaia, Algeria
² University of Paris-Saclay, INRAE, UR ALISS, 94205 Ivry-sur-Seine, France

Abstract

This paper analyses stability conditions of R&D coalition within Common Research Lab agreements where asymmetric firms engage in cost-reducing R&D in the presence of technological spillovers. We determine endogenously and compare the size of stable coalition and the social welfare associated using D'Aspremont et al [1] approach based on Open Membership Rule [2], and the Exclusive Membership Rule [2]. We show that depending on spillover level, the blocking coalition of midsized groups allows to obtain an optimal coalition in the sens of Pareto, without requiring an aggregation of profits between the firms, compared to that one formed by Nash stability concept. This blocking coalition generates also a greater welfare compared to that one generated by the industry-wide coalition.

Keywords: Endogenous formation of research coalitions, R&D spillovers, Exclusive membership Rule, Open membership rule, Common Research Lab, Internal and External Stability of coalitions, Social welfare.

References

- [1] D'Aspremont, C., & Jacquemin, A. (1988). Cooperative and noncooperative R&D in duopoly with spillovers. The American Economic Review, 78(5), 1133-1137.
- [2] Yi, S.-S. (1998). Endogenous Formation of Joint Ventures with Efficiency Gains. RAND Journal of Economics, 29, 610–631.
- [3] Yi, S.-S., & Shin, H. (2000) Endogenous formation of research coalitions with spillovers. International Journal of Industrial Organization, 18, 229–256.

[™]Corresponding Author Email: razika.sait@gmail.com

Genetic Algorithm Responses of Advection-Diffusion Processes

Murat Sari[⊠], Esra Yaganoglu, Hande Uslu

Yildiz Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, we propose an evolutionary approach based on genetic algorithm to obtain the advection diffusion responses of natural processes faced in many branches of science. Evolutionary processes such as crossover, mutation and selection yield the survival of the fittest so by using the algorithm, the optimum candidate solution of the advection-diffusion model is found. In the last part, two test problems are given and the method are compared with the analytic solution of the model equation.

Keywords: Advection-diffusion process, Genetic algorithm, Optimum solution

- [1] Diver, D.A. (1999). Applications of genetic algorithms to the solution of ordinary differential equations. Journal of Physics A: Mathematical and General 26(14), 3503
- [2] El-Emary, I.M.M. and Abd El-Kareem, M.M. (2008). Towards Using Genetic Algorithm for Solving Nonlinear Equation Systems. World Applied Sciences Journal, 5(3), 282-289.
- [3] Raudenský, M., Woodbury, K. A., Kral, J., & Brezina, T. (1995). Genetic algorithm in solution of inverse heat conduction problems. Numerical Heat Transfer, Part B Fundamentals, 28(3), 293-306.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: sarim@yildiz.edu.tr

International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering (ICAME) September 1-3, 2021 - Balikesir, Turkey

New Algorithms for Two-Sided Disassembly Line Balancing Problem

Zixiang Li¹, Ibrahim Kucukkoc^{2⊠}

Abstract

The recovery of end-of-life products become essential for economic and environmental benefits, where the disassembly of these products is the first and vital step [1]. Two-sided disassembly lines are utilized to disassemble the large-size products, whereas the developed methodologies on two-sided disassembly line balancing problem (TDLBP) are limited [2-3]. Hence, this study contributes the contributes to literature on TDLBP by introducing several recent metaheuristic algorithms to solve this NP-hard problem effectively. These metaheuristics are teaching—learning-based optimization algorithm, grey wolf optimizer, and whale optimization algorithm. Computational study is conducted to evaluate the performances of these methods and several new upper bounds are achieved by these methods in solving the large-size instances.

Keywords: Two-sided disassembly line, disassembly line balancing, meta-heuristics, manufacturing systems

- [3] Kucukkoc, I., Li, Z., & Li, Y. (2020). Type-E disassembly line balancing problem with multi-manned workstations. Optimization and Engineering, 21(2), 611-630.
- [4] Li, Z., Çil, Z. A., Mete, S., & Kucukkoc, I. (2020). A fast branch, bound and remember algorithm for disassembly line balancing problem. International Journal of Production Research, 58(11), 3220-3234.
- [5] Kucukkoc, I. (2020). Balancing of two-sided disassembly lines: Problem definition, MILP model and genetic algorithm approach. Computers & Operations Research, 124, 105064.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>ikucukkoc@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Mathematical Behaviour of Solutions for Kirchhoff-Type System with Logarithmic Nonlinearity

Tuğrul Cömert[™], Erhan Pişkin

Dicle University, Mathematics Department, Diyarbakır, Turkey

Abstract

This paper deals with the initial-boundary value problem for Kirchhoff-type system with logarithmic nonlinearity. We discuss the existence, uniqueness and exponential energy decay estimates of weak solutions under some conditions by employing potential method. Moreover, by concavity method, we derive the finite time blow-up results of weak solutions. Studies of logarithmic nonlinearity have a long history in physics as it occurs naturally in different areas of physics such as supersymmetric field theories, optics, quantum mechanics and inflationary cosmology [1-2]. Also, Kirchhoff model is very important for many applications in mechanics, elastic theory and other areas of mathematical physics. Recently some authors studied the parabolic and hyperbolic type equation with logarithmic source term [3-9].

Keywords: Kirchhoff-type system, Mathematical behaviour, Logarithmic nonlinearity

- [1] Bialynicki-Birula, I., & Mycielski, J. (1976). Nonlinear wave mechanics. Annals of Physics, 100(1-2) 62-93.
- [2] Gorka, P. (2009). Logarithmic Klein-Gordon equation. Acta Physica Polonica B, 40(1), 59-66.
- [3] Chen, H., & Tian, S. (2015). Initial boundary value problem for a class of semilinear pseudo-parabolic equations with logarithmic nonlinearity. Journal Differential Equations, 258, 4424-4442.
- [4] Chen, H., Luo, P., & Liu, G. (2015). Global solution and blow-up of a semilinear heat equation with logarithmic nonlinearity. Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications, 422(1), 84-98.
- [5] Nhan, L. C., & Truong, L. X. (2017). Global solution and blow-up for a class of pseudo p-Laplacian evolution equations with logarithmic nonlinearity. Computers and Mathematics with Applications, 73, 2076-2091.
- [6] Pişkin, E., & Cömert, T. (2020). Blow-up of solutions for a parabolic Kirchhoff type equation with logarithmic nonlinearity. Gulf Journal of Mathematics, 9(2), 21-30.
- [7] Wang, X., Chen, Y., Yang, Y., Li, J., & Xu, R. (2019). Kirchhoff-type system with linear weak damping and logarithmic nonlinearities. Nonlinear Analysis, 188, 475-499.
- [8] Yan, L., & Yang, Z. (2018). Blow-up and non-extinction for a nonlocal parabolic equation with logarithmic nonlinearity. Boundary Value Problems, 2018(121), 1-11.
- [9] Yang, Y., Li, J., & Yu, T. (2019). Qualitative analysis of solutions for a class of Kirchhoff equation with linear strong damping term, nonlinear weak damping term and power-type logarithmic source term. Applied Numerical Mathematics, 141, 263-285.

[☐] Corresponding Author Email: tugrulcomertt@gmail.com

Two Modular Equations Close to the Discrete Logarithm Problem

Sohaib Moussaid El Idrissi ^{1⊠}, Ismail Aounil², Omar Khadir¹

¹ Hassan II University of Casablanca, Fstm, Laboratory of Mathematics, Cryptography, Mechanics and Numérical Analysis, Mohammedia, Morocco

Abstract

Let p be a large prime number and fix any natural integers a, b, c smaller than p. Consider the three independent modular equations:

$$a^{x} \equiv b \pmod{p} \tag{1}$$

$$a^{x}x^{y} \equiv b \pmod{p} \tag{2}$$

$$a^{x}x^{b} \equiv c^{y} \pmod{p} \tag{3}$$

where x, y are the unknown variables.

In the mathematical and computer sciences literature, there is no efficient algorithm for solving equation (1) known as the discrete logarithm problem and widely used in the public key cryptography.

It is easy to show that if we can find the solutions of equivalence (1) for any $a, b \in \mathbb{N}$, then we can also solve equations (2) and (3). But conversely, does knowing how to solve equations (2) and (3) allow us to find the solutions of the discrete logarithm problem (1)? In this communication we discuss some points about this open problem.

Keywords: Modular equation, discrete logarithm problem, public key cryptography.

- [1] Diffie, W. and Hellman, M. (1976). New directions in cryptography. IEEE transactions on Information Theory, 22(6), 644-654,
- [2] ElGamal, T. (1985). A public key cryptosystem and a signature scheme based on discrete logarithms. IEEE transactions on information theory, 31(4), 469-472.
- [3] Khadir, O., Szalay, L., (2013). A special integer sequence strongly connected to the discrete logarithm problem, J. Theor. Phys. Cryptogr., 2, 1–5.
- [4] Stinson, D. R. (2006). Cryptography: theory and practice, Third Edition. Chapman and Hall/CRC.

² Hassan II University of Casablanca, Fstm, Departement of Mathematics, Mohammedia, Morocco

^{*}Corresponding Author Email: <u>moussaid.i.sohaib@gmail.com</u>

Design of UHF band Yagi-Uda TV Antenna

Sunil Narayan [™], Ashwin Chand and Utkal Mehta

Electrical and Electrical Engineering, School of Information Technology, Engineering, Mathematics, and Physics, TheUniversityof the South Pacific, Laucala Campus, Suva, Fiji

Abstract

Yagi-Uda antennas are known to be difficult to design and optimize due to their sensitivity at high gain, and the inclusion of numerous parasitic elements. Still, this antenna is familiar as the commonest kind of terrestrial TV antenna to be found on the rooftops of houses and have a wide application in other communication industries. It can be used at frequencies between about 30 Mhz and 3 GHz. This paper presents simulated results of a UHF band Yagi-Uda antenna designed to operate in the UHF TV band ranging from 470 MHz to 890 MHz, using YO 6.5 Yagi Optimizer software. The designed antenna radiates an end-fire fan beam pattern with bandwidth of about 57% for voltage standing wave ratio (VSWR) less than 2. The simulated result shows that the antenna exibits good bandwidth and moderate gain properties with good impedance characteristics.

Keywords: UHF, Yagi – Uda, Antenna and Optimizer

- [1] Wu, Y.-J., Li, J.F. and Liu, Q-Z. (2007). Tripl-band omni directional antenna for WLAN application. Progress in Electromagnetic Research, PIE R 76,2007.
- [2] Wang, Z., Liu, X. (2014). A novel design of folded dipole for broadband printed Yagi-Uda antenna. Progress in Electromagnetics Research C, 46, 23-30.
- [3] Kittiyanpunya, C., Krairiksh, M. (2014). Pattern reconfigurable printed Yagi-Uda antenna. IEEE International Symposium on Antennas and Propagation Conference Proceedings, Taiwan, 2014.
- [4] Shah, S., Lim, S. (2016). High gain Yagi-Uda origami antenna. IEEE International Symposium on Antennas and Propagation, Japan, 2016.
- [5] Jiang, W., Jin, Y., Wang, T., Huang, Y., Wang, G. (2018). 3-D Printed X-band Yagi-Uda antenna. IEEE Radio and Wireless Symposium, USA, 2018.
- [6] Zaharis, Z.D., Gravas, I.P., Yioultsis, T.V., Lazaridis, P.I., Glover, I.A., Skeberis, C., Xenos, T.D. (2017). Exponential log-periodic antenna design using improved particle swarm optimization with velocity mutation. IEEE Trans. Magn., 2017.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: spnz2014@gmail.com

Bipolar Fuzzy Soft Filter

İzzettin Demir¹⊠, Murat Saldamlı¹, Merve Okurer¹

¹ Düzce University, Department of Mathematics, Düzce, Turkey

Abstract

In this paper, we introduce the notion of a bipolar fuzzy soft filter (BFS-filter) by using bipolar fuzzy soft sets. Also, we give the concept of a BFS-filter base and establish the image of the BFS-filter under the bipolar fuzzy soft mappings. Finally, we define the concept of an ultra BFS-filter and investigate some of its properties.

Keywords: Bipolar fuzzy soft set, bipolar fuzzy soft mapping, BFS-filter, ultra BFS-filter

- [1] Abdullah, S., Aslam, M., & Ullah, K. (2014). Bipolar fuzzy soft sets and its applications in decision making problem. Journal of Intelligent and Fuzzy Systems, 27, 729–742.
- [2] Dizman, T.S., & Öztürk, T.Y. (2021). Fuzzy bipolar soft topological spaces. TWMS Journal of Applied and Engineering Mathematics, 11, 151–159.
- [3] Jana, C., Senapati, T., Shum, K.P., & Pal, M. (2019). Bipolar fuzzy soft subalgebras and ideals of BCK/BCI algebras based on bipolar fuzzy points. Journal of Intelligent and Fuzzy Systems, 37, 2785–2795.
- [4] Naz, M., & Shabir, M. (2014). On fuzzy bipolar soft set, their algebraic structures and applications. Journal of Intelligent and Fuzzy Systems, 26, 1645–1656.
- [5] Riaz, M., & Tehrim, S.T. (2019). Bipolar fuzzy soft mappings with application to bipolar disorders. International Journal of Biomathematics, 12, 1–31.
- [6] Naz, M., & Shabir, M. (2014). On fuzzy bipolar soft set, their algebraic structures and applications. Journal of Intelligent and Fuzzy Systems, 26, 1645–1656.
- [7] Zadeh, L.A. (1965). Fuzzy sets. Information Control, 8, 338–353.

[☐] Corresponding Author Email: <u>izzettindemir@duzce.edu.tr</u>

Vibration Controls of a Pier Using Deep Learning LSTM Network

Barış Namlı¹, Cihan Bayındır^{2,3}

¹ İstanbul Technical University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey ²İstanbul Technical University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey ³Boğaziçi University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Balancing the offshore structures in the ocean or sea against the forces created by seismic movements and waves is extremely important for the serviceability and the safety of the structure. In order to achieve this, various approaches are currently being considered [1-2]. Region-specific parameters should be recorded and used when needed to assist these approaches. In addition, the use of artificial intelligence methods, which have been in demand recently, to reduce the oscillation in buildings, allows more effective results in the application that can be done in this field [3-4]. Thanks to the long-short-time memory (LSTM) algorithm [5], one of the deep learning methods, time series prediction can be performed. As a result of the prediction, better approaches can be developed for the future. This study shows that the vibration control of offshore platforms can be achieved by the deep learning techniques, which is a branch of artificial intelligence, against various types of loadings. For this purpose, a long pile is analyzed using the Morison equation [6]. Then, realistic wave and earthquake loads are applied to analyze system behavior in a more realistic setting. The applied earthquake and wave loads are predicted using the LSTM deep learning network and applied to the system as feedback. It is shown that significant reduction in the vibration amplitudes can be achieved by this approach. In order to better examine the findings, the system is examined both in the time domain and Fourier spectral domain. The results of the study are compared with the related literature and their usage and applicability are discussed.

Keywords: Vibration control, Offshore structures, Deep learning

- [1] Kandasamy, R., Cui, F., Townsend, N., Foo, C. C., Guo, J., Shenoi, A., & Xiong, Y. (2016). A review of vibration control methods for marine offshore structures. Ocean Engineering, 127, 279–297.
- [2] Zhang, B. L., Han, Q. L., & Zhang, X. M. (2017). Recent advances in vibration control of offshore platforms. Nonlinear Dynamics, 89(2), 755-771
- [3] Kim, D. H. (2009). Neuro-control of fixed offshore structures under earthquake. Engineering Structures, 31 (2), 517-522.
- [4] Madkour, A., Hossain, M. A., Dahal, K. P., & Yu, H. (2007). Intelligent learning algorithms for active vibration control. IEEE Transactions on Systems, Man, and Cybernetics, Part C (Applications and Reviews), 37 (5), 1022-1033.
- [5] Hochreiter, S., & Schmidhuber, J. (1997). Long Short-Term Memory. Neural Computation, 9(8), 1735–1780.
- [6] Morison, J. R., Johnson, J. W., & Schaaf, S. A. (1950). The Force Exerted by Surface Waves on Piles. Journal of Petroleum Technology, 2 (5), 149–154.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: barisnamli17@gmail.com

Analysis Methods and FPAA Implementation of Hyperchaotic Systems

Gülnur Yılmaz[™], Enis Günay

Erciyes University, Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Kayseri, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, hyperchaotic systems are researched, analyzed and implemented on Field Programmable Analog Arrays (FPAA) by literature review. To begin with, different structured systems in the literature are specified. Following this, time-series and phase diagrams are created by obtaining the behavior of state variables of dynamic systems. For instance, 2 and 3-dimensional phase diagrams of Rossler [1] hyperchaotic model are observed and time-series graphics of this system are provided.

In the second stage of the study, the methods used in the analysis of hyperchaotic systems are considered. At this point, the Lyapunov exponents are calculated first and it is demonstrated that the Lorenz [2] hyperchaotic system has 2 positive Lyapunov exponents and is in a hyperchaotic structure. Then, bifurcation diagrams are formed and it is interpreted at what values the Lorenz [2] hyperchaotic system entered into chaos and has a periodic structure. An additional method used for analysis is the Poincare maps. These maps are obtained by converting an n-dimensional continuous-time system to an n-1-dimensional discrete-time system and examining them in cross-sections. In this context, the chaotic structure of the Wang-Cang [3] system is shown by creating the Poincare maps.

Power spectrum analysis and 0-1 Test are other analysis methods performed by using the time series obtained in the first part of this study. For chaotic systems, a noise-like power spectrum graph spanning a wide frequency band is acquired. As an example of this method, the 5D Sprott B [4] hyperchaotic model is examined. The 0-1 Test, on the other hand, is a binary-based method which is a more practical way of analysis compared to the others. The chaotic structure of the Sprott B [4] system is also demonstrated using the 0-1 Test.

After all analysis methods are completed, FPAA implementation is performed with the Anadigm Designer 2. The implementation result of the Lorenz [2] hyperchaotic system is given as an example for this part. In the end, accurate graphics similar to the phase space diagrams are obtained.

Keywords: Hyperchaos, Lyapunov exponents, bifurcation diagrams, Poincare maps, power spectrum, 0-1 tests, FPAA

- [1] Rossler, O. (1979). An equation for hyperchaos. Physics Letters A, 71(2-3), 155-157.
- [2] Wang, X., & Wang, M. (2008). A hyperchaos generated from Lorenz system. Physica A: Statistical Mechanics and its Applications, 387(14), 3751-3758.
- [3] Wang, Z., Cang, S., Ochola, E. O., & Sun, Y. (2012). A hyperchaotic system without equilibrium. Nonlinear Dynamics, 69(1), 531-537.
- [4] Ojoniyi, O. S., & Njah, A. N. (2016). A 5D hyperchaotic Sprott B system with coexisting hidden attractors. Chaos, Solitons & Fractals, 87, 172-181.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>gulnur.yilmaz@erciyes.edu.tr</u>

Machine Learning-Based Profit Analysis of Aviation Sector During The Covid-19 Pandemic

İpek Sırma¹, Sevgi Şengül Ayan ^{1⊠}

Abstract

The coronavirus pandemic has deeply affected the whole world. There have been radical changes in many sectors such as logistics, aviation, and health [1]. Moreover, flight suspensions in the first months of the pandemic have long-term effects [2,3]. One of the best ways to deal with the uncertainty created by the pandemic is to make predictions and set the right strategic goals. In this study, profit analysis was made in the aviation sector with the data obtained from the Turkish Airlines Investor website by applying machine learning regression models. Seven methods including Ridge Regression (RR), Lasso Regression (LR), Elastic Net Regression (ENR), Multiple Linear Regression (MLR), Support Vector Regression (SVR), Decision Tree Regression (DTR), and Random Forest Regression (RFR) algorithms are used for the profit modeling. A number of Covid-19 cases, number of passengers, passenger RASK and Net Profit-Loss are considered as features in the models. We observe that Ridge, Lasso, and Elastic Net regressions can solve the overfitting problem. The best fit is found with the Ordinary Least Squares method [4]. In the SVR training phase, an optimal solution is found because it uses convex quadratic programming [5]. The comparisons of these algorithms are done using the R-Squared, Adjusted Rsquared, Mean Squared Error (MSE), Root Mean Squared Error (RMSE), Mean Absolute Error (MAE) metrics. The aim is to try to understand how the pandemic affects the profit and loss due to a pandemic. The comparative analysis results indicate that SVR, DTR, and RFR regressions outperform the RR, LR, ENR, and MLR models. Forecasting before and after pandemics are also checked for specific case studies that provide meaningful insights about the effect of the Covid-19 on the aviation sector.

Keywords: Profit analysis, regression models, aviation sector, machine learning, forecasting

Funding: This study was supported by The Scientific and Technological Research Council of Turkey (TUBITAK 2209A).

References

- [1] Choi, T.-M. (2020). Risk Analysis in Logistics Systems: A Research Agenda During and After the COVID-19 Pandemic. Transportation Research Part E: Logistics and Transportation Review, 102190. doi:10.1016/j.tre.2020.102190
- [2] Imran, A., Misbah, A., Gwanggil, J., Francesco, P. (2021). A Framework for Pandemic Prediction Using Big Data Analytics. Big Data Research, Volume 25. doi.org/10.1016/j.bdr.2021.100190.
- [3] Xiaoqian, S., Sebastian, W., Changhong, Z., Anming, Z. (2021). COVID-19 pandemic and air transportation: Successfully navigating the paper hurricane. Journal of Air Transport Management, Volume 94 doi.org/10.1016/j.jairtraman.2021.102062.
- [4] Belov, A.G. (2018). A Mathematical-Statistics Approach to the Least Squares Method. Comput Math Model, 29, 30–41.
- [5] Vaibhav, B., Agarwal, P., Soumya, R. N., Mangal, S. S., Vijander, S. (2021). Usance of industrial 4.0 technique to overcome the pandemic situation of COVID-19. IOP Conference Series: Materials Science and Engineering, 1017:1, pages 012029.

108

¹ Department of Engineering, Industrial Engineering, Antalya Bilim University, Döşemealtı, Antalya, Turkey

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>sevgi.sengul@antalya.edu.tr</u>

Blow up of Solutions for a Wave Equation with Delay

Hazal Yüksekkaya^{1⊠}, Erhan Pişkin¹

¹ Dicle University, Mathematics Department, Diyarbakır, Turkey

Abstract

This work deals with a wave equation with delay term. Under appropriate conditions, we prove the blow up of solutions in a finite time. Generally, time delay effects arise in many applications and practical problems such as physical, chemical, biological, thermal and economic phenomena. Delay effects can be a source of instability. Moreover, it is well known that delay effects may destroy the stabilizing properties of a well-behaved system. In the literature, there are several examples that illustrate how time delays destabilize some internal or boundary control system.

Keywords: Blow up, Delay, Wave equation.

Acknowledgements

The authors are grateful to DUBAP (ZGEF.20.009) for research funds.

- [1] Kafini, M., & Messaoudi, S.A. (2016). A blow-up result in a nonlinear wave equation with delay. Mediterr. J. Math., 13, 237-247.
- [2] Nicaise, S., & Pignotti, C. (2006). Stability and instability results of the wave equation with a delay term in the boundary or internal feedbacks. SIAM J. Control Optim, 45(5), 1561-1585.
- [3] Pişkin, E., & Yüksekkaya, H. (2021). Blow-up of solutions for a logarithmic quasilinear hyperbolic equation with delay term. J. Math. Anal., 12(1), 56-64.
- [4] Pişkin, E., & Yüksekkaya, H. (2021). Local existence and blow up of solutions for a logarithmic nonlinear viscoelastic wave equation with delay. Comput. Methods Differ. Equ., 9(2), 623-636.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: hazally.kaya@gmail.com

Nonexistence of Global Solutions for a Hyperbolic-Type Equation with Delay Term

Hazal Yüksekkaya^{1⊠}, Erhan Pişkin¹

¹ Dicle University, Mathematics Department, Diyarbakır, Turkey

Abstract

In this work, we deal with a hyperbolic-type equation with delay term. Under suitable conditions, we establish the nonexistence of global solutions in a finite time. Generally, time delay effects arise in many applications and practical problems such as physical, chemical, biological, thermal and economic phenomena. Delay effects can be a source of instability. Moreover, it is well known that delay effects may destroy the stabilizing properties of a well-behaved system. In the literature, there are several examples that illustrate how time delays destabilize some internal or boundary control system.

Keywords: Delay term, Hyperbolic-type equation, Nonexistence of solutions.

Acknowledgements

The authors are grateful to DUBAP (ZGEF.20.009) for research funds.

References

- [1] Kafini, M., & Messaoudi, S.A. (2016). A blow-up result in a nonlinear wave equation with delay. Mediterr. J. Math., 13, 237-247.
- [2] Nicaise, S., & Pignotti, C. (2008). Stabilization of the wave equation with boundary or internal distributed delay. Differ. Integral Equ., 21, 935-958.
- [3] Pişkin, E., & Yüksekkaya, H. (2021). Blow-up of solutions for a logarithmic quasilinear hyperbolic equation with delay term. J. Math. Anal., 12(1), 56-64.
- [4] Pişkin, E., & Yüksekkaya, H. (2020). Decay of solutions for a nonlinear Petrovsky equation with delay term and variable exponents. The Aligarh Bull. of Maths., 39(2), 63-78.

http://icame.balikesir.edu.tr

[™] Corresponding Author Email: hazally.kaya@gmail.com

Measuring the Service Quality Performance of Hospitals in Managing the COVID-19 Vaccine Process

Melike Erdoğan¹, Ertuğrul Ayyıldız^{2⊠}

¹ Düzce University, Industrial Engineering Department, Düzce, Turkey ² Karadeniz Technical University, Industrial Engineering Department, Trabzon, Turkey

Abstract

The vaccination process has finally started for the pandemic that the whole world has been trying to cope with in recent years. In this context, the vaccination process has started in many countries. Most of the people in Turkey have been vaccinated since January in order of priority by age or occupational group (healthcare workers, teachers, .. etc). People can get an appointment from the online system of The Ministry of Health and be vaccinated at specified times they select. At this point, different service quality is revealed in the vaccination process for different hospitals. In this study, we try to determine the priorities of the criteria that hospitals should consider for the vaccine service quality measurement process. For this purpose, we apply the SERVPERF (Service Performance) and multi-criteria decisionmaking (MCDM) approach to weighting the service performance attributes of hospitals in the COVID-19 vaccination process. Using the dimensions of the SERVPERF model, MCDM analysis is developed to deal with all the qualitative and quantitative criteria in the decision process is obtained. In addition, fuzzy sets are adopted to reflect the uncertainty to the decision-making process in the best way. As a result of this paper, the most important performance criteria on the vaccination process will be determined for the people who will be vaccinated, and it will be determined which criteria should be given more importance by hospitals in providing vaccination services. With this study, a quantitative analysis of the service quality of hospitals in the vaccination process will be presented for the first time..

Keywords: COVID-19, hospital, MCDM, SERVPERF, vaccination, fuzzy logic

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ertugrulayyildiz@ktu.edu.tr</u>

Convolutional Neural Network for Arabic Word Recognition

Benbakreti Samir^{1⊠}, Benouis Mohamed², Tlemsani Redouane³, Benbakreti Soumia⁴, Roumane Ahmed¹

National Institute of Telecommunication and ICT, Department of speciality, Oran, Algeria
 University of M'sila, Computer Science Department, M'sila, Algeria
 University of USTO-MB, Computer Science Department, Oran, Algeria
 Djillali Liabes University, Laboratory of Mathematics, Sidi Bel Abbes, Algeria

Abstract

In this paper, we present CNN architectures for unconstrained Arabic word recognition using the offline writing signal i.e. images [1]. The proposed approach represents a particular algorithm belonging to the family of deep neural networks [2-4]. The advent of deep neural networks has made it possible to get rid of several blocks, such as the pre-processing and extraction of relevant features from the image. The used database is NOUN v3 is a hybrid database, it's contained 4800 images represented the Algerian cities [5]. For this task, we used a deep approach to classify the images, in our case, CNN trained and tested the database. CNN's architecture is based on research on the visual cortex of the cat [6]. The visual cortex contains an arrangement of cells, which act as input space filters. The number of layers and their sizes are determined by the complexity and type of the problem to be treated. The output of a CNN is a probability for each class that categorizes the image (48 in this case). There is a succession of convolutional layers immediately followed by a pooling layer, which is characteristic of CNNs. The advantage of a CNN is to extract characteristics specific to each image by compressing them so as to reduce their initial size. Our experimental study, shows that the optimal parameters (training parameter, learning rate, frequency validation) for our system were (85 %, 0.015, 25). We show that the use of this approach produces a satisfactory word recognition rate of 97.96%.

Keywords: Arabic handwriting, offline recognition, deep learning, CNN.

References

- [1] Ghadhban H.Q., Othman M., Samsudin N.A., Ismail M.N.B., Hammoodi M.R. (2020). Survey of Offline Arabic Handwriting Word Recognition. In book: Recent Advances on Soft Computing and Data Mining. SCDM 2020. Advances in Intelligent Systems and Computing, vol 978. Springer, Cham.
- [2] Joan, P-P., María José Castro, B., Salvador E-B, Francisco Z-M. (2108). Handwriting recognition by using deep learning to extract meaningful features, Ai Communications 32(11), 1-12.
- [3] Riaz, A., Saeeda, N., Muhammad, A., Sheikh, R., Marcus, L., and Andreas D. (2020) A Deep Learning based Arabic Script Recognition System: Benchmark on KHAT, The International Arab Journal of Information Technology, 17(3).
- [4] Elleuch, M., & Kherallah, M. (2019). Boosting of Deep Convolutional Architectures for Arabic Handwriting Recognition. International Journal of Multimedia Data Engineering and Management (IJMDEM), 10(4), 26-45.
- [5] Benbakreti, S., Aoued, B. (2018). New approach for online Arabic manuscript recognition by Deep Belief Network, Acta Polytechnica 58(5):297–307.
- [6] Hubel, D. H., & Wiesel, T. N. (1968). Receptive fields and functional architecture of monkey striate cortex. The Journal of physiology, 195(1), 215-243.

112

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>Benbakretisamir@gmail.com</u>

Constraint Programming Model for Rich Electric Vehicle Routing Problems

Damla Kizilay^{1⊠}, Hande Öztop¹, Zeynel Abidin Çil¹

¹Izmir Democracy University, Industrial Engineering Department, Izmir, Turkey

Abstract

Traditional vehicle routing problems have several applications in the industry; several sectors, including production to service, need to transport the products. Since product distribution takes place in many sectors, transportation becomes an indispensable part for them. Nowadays, online shopping frequency has increased due to the pandemic conditions that have emerged recently and have affected all sectors around the world. This situation has revealed the need for people to reach their orders at any time without any problems. Within the framework of these needs, the demand for transportation problems and the search for fast and quality solutions have gained momentum over time. Therefore, inter-sectoral competition is increasing in this regard. This challenge requires high-quality solutions for the routes as well as on-time delivery in logistic distribution processes. Therefore, the efficient management of the delivery fleet becomes the key indicator for the companies to show themselves among their competitors. Today, logistics companies pay higher fines for each gram/km of emissions due to new policies and regulations regarding greenhouse gas emissions in the transportation sector [1]. With electric vehicle market penetration, many companies are considering the integration of electric vehicles into their own fleets, which produce little noise, have no local greenhouse gas emissions, and are independent of fluctuating oil prices. In this study, the VRP, which has been extensively researched and studied to date, is extended to the electric vehicle routing problem (E-VRP), which takes into account certain features of electric vehicles as well as the vehicle capacities and the customer availabilities, resulting in rich E-VRP problems. The study aims to decrease the total cost while increasing customer satisfaction. A constraint programming (CP) model is developed to solve the indicated rich E-VRP problems through this aim. Since the experimental results of the previous studies state the superiority of the CP results over the mixed-integer linear programming models for the majority of medium-to-large problem instances [2], we only presented the CP model. Unlike the previous models, the study considers the rich E-VRP problems, including several constraints under different scenarios.

Keywords: Rich Electric Vehicle Routing, Constraint Programing, Optimization, Green Logistics

- [1] Erdelić, T., & Carić, T. (2019). A survey on the electric vehicle routing problem: variants and solution approaches. Journal of Advanced Transportation, 2019.
- [2] Booth, K. E., & Beck, J. C. (2019, June). A constraint programming approach to electric vehicle routing with time windows. In International Conference on Integration of Constraint Programming, Artificial Intelligence, and Operations Research (pp. 129-145). Springer, Cham.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: damla.kizilay@idu.edu.tr

A DSS for Assessing the Health Performance: The Case of City Hospitals

Hilal Demirel¹, Yeliz Buruk Sahin^{1⊠}

¹ Eskisehir Osmangazi University, Industrial Engineering Department, Eskisehir, Turkey

Abstract

Performance evaluation in health units is important in the process of improving service quality and decision-making decisions for the future [1]. Decision support systems are management information systems that support organizational decision making processes [2]. Numerous criteria are taken into account to compare health institutions. In Multi-Criteria Decision Making (MCDM) problems, it is possible to obtain fast results for scenarios consisting of different criteria and options with the use of Decision Support System (DSS).

In this study, a Microsoft Excel VBA based DSS was developed to compare the performances of City hospitals in Turkey. A database with criteria and alternatives was created. The developed system presents the bed capacity, the number of operating rooms, the number of intensive care beds, the number of burn units, the number of polyclinic rooms and the number of delivery beds as evaluation criteria. The DSS provides flexibility to the user for the determination of criterion weights. Weight determination is possible by manual entry. Additionally, the proposed MCDM based DSS presents SWARA (Step-Wise Weight Assessment Ratio Analysis) which is developed by Keršuliene et al. [3] and BWM (Best Worst Method) which is proposed by Razaei [4] to determine criteria weights. As an MCDM approach, Technique for Order Preference by Similarity to Ideal Solution (TOPSIS) has been integrated into the developed system. An illustrative application is presented to show the features of the proposed system and analysis of different scenarios is also possible. As a result, performance evaluation results and visual comparison results are presented to the decision maker.

Keywords: SWARA, BWM, health performance, decision support system

- [1] Otay, İ., Oztaysi, B., Onar, S. C., & Kahraman, C. (2017). Multi-expert performance evaluation of healthcare institutions using an integrated intuitionistic fuzzy AHP&DEA methodology. Knowledge-Based Systems, 133, 90-106.
- [2] Turban, E., Aronson J.E. (1997). Decision Support Systems and Intelligent Systems, Prentice Hall.
- [3] Keršuliene, V., Zavadskas, E.K., Turskis, Z. (2010). Selection of rational dispute resolution method by applying new step-wise weight assessment ratio analysis (SWARA). Journal of Business Economics and Management, 11(2), 243–258.
- [4] Rezaei, J. (2015). Best-worst multi-criteria decision-making method. Omega, 53, 49–57.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>yelizburuk@ogu.edu.tr</u>

Optimizing Seasonal Grain Intakes with Non-Linear Programming: An Application In The Feed Industry

Alperen Ekrem Çelikdin[™]

Planning & Logistics Manager, Sütaş Inc., Aksaray, Turkey

Abstract

In the feed sector, 95% of the input costs are due to the supply of raw materials used in feed production. Competition determines the selling price. Due to the use of similar technologies and the fact that the share of production costs in total costs is very small, it is not considered very likely to provide competitive advantage with innovations in production. Grain products are used between 30% and 50% in the solution of the feed ration. Rather than being agricultural products that continue to be produced at all times of the year, grains are produced only seasonally. Due to this limited time period, feed production enterprises have to balance their financial burdens and operational requirements while making their annual stocks. The study was carried out in enterprises with feed factories in four regions of Turkey. Based on the season data of the year 2020-2021, the grain purchase planning for the year 2021-2022 was tried to be optimized with non-linear programming. While creating the mathematical model, grain prices, interest rates, production needs according to production planning, sales according to sales forecasts, factory stocking capacities, licensed warehousing rental, transportation and handling costs were taken into account.

With the paper that is unique in the cattle feed production sector, storage, transportation and handling costs will be minimized, and a cost return will be achieved with the positioning to be taken in the season. The model, which can provide a cost advantage of 0.7% according to the grain pricing forecast and market data for the 2021-2022 season, will also provide insight to the managers for additional storage space investments.

Keywords: Financial optimization, Non-linear programming, Purchase planning

- [1] Satır, B., & Yıldırım, G. (2020). A General Production and Financial Planning Model: Case of a Poultry Integration, Arabian Journal for Science and Engineering, 45(8), 6803-6820.
- [2] D P Bertsekas (1997) Nonlinear Programming, Journal of the Operational Research Society, 48:3, 334, DOI: 10.1057/palgrave.jors.2600425
- [3] Zenios, S. A. (1999). Financial optimization. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- [4] Jingsi Huang, Lingyan Liu and Leyuan Shi, "Auction policy analysis: An agent-based simulation optimization model of grain market," 2016 Winter Simulation Conference (WSC), 2016, pp. 3417-3428, doi: 10.1109/WSC.2016.7822372.
- [5] Kıymaz, T., Saçlı, Y.. (2008). Tarım ve gıda ürünleri fiyatlarında yaşanan sorunlar ve öneriler, Devlet planlama teşkilatı müsteşarlığı, yayın no: DPT:2767

[™] Corresponding Author Email: a.celikdin@gmail.com

International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering (ICAME) September 1-3, 2021 - Balikesir, Turkey

Verhulst Lotka Volterra fractional differential SEIRS model: Analysis of SARS-CoV-2 pandemic disease

Calin-Adrian Comes^{1,2⊠}

¹George Emil Palade University of Medicine, Pharmacy, Science and Technology, Targu-Mures, Romania ²Institute of National Economy, Romanian Academy, Bucharest, Romania

Abstract

We proposed a fractional differential SEIRS pandemic spread disease model with population migration between two spatial entities in the framework of fractional Atangana-Baleanu (AB) derivative approach [1], to determine the state of disease-free equilibrium. These results are important for pandemic disease control. An epidemic of an infectious disease that has spread across a large region, continents, or worldwide, affecting a great number of people, but a widespread endemic disease with a stable number of infected people is not a pandemic. The basic reproductive rate R0 investigation for diffusion models is presented in the following research's [2-5] with roots in classical papers of Verhulst-Lotka-Volterra (VLV) [6-9]. Our contribution to this paper is reflected in the modeling of the pandemic through migration from one location to another location of both susceptible and infected people by determining the precise definition of the basic reproduction number R0 for each of the hypostases.

Keywords: Verhulst–Lotka–Volterra model, Atangana–Baleanu fractional derivative, Laplace transformation, Mittag-Leffler function, SARS-CoV-2 diseas, SEIRS model

- [1] Atangana A., Baleanu D. (2016). New fractional derivatives with nonlocal and non-singular kernel: Theory and application to heat transfer model, Thermal Science, 20(2), 763-769, doi:10.2298/TSCI160111018A.
- [2] Delamater, P. L., Street, E. J., Leslie, T. F., Yang, Y. T., & Jacobsen, K. H. (2019). Complexity of the basic reproduction number (R0). Emerging infectious diseases, 25(1), 1.
- [3] Van den Driessche, P., & Watmough, J. (2002). Reproduction numbers and sub-threshold endemic equilibria for compartmental models of disease transmission. Mathematical biosciences, 180(1-2), 29-48.
- [4] Van den Driessche, P. (2017). Reproduction numbers of infectious disease models. Infectious Disease Modelling, 2(3), 288-303.
- [5] McLure, A., & Glass, K. (2020). Some simple rules for estimating reproduction numbers in the presence of reservoir exposure or imported cases. Theoretical population biology, 134, 182-194.
- [6] Verhulst, P.-F. (1845). Recherches mathématiques sur la loi d'accroissement de la population. Nouv. mém. de l'Academie Royale des Sci. et Belles-Lettres de Bruxelles 18, 1-41.
- [7] Verhulst, P.-F. (1847). Deuxième mémoire sur la loi d'accroissement de la population. Mém. de l'Academie Royale des Sci., des Lettres et des Beaux-Arts de Belgique 20, 1-32.
- [8] Lotka, A. J. (1920). Analytical note on certain rhythmic relations in organic systems, Proc. Nat. Acad. 6, 410-
- [9] Volterra, V. (1926). Fluctuations in the abundance of a species considered mathematically, Nature 118, 558-560.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>calin.comes@umfst.ro</u>

Analysis and Dynamics Behavior of Ψ -Hilfer Fractional Order Three Dimensional Model

Zakia Hammouch^{1,2}, Rando R.Q. Rasul³, Abdelouahed Alla hamou^{⊠ 4}

Abstract

Dynamics behavior of three dimensional spatial lattice (especially Thomas's model and its extensions) of integer order were investigated by many authors. In this study, we examine a non-integer order of the three dimensional spatial lattice based on the sine function. We use a new class of fractional derivative (which it is known as Ψ -Hilfer derivative), to construct a novel fractional model. Existence and uniqueness theorem for the solution were provide by applying Picard's Lendilof xed point theorem. The main purpose of this study is to investigate the dynamics behavior of the constructed model. We provide that under a certain condition the phases of the system are stable around the origin besides some values of the parameters that possess a hopf bifurcation.

Keywords: Stability, Hopf bifurcation, Ψ -Hilfer derivative, Picard's Lendilof fxed point, Equilibrium point,

- [1] Chen, C., Chen, J., Bao, H., Chen, M., and Bao, B. (2019). Coexisting multi-stable patterns in memristor synapse-coupled Hopeld neural network with two neurons. Nonlinear Dynamics, 95(4), 3385-3399.
- [2] Chlouverakis, K. E., and Sprott, J. C. (2007). Hyperlabyrinth chaos: From chaotic walks to spatiotemporal chaos. Chaos: An Interdisciplinary Journal of Nonlinear Science, 17(2), 023110.
- [3] Heydari, M. H. (2020). A computational method for a class of systems of nonlinear variable order fractional quadratic integral equations. Applied Numerical Mathematics, 153, 164-178.
- [4] Heydari, M. H., and Avazzadeh, Z. (2020). Numerical study of non-singular variable-order time fractional coupled Burgers' equations by using the Hahn polynomials. Engineering with Computers, 1-10.
- [5] Heydari, M. H., and Atangana, A. (2020). An optimization method based on the generalized Lucas polynomials for variable-order space-time fractional mobile-immobile advection-dispersion equation involving derivatives with non-singular kernels. Chaos, Solitons & Fractals, 132, 109588.
- [6] Heydari, M. H., Castles, F.G., Curtin, J.C., & Vowles, J. (2006). Public policy in Australia and New Zealand: The new global context. Australian Journal of Political Science, 41(2), 131–143.

¹ Department of Medical Research, China Medical University Hospital, Taichung 40402, Taiwan, ² Ecole Normale Supérieure, Moulay Ismail University of Meknès 50000, Morocco

³ Department of Mathematical Sciences, College of Basic Education, University of Sulaimani, Sulaimani, Iraq.

⁴Laboratory of Mathematical Analysis and Applications, Faculty of Sciences Dhar Al Mahraz, Sidi Mohammed Ben Abdellah University B.P. 1796, 30000, Fez, Morocco

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>abdelouahed.allahamou@gmail.com</u>

Efficient Solution of Fractional-Order SIR Epidemic Model of Childhood Diseases with Optimal Homotopy Asymptotic Method

Oluwaseun Olumide Okundalaye ^{1 | Necati} Özdemir ², Wan Ainun Mior Othman ³

Abstract

In providing an accurate approximate analytical solution to the non-linear system of fractional-order susceptible-infected-recovered epidemic model (FOSIREM) of childhood disease has been a challenge because no criteria to guarantee the convergence of the infinite series solution [1, 2]. We compute an accurate approximate analytical solution of the problem by optimal homotopy asymptotic method (OHAM). The fractional-order operator is in the conformable fractional derivative operator sense [3, 4]. The OHAM approach series solution speedily converges to the exact solution as the order of the fractional-order derivative approaches one, which proved OHAM as an excellent tool for this model.

Keywords: Infectious disease, fractional mathematical modeling, approximate analytical method, conformable derivative operator, SIR model, reproduction number.

- [1] Hanquet, G., Krizova, P., Valentiner-Branth, P., Ladhani, S. N, Nuorti, J. P, Lepoutre, A., Mereckiene, J., Knol, M., Winje, B. A, & Ciruela, P. (2019). Effect of childhood pneumococcal conjugate vaccination on invasive disease in older adults of 10 european countries: implications for adult vaccination, Thorax. 74(5), 473-482.
- [2] Ibeas, A., Shafi, M., Ishfaq, M., & Ali, M. (2017). Vaccination controllers for SEIR epidemic models based on fractional order dynamics, Biomed Signal Process Control. 38, 136-142.
- [3] Jarad, F., Ugurlu, E., Abdeljawad, T., & Baleanu, D. (2017) On a new class of fractional operators, Advances in Difference Equations 1, 1-16.
- [4] Kumar, D., Seadawy, A.R., & Joardar, A. K. (2018). Modified Kudryashov method via new exact solutions for some conformable fractional differential equations arising in mathematical biology, Chinese Journal of Physics. 56(1), 75-85.

¹ Faculty of Science, Department of Mathematical Sciences, Adekunle Ajasin University, Akungba-Akoko, Nigeria

Faculty of Science and Arts, Department of Mathematics, Balikesir University, Balikesir, Turkey
 Institute of Mathematical Sciences, University of Malaya, 50603, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

[™] Corresponding Author Email: okundalaye.oluwaseun@aaua.edu.ng

dsPIC-based sensorless control of induction motor and real-time monitoring on Simulink

Metin Demirtas^{1⊠}, Erdem Ilten¹, Haris Calgan¹

¹ Balikesir University, Electrical Electronics Engineering Department, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

Induction motor (IM) is utilized mostly in industry due to its low cost, easy maintenance, superior performance and robust structure. Despite the advantages, it requires a complex control system. Scalar control is commonly employed via controlling the ratio between voltage and frequency (V/f) and provides easily application. It has simple algorithm and low steady-state error [1]. However, in order to control the IM it is essential to know the position or the speed of machine. A shaft mounted encoder is generally preferred for this purpose. Considering the noise and cost, many studies focus on the sensorless control of the IM via estimating the speed of motor.

In this study, a new test bench to control IM sensorless is proposed. A classical sliding mode observer (SMO) is used in the experimental set-up to make speed estimation [2]. A tilt integral derivative (TID) controller is designed to track the speed reference. The main advantage of proposed test bench is that the system contains dsPIC33FJ128MC804 which can be operated with Matlab/Simulink in External Mode [3]. Therefore, instead of complex codding platforms, simple Simulink blocks are used to form the sensorless control algorithm. After compiling the program, it is uploaded to the chip by means of the PicKit v3.0. Hereby, real-time monitoring of the rotor speed, stator voltages and currents can be carried out as on-line. Experimental results show that the proposed sensorless control algorithm is well performed in cases of load disturbances and sensor noises. The accuracy and simplicity of proposed test bench make it reliable for further researches.

Keywords: sensorless control, sliding mode observer, TID control, digital signal processor, induction motor

- [1] Demirtas, M., Ilten, E., & Calgan, H. (2019). Pareto-Based Multi-objective Optimization for Fractional Order PI^λ Speed Control of Induction Motor by Using Elman Neural Network. *Arabian Journal for Science and Engineering*, 44(3), 2165-2175.
- [2] Ilten, E., & Demirtas, M. (2019). Fractional order super-twisting sliding mode observer for sensorless control of induction motor. *COMPEL-The international journal for computation and mathematics in electrical and electronic engineering*, 38(2), 878-892.
- [3] Kerhuel, L. (2010). Simulink block set embedded target for microchip devices.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: mdtas@balikesir.edu.tr

Optimal TID controller design for dsPIC-based induction motor drive

Metin Demirtas[⊠], Erdem Ilten, Haris Calgan

Balıkesir University, Electrical Electronics Engineering Department, Balıkesir, Turkey

Abstract

Induction motor (IM) is used commonly in several areas in terms of advantages of being low cost, effective and robust. Despite the superiorities, the speed of motor is generally controlled via adjusting the ratio between voltage and frequency (V/f). This control method is called as scalar control. It has simple algorithm and low steady-state error [1]. Besides the scalar method, a specific controller has to be implemented in order to increase the operational performance and to decrease speed error.

In this study, an induction motor is driven by using dsPIC33FJ128MC804 which can be operated with Matlab/Simulink in External Mode [2]. Hereby, instead of complex codding platforms, simple Simulink blocks are used to obtain input output data of the induction motor. A small signal machine model is formed by means of input-output dataset [3]. Thereafter integral of time-weighted absolute error (ITAE) based optimization of Tilt Integral Derivative (TID) controller is carried out. Simulation and experimental results show the validity of the optimal TID controller.

Keywords: TID control, digital signal processor, induction motor, ITAE

- [1] Demirtas, M., Ilten, E., & Calgan, H. (2019). Pareto-Based Multi-objective Optimization for Fractional Order PI^λ Speed Control of Induction Motor by Using Elman Neural Network. *Arabian Journal for Science and Engineering*, 44(3), 2165-2175.
- [2] Kerhuel, L. (2010). Simulink block set embedded target for microchip devices.
- [3] Calgan, H., & Demirtas, M. (2021). Design and implementation of fault tolerant fractional order controllers for the output power of self-excited induction generator. Electrical Engineering, 1-17.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: mdtas@balikesir.edu.tr

A Novel Analytical study of Boussinesq-type equations

Zehra Pinar[⊠]

Tekirdağ Namık Kemal University, Mathematic Department, Tekirdağ, Turkey

Abstract

In recent years, the works related to models have been concentrated on obtaining the exact solutions. This study focuses on the models which are arising in the ocean sciences where Boussinesq-type equations are most used models. The exact solutions of generalized Boussinesq-type equations are investigated by the view of the modified simplest equation method (MSEM). By using MSEM, the bisoliton solutions of Boussinesq-type equations according to parameters is obtained. As a result, it is thought that the results obtained will lead to new developments in the improvement and application of the model since the application area of the model under consideration is wide.

Keywords: Boussinesq-type equations, analytical solutions, symbolic computation

- [1] Whitham, G. B.(1974). Linear and Nonlinear Waves. Wiley, New York.
- [2] Voraka, P., Kaewmanee, C., Meleshko, S. V. (2019). Symmetries of the shallow water equations in the Boussinesq approximation. Communications in Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation, 67, 1-12.
- [3] Vitanov, N. K. (2019). New developments of the methodology of the Modified method of simplest equation with application. arXiv:1904.03481v1

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>zpinar@nku.edu.tr</u>

Cubic Cell Formation Problem Considering Identical Parallel Machines

Gulcin Bektur

Iskenderun Technical University, Department of Industrial Engineering, Hatay, Turkey

Abstract

Cellular manufacturing is an important production method in today's competitive conditions. There are many problems that need to be solved for success of cellular manufacturing. One of the most important of these problems is the cell formation problem [1]. In the cell formation problem, parts and machines are allocated to cells [2]. Employees are also taken into account in this study, so there are three dimensions as employees, machines and parts. Machine groups have also been taken into account in the study, and there are identical machines in each machine group. The presence of identical machines is an important advantage in minimizing inter- cell operations [3], Although identical machines are not taken into account in many studies, identical machines for cell formation problem is frequently encountered in practice As a result of considering identical machines, parts can be processed on different machines from the same machine group. Demand and capacity constraints are also taken into account. In the study, a mathematical model is proposed for the solution of the problem. The obtained results are analyzed over test problems with different sizes.

Keywords: Cubic cell formation, Identical machines, Mathematical model

References

- [1] Raminfar, R., Zulkifli, N., & Vasili, M. (2013). A mathematical programming model for cell formation problem with machine replication. Journal of Applied Mathematics, 285759.
- [2] Lian, J, Liu, C., Li, W., Evans, S., & Yin, Y. (2014). Formation of independent manufacturing cells with the consideration of multiple identical machines. International Journal of Production Research, 52 (5), 1363-1400
- [3] Bootaki, B., Mahdavi, I., & Paydar, M. (2014), A hybrid GA- AUGMECON method to solve a cubic cell formation problem considering different worker skills. Computers and Industrial Engineering, 75, 31-40

Corresponding Author Email: gulcin.bektur@iste.edu.tr

Errors of the Smoothing Techniques

Ovgu Cidar Iyikal[⊠]

Eastern Mediterranean University, Department of Mathematics, Famagusta, North Cyprus, via Mersin 10, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, in place of traditional error measuring tools such as Mean Square Error(MSE), Mean Absolute Error (MAE) and Root Mean Square Deviation (RMSD) a more efficient way of measuring the error is proposed. This is based on calculating the area between the estimated smoothed function and trajectory represented by raw data. This area named as error area (EA). Minimization of the EA in turn will depend heavily on the density of data, magnitude of fluctuations in the data values, frequency of the missing data, and the number of data values that falls into the lag interval. Two methods of estimation, the stretched interpolated moving average (SIMA) method and the Kernel smoothing method are used to estimate the data. Those are applied on two data sets, the 20x30 shares and 30x30 elevation-coordinates and EAs are calculated and compared with the raw ones. Thus, good performance of the SIMA can be seen by this EA method.

Keywords: Stretched moving average, Kernel smoothing, trapezoidal error area.

Acknowledgements

The author contribute to the writing of this paper. Author read and approved the final manuscript.

- [1] Mashtare Jr. T. L., Hutson A. D. (2008). SAS Macro for Estimating the Standard Error of Area Under the Curve with an Application to Receiver Operating Curves, Elsevier.
- [2] Mardia K. V., Kent T., Bibby J. M.(1979). Multivariate Analysis, London Academic Press.
- [3] Tandoğdu Y., İyikal O. Ç.(2013). Stretched Interpolated Moving Average Technique as a Smoother. Pakistan Journal of Statistics, 29, 4: 431-446.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ovgu.cidar@emu.edu.tr</u>

An Effective Numerical Approach for RLW Equation

Melike Karta[⊠]

Ağrı İbrahim Çeçen University, Mathematics Department, Ağrı, Turkey

Abstract

The purpose of this article is to obtain the numerical solution of the RLW equation, one of the most important nonlinear wave equations used to model physical phenomena such as shallow water waves and plasma waves using a splitting technique combined with the B-spline collocation method by the help of the fourth order Runge–Kutta (RK-4) method. For this purpose, After the proposed problem is transformed into a partial differential equation in the form of two equations in time, these equations are reduced to the ordinary differential equations system (ODEs) using finite element collocation method. After all these procedures, a splitting technique via the fourth order Runge–Kutta (RK-4) method is utilized to solve the ODEs obtained with these equations. Three test problem are suggested to check the accuracy of the present scheme. The error norms L_2 and L_∞ are calculated to compare the results found in the literature with our results. Also, The conservation properties of the RLW equation are indicated to be preserved as a result of the numerical algorithm. As a result, it can be clealy seen that the present method gives compatible results with previous work.

Keywords: RLW equation, B-spline, Collocation method, Splitting technique

- [1] Peregrine, D.H. (1966). Calculations of the development of an undular bore, J. Fluid Mech. 25, 321–330.
- [2] Abdulloev, Kh.O., Bogolubsky, H., Markhankov, V.G. (1976) One more example of inelastic soliton interaction, Phys. Lett., A 56, 427–428.
- [3] Esen, A. Kutluay S. (2006). Application of a lumped Galerkin method to the regularized long wave equation, Applied Mathematics and Computation, 174, 833–845.
- [4] Raslan, K. R. (2005). A computational method for the regularized long wave (RLW) equation, Applied Mathematics and Computation, 167, 1101–1118.
- [5] Yağmurlu, N.M., Uçar, Y., Çelikkaya, İ., (2018). Operator Splitting for numerical solutions of The RLW equation, Journal of Applied Analysis and Computation, 8, 1494–1510.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: mkarta@agri.edu.tr

A Goal Programming Approach for Resource Dependent Assembly Line Balancing Problem

Yakup Atasagun[™], Alper Döyen

¹ Konya Technical University, Industrial Engineering Department, Konya, Türkiye

Abstract

Assembly Line Balancing (ALB) is an important decision problem in mass production systems. One of the main assumptions in most of the ALB studies is that processing times of the tasks are fixed. However, this situation could not always be practical especially when different resource alternatives such as particular equipment or an assistant worker are available to process a task with different durations. Some tasks in practice cannot be processed by only one worker and may necessarily need to have additional assistant worker or particular equipment. Alternatively, assistance of another worker can reduce the processing time of a task even though he/she is not necessary. In this case, different processing alternatives (resource combinations) have to be used in the line [1].

Faaland et al. [2] have defined this problem as resource dependent assembly line balancing problem (RDALB).

Kara et al. [1] have addressed the problem from a wide point of view and have adapted the RDALB approach to U-shaped assembly lines (RDULB) with some new practice-oriented assumptions.

On the other hand, the concept of Goal Programming (GP) was introduced by Charnes and Cooper [3] and has been widely used as an important modelling technique for multi-criteria decision making problems. There are two essential GP approaches in the literature [4]: (i) weighted GP; and (ii) preemptive GP.

In this study, a pre-emptive GP model for RDALB is proposed in order to provide flexibility for decision makers based on their decision environment and preferred priorities. The proposed model is structured on the mathematical formulation of Kara et al. [1]. Three conflicting goals namely total cost of workstation utilization (total number of utilized workstations), cycle time and total cost of additional resources such as equipment and assistant workers are considered. The proposed model is validated on an illustrative example and a scenario analysis is performed with different priority levels of the goals. The results show that the proposed goal programming formulation is valid and useful for balancing resource dependent assembly lines.

Keywords: Goal programming, line balancing, resource dependent assembly lines

References

[1] Kara, Y., Özgüven, C., Yalçın, N., & Atasagun, Y. (2011). Balancing straight and U-shaped assembly lines with resource dependent task times. International Journal of Production Research, 49(21), 6387-6405.

- [2] Faaland, B. H., Klastorin, T. D., Schmitt, T. G., & Shtub, A. (1992). Assembly line balancing with resource dependent task times. Decision Sciences, 23(2), 343-364.
- [3] Charnes, A., & Cooper, W. W. (1957). Management models and industrial applications of linear programming. Management science, 4(1), 38-91.
- [4] Ignizio, J.P. (1982). Linear programming in single-& multiple-objective systems, Prentice Hall.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>yatasagun@ktun.edu.tr</u>

Organizational Configurations Boosting Enterprise Performance and Job Satisfaction*

Alperen Ekrem Çelikdin[™]

Planning & Logistics Manager, Sütaş Inc., Aksaray, Turkey

Abstract

It is known that organizations consist of a combination of several causal factors. Organizational Configurations theory had started with the contingency theory. Contingency theory is known as, an organization cannot be configured with the best single structure and Organizational Configurations theory has developed by the equafinality approach. Equafinality is defined as, "a system can reach the same final situation from different and original starting points". It has been stated that businesses with similar practices and strategies can be seen as clustered groups and these decisive organizational characteristics and strategies shape the performance of the enterprise. Therefore, the importance of Organizational Configurations approach is increasing. However, since the sustainable performance of the enterprises can be supported with the efforts of the satisfied employees, the Organizational Configurations that are desired to be formed should be shaped accordingly. With this study, the automotive spare parts sector of Central Anatolia Region was selected as the main sample and high performaning Organizational Configurations was determined based on the Miles and Snow typologies theory. The relationship between the targeted output and the set of independent variables that make up this output was determined by Fuzzy Set Qualitative Comparative Analysis, which aims explaining with the set theorethical approach. While providing high enterprise performance, the arrangements to be made in order to have high job satisfaction at the same time according to Decision Makers choices, are modeled by the help of Compromise Programming which is one of the Operations Research methods. The results of the study support the Miles and Snow typologies. Finally the results show that, enterprises that manage their enterpreneural, engineering and administrational problems with solutions suitable for environment and competition conditions, authorizing the employees and encouraging them to participate in the management processes, reach high performance and job satisfaction results.

Keywords: Organizational Configurations, Performance, Job Satisfaction, fsQCA, Compromise Programming, Multi Criteria Decision Making.

- [1] Zeleny, M. (1974). A concept of compromise solutions and the method of the displaced ideal. Computers and Operations Research, 1, 439-996.
- [2] Zeleny, M. (1973). Compromise programming. In J. L. Cochrane & M. Zeleny (Eds.), Multiple criteria decision making (pp.262-301). South Carolina: University of South Carolina Press.
- [3] Zadeh, Lotfi (1965). Fuzzy sets. Information and Control, 8 (3), 338-353.
- [4] Ragin, C. C. (2008). Redesigning the social inquiry, fuzzy sets and beyond, Chicago Üniversitesi Yayınevi, Londra
- [5] Fiss, P.C. (2007). A set-theoretic approach to organizational configurations. Academy of Management Review, 32 (4), 1180–1198.
- [6] Miles R., Snow C., Meyer A., Coleman H. (1978). Organizational strategy, structure and process, Academy of Management, Temmuz, 546-562.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>a.celikdin@gmail.com</u>

^{*}Produced from the doctoral thesis of the same title.

Combining Fuzzy Full Consistency Method and Fuzzy Axiomatic Design for Facility Layout Selection

Esra Duygu Durmaz^{1⊠}, İlker Gölcük², Ramazan Şahin¹

¹ Gazi University, Industrial Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey ² İzmir Bakırçay University, Industrial Engineering Department, İzmir, Turkey

Abstract

Facility layout evaluation is a critical and strategic decision-making problem that significantly impacts the efficiency of operations. Although various optimization algorithms have been used to tackle facility layout problems, real-world applications require consideration of both qualitative and quantitative attributes. In practice, several qualitative attributes should be considered, which are characterized by their contradictory and conflicting nature. Moreover, intangible attributes are hard to measure in precise terms, so that the decision makers' perceptions have a pivotal role in the outcome. Therefore, fuzzy multiple attribute decision-making (MADM) methods offer a wide variety of approaches to tackle imprecise and uncertain decision makers' evaluations. One obstacle of the fuzzy MADM methods is that the relative importance of attributes is generally obtained by using pairwise comparisons, which is timeconsuming and cognitively demanding. The Full Consistency Method (FUCOM) method has recently been proposed to deal with pairwise comparisons with few evaluation vectors. The present work utilizes fuzzy FUCOM method to cope with uncertain and imprecise judgments of the decision-makers. Additionally, facility layout selection is a crucial design evaluation problem, so that axiomatic design is a suitable tool for evaluating design options. The axiomatic design approach sets out two design axioms: independence and information axiom. The independence axiom states that functional requirements must be independent. On the other hand, the information axiom states that design with the smallest information content is the best design among those designs that satisfy the independence axiom. In this study, a new integrated fuzzy MADM model is proposed by integrating fuzzy FUCOM and fuzzy axiomatic design methods. The proposed method has been implemented in a real-life study to demonstrate the effectiveness and applicability of the proposed model.

Keywords: Facility layout, fuzzy logic, full consistency method, axiomatic design

- [1] Şahin, R., Niroomand, S., Durmaz, E. D., & Molla-Alizadeh-Zavardehi, S. (2020). Mathematical formulation and hybrid meta-heuristic solution approaches for dynamic single row facility layout problem. Annals of Operations Research, 295(1), 313-336.
- [2] Durmaz, E. D., & Şahin, R. (2017). NSGA-II and goal programming approach for the multi-objective single row facility layout problem. Journal of the Faculty of Engineering and Architecture of Gazi University, 32(3), 941-955
- [3] Kahraman, C., & Çebi, S. (2009). A new multi-attribute decision making method: Hierarchical fuzzy axiomatic design. Expert Systems with Applications, 36(3), 4848-4861.
- [4] Suh, N. P. (1990). The principles of design: Oxford university press. New York, Oxford.
- [5] Pamučar, D., Stević, Ž., & Sremac, S. (2018). A new model for determining weight coefficients of criteria in mcdm models: Full consistency method (fucom). Symmetry, 10(9), 393.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>esradurmaz@gazi.edu.tr</u>

Quantum Analog of Some Simpson and Bullen Type Inequalities for Convex Functions

Abdul Wakil Baidar^{1,2}, Mehmet Kunt^{2⊠}

¹Kabul University, Department of Mathematics, Kabul, Afghanistan ² Karadeniz Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Trabzon, Turkey

Abstract

In this paper based on a new quantum analog of Hermite-Hadamard inequality given in [2], the quantum analog of some Simpson and Bullen type inequalities are established. The results obtained will generalize the results given in [6].

Keywords: Simpson inequality, Bullen inequality, quantum calculus

- [1] Alp, N., Sarıkaya, M. Z., Kunt, M., & İşcan, İ. (2018). q-Hermite Hadamard inequalities and quantum estimates for midpoint type inequalities via convex and quasi-convex functions. Journal of King Saud University-Science, 30(2), 193-203.
- [2] Baidar, A., & Kunt, M., (2021) Quantum analogue of some trapezoid and midpoint type inequalities for convex functions, Available from: https://www.researchgate.net/publication/350887201.
- [3] Kac, V., & Pokman C.(2001). Quantum calculus. Springer-Verlag New York.
- [4] Kunt, M., Baidar, A., & Şanlı, Z. (2020). Left-Right quantum derivatives and definite integrals, Available from: https://www.researchgate.net/publication/343213377.
- [5] Sudsutad, W., Ntouyas, S. K., & Tariboon, J. (2015). Quantum integral inequalities for convex functions. J. Math. Inequal, 9(3), 781-793.
- [6] Xi, B. Y., & Qi, F. (2012). Some integral inequalities of Hermite-Hadamard type for convex functions with applications to means. Journal of Function Spaces and Applications, Article ID 980438 (2012) 1-14.

[™]Corresponding Author Email: mkunt@ktu.edu.tr

A Simulated Annealing Based Fix-and-Optimize Algorithm for the Assembly Line Worker Assignment and Balancing Problem

Anıl Akpunar[™], Şener Akpınar

Dokuz Eylul University, Industrial Engineering Department, Izmir, Turkey

Abstract

This study handles the type-2 assembly line worker assignment and balancing problem (ALWABP-2). ALWABP-2 is about to allocate the assembly tasks among a predefined number of workstations and identify which operator will work at which workstation. The main goal of this problem is to increase the production rate by minimizing the cycle time. Due to the NP-hard nature of problem and the problem size limitation of exact solution procedures, approximation algorithms are required to be designed to solve the ALWABP-2. The difficulty to optimize the problem through the mathematical programming formulation mainly springs from the abundance of the binary variables in use. At this point, it is projected that the fix-and-optimize algorithm (FOA) as a decomposition approach has a potential to identify optimal or a near optimal solutions for the ALWABP-2. FOA decomposes the binary variables into two disjoint sets X and Y, and forms two subproblems. The first subproblem is about to fix the binary variables set X, while the Y and all other variables, if any, are optimized in an iterative fashion. In other words, a sub-problem is the reduced form of the original problem where a set of decision variables are fixed in value whereas the remaining set are left to be optimized. As such, fix-and-optimize heuristics often provide high quality solutions especially when the binary decision variables are vast. In this study, the operator assignments to workstations constitutes the first binary variable set X, while the allocation of the assembly tasks among the workstations constitutes the second binary variable set Y. This study presents a simulated annealing (SA) based FOA to tackle the ALWABP-2. The SA algorithm matches the operators and workstations firstly, and then the reduced problem optimizes the allocation of the assembly tasks among the workstations. The performance evaluation tests of the proposed SA based FOA are performed on a set of 320 benchmark instances. Computational results indicate that the proposed algorithm is a promised competitive algorithm for the ALWAP-2.

Keywords: ALWABP-2, decomposition, fix and optimize heuristic, simulated annealing

References

- [1] Blum, C., & Miralles, C. (2011). On solving the assembly line worker assignment and balancing problem via beam search. *Computers and Operations Research*, 328-339.
- [2] Chaves, A. A., Miralles, C., & Lorena, L. A. (2007). Clustering Search Approach for the Assembly Line Worker Assignment and Balancing Problem. *Proceedings of ICC&IE*, 1469-1478.
- [3] Chaves, A., Lorena, L., & Miralles, C. (2009). Hybrid Metaheuristic for the Assembly Line Worker Assignment and Balancing Problem. (M. e. In: BLESA, Dü.) *Hybrid Metaheuristics*, 1-14.
- [4] Miralles, C. e. (2007). Advantages of assembly lines in Sheltered Work Centres for Disabled. A case study. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 110(1-2), 187-197.
- [5] Miralles, C. e. (2008). Branch and bound procedures for solving the Assembly Line Worker Assignment and Balancing Problem: Application to Sheltered Work centres for Disabled. *Discrete Applied Mathematics*, 156(3), 352-367.
- [6] Miralles, C. e. (2008b). Branch and Bound Procedures for Solving the Assembly Line Worker Assignment and Balancing Problem: Application to Sheltered Work Centres for Disabled. *Discrete Applied Mathematics*, 156(3), 352-367.
- [7] Moreira, M. e. (2012). Simple heuristics for the assembly line worker assignment and balancing problem. *Journal of Heuristics*, 18(3), 505-524.
- [8] Mutlu, Ö., Polat, O., & Supciller, A. A. (2013). An iterative genetic algorithm for the assembly line worker assignment and balancing problem of type-II. *Computers & Operations Research*, 40(1), 418-426.
- [9] Vila, M., & Pereira, J. (2014, April). A branch-and-bound algorithm for assembly line worker assignment and balancing problems. *Computers & Operations Research*, 44, 105-114.

129

[™] Corresponding Author Email: anilakpunar@gmail.com

A Unique Hamilton-Jacobi-Bellman Equation Having Periodic Solutions and their Computation Using Higher-Order Finite Difference Schemes

Hidekazu Yoshioka[™]

Shimane University, Graduate School of Natural Science and Technology, Matsue, Japan

Abstract

Many environmental management problems involve optimization of seasonal, namely time-periodic dynamics under uncertainty. These problems can be effectively formulated from a viewpoint of the stochastic control under uncertainty [1]; however, such approaches are still rare possibly due to the difficulties in solving the optimality equation, called Hamilton-Jacobi-Bellman (HJB) equation. HJB equations are highly nonlinear in general, and finding their time-periodic solutions can be a more difficult task from both theoretical and computational standpoints. Problems considering the riskaversion nature of the environmental manager lead to HJB equations that are more important in applications but having stronger nonlinearity. We approach these mathematical and computational issues on the modeling and control of environmental management problems based on a dynamic programming principle to control stochastic differential equations (SDEs) [2]. A particular emphasis is put on a seasonal management of aquatic vegetation in a shallow water body whose population dynamics follows a jump-driven SDE having a rational drift coefficient with time-periodic parameters. The HJB equation for a discounted infinite-horizon control problem of the vegetation based on an Erlangization [3] as an adaptive discrete observation/harvesting policy of a risk-averse manager is then heuristically derived. The HJB equation is subject to a periodic boundary condition and has an exponential nonlinearity. We demonstrate that finite difference schemes based on total variation diminishing Runge-Kutta and Weighted essentially non-oscillatory reconstruction methods works well and generate numerical solutions converging toward continuous manufactured solutions. Impacts of the drift of the vegetation dynamic and management cost are discussed numerically as well.

Keywords: Stochastic control, Erlangization, Higher-order finite difference schemes

Acknowledgements

Environmental Research Projects from the Sumitomo Foundation (No. 203160), and a grant from MLIT Japan for management of seaweed in Lake Shinji support this research.

- [1] Anderson, E. W., Hansen, L. P., & Sargent, T. J. (2003). A quartet of semigroups for model specification, robustness, prices of risk, and model detection. Journal of the European Economic Association, 1(1), 68–123.
- [2] Capasso, V., & Bakstein, D. (2021). An Introduction to Continuous-Time Stochastic Processes. Birkhäuser, Cham.
- [3] Ramaswami, V., Woolford, D. G., & Stanford, D. A. (2008). The Erlangization method for Markovian fluid flows. Annals of Operations Research, 160(1), 215–225.

^{*} Corresponding Author Email: yoshih@life.shimane-u.ac.jp

Optimization versus metaheuristics in forecasting: A comparative study for energy demand forecast of Turkey

Alper Döyen[⊠], Yakup Atasagun

Konya Technical University, Industrial Engineering Department, Konya, Turkey

Abstract

Energy is probably the most important economic factor for countries, particularly for those, that have high energy dependency rates. Those countries need to make accurate estimations of energy demand in order to lower their energy import costs. To estimate the energy demand of Turkey, different methodologies are proposed in the literature, where statistical approaches [1,2], artificial neural network [3], grey prediction [4] and metaheuristics [5,6] are the most commonly used forecasting tools. Regression models constitute an important part of the literature for the statistical approaches. If there are more than one independent variable that affect the value of a dependent variable, the regression model is called as multiple regression model. Since the amount of energy demand depends on numerous predictor variables, fitting a multiple linear regression model is a good choice as a forecasting method. The prediction quality of a regression model is directly related to the parameters of predictor variables. Metaheuristic algorithms [5,6] are used widely to determine the parameters of regression models for energy demand estimation. However, one can find regression parameters in a cleverer way by using optimization instead of searching by metaheuristics. For that purpose, in this study we use Goal Programming (GP), which is a well-known multi-objective mathematical programming technique. The performance of goal programming is compared to the performance of some metaheuristic algorithms proposed in the literature for the energy demand prediction of Turkey. It is observed that, goal programming outperforms metaheuristics in different performance measures and provides comparable results to the well-known least squares method.

Keywords: Energy demand forecasting, goal programming, multiple linear regression

- [1] Bulut, Y. M., & Yıldız, Z. (2016). Comparing energy demand estimation using various statistical methods: the case of Turkey. Gazi University Journal of Science, 29(2), 237-244.
- [2] Aydin, G. (2014). Modeling of energy consumption based on economic and demographic factors: The case of Turkey with projections. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 35, 382-389.
- [3] Günay, M. E. (2016). Forecasting annual gross electricity demand by artificial neural networks using predicted values of socio-economic indicators and climatic conditions: Case of Turkey. Energy Policy, 90, 92-101.
- [4] Akay, D., & Atak, M. (2007). Grey prediction with rolling mechanism for electricity demand forecasting of Turkey. energy, 32(9), 1670-1675.
- [5] Ceylan, H., & Ozturk, H. K. (2004). Estimating energy demand of Turkey based on economic indicators using genetic algorithm approach. Energy Conversion and Management, 45(15-16), 2525-2537.
- [6] Kıran, M. S., Özceylan, E., Gündüz, M., & Paksoy, T. (2012). A novel hybrid approach based on particle swarm optimization and ant colony algorithm to forecast energy demand of Turkey. Energy conversion and management, 53(1), 75-83.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>alperdoyen@ktun.edu.tr</u>

A Novel Finite Volume Scheme for the Numerical Investigation of Bacterial Communication Model

Burcu Gürbüz[™]

Johannes Gutenberg-University Mainz, Institute of Mathematics, Mainz, Germany

Abstract

Bacteria populations are considered to be grown by dividing themselves which is explained by diffusion process. Separately, these organisms have communication skills for controlling and coordination of their behavior with regard to biochemical reactions. Thus, this phenomena is modeled by the partial differential equations, in particular, reaction-diffusion equations. On the other hand, solutions of such equations together with initial and boundary conditions are difficult to obtain.

In this study, a novel finite volume method approch for the solutions of reaction-diffusion equations with Diriclet boundary conditions is investigated. The robust numerical scheme is introduced based on the divergence theorem and the finite difference method is evaluated with regard to Laguerre series expansion. Additionally, a discreatization process is explained and a local balance is written on each discretization as a control volume. Besides, the structured meshes on geometries are used and the numerical flux is conserved from one discreatization cell to its neighbor which gives a convenience for the solution since the flux is of importance particularly in our model. The method is modified based on the series approximation and efficiency of the numerical scheme is investigated by using error analysis and performed on the model examples. Some simulations are obtained and the results are discussed.

Keywords: Reaction-diffusion equations, bacterial communication, finite volume method, divergence theorem, numerical simulation.

- [1] Kuttler, C. (2017). Reaction-diffusion equations and their application on bacterial communication. Handbook of Statistics, 37, 55-91.
- [2] Zarva, P., & Eberl, H.J. (2020). Simulation based exploration of bacterial cross talk between spatially separated colonies in a multispecies biofilm community. International Conference on Computational Science, Springer, Cham., 228-241.
- [3] Evans, L.C. (2010). Partial differential equations. American Mathematical Society, Providence, Rhode Island.
- [4] Patankar, S. (1980). Numerical heat transfer and fluid flow. Hemisfere, Taylor and Francis, New York.
- [5] Versteeg, H.K. & Malalasekera, W. (2007). An introduction to computational fluid dynamics: the finite volume method. Pearson.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: burcu.gurbuz@uni-mainz.de

A Numerical Approach on Fitzhugh-Nagumo Model

Burcu Gürbüz^{1⊠}, Aytül Gökçe², Mahmut Modanlı³

¹ Johannes Gutenberg- University Mainz, Institute of Mathematics, Mainz, Germany
² Ordu University, Department of Mathematics, Ordu, Turkey
³ Harran University, Department of Mathematics, Şanlıurfa, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, we work on a numerical approach for a coupled FitzHugh-Nagumo model. First, we introduce the model which is the base of tunnel-diode nerve model. The nonlinear system of ordinary differential equations with the parameters are given. Then a numerical technique based on Taylor series and matrix representations are described together with the collocation points. Then we apply the method to obtain a system of nonlinear algebraic equations. Besides we apply a finite difference scheme together with its stability and compare the results to show important relations in dynamics. On the other hand, stability analysis of the dynamic system in positive equilibrium condition is explained. In addition, an error analysis, some simulations with numerical solutions and the results of the qualitative analysis of the system are given. The behavior of the model is explained.

Keywords: FitzHugh-Nagumo model, Taylor series, finite difference scheme, stability analysis, numerical simulation.

- [1] Izhikevich, E.M. (2006). Fitzhugh-Nagumo model. Available at http://scholarpedia.org/article/FitzHugh-Nagumo model. Scholarpedia.
- [2] Faghih, R.T., Savla, K., Dahleh, M.A., & Brown, E.N. (2010). The Fitzhugh-Nagumo Model: Firing modes with time-varying parameters & parameter estimation, in 2010 Annual International Conference of the IEEE Engineering in Medicine and Biology, 4116-4119.
- [3] Brown, D., Herbison, A.E., Robinson, J.E., Marrs, R.W., & Leng, G. (1994). Modelling the luteinizing hormone-releasing hormone pulse generator, Neuroscience, 63(3), 869-879.
- [4] Gökçe, A., Avitabile, D., & Coombes, S. (2017). The dynamics of neural fields on bounded domains: an interface approach for dirichlet boundary conditions. The Journal of Mathematical Neuroscience, 7(1), 1-23.
- [5] Gürbüz, B. (2021). A computational approximation for the solution of retarded functional differential equations and their applications to science and engineering. Journal of Industrial & Management Optimization.
- [6] Ashyralyev, A., & Modanli, M., (2015). An operator method for telegraph partial differential and difference equations, Boundary Value Problems, 41, 1-17.

 $^{{}^{\}boxtimes} \ Corresponding \ Author \ Email: \underline{burcu.gurbuz@uni-mainz.de}$

An Application of Multi-Objective Scheduling with Fuzzy Measure

Esra Duygu Durmaz[™], Sena Aydoğan, Ramazan Şahin

Gazi University, Industrial Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

In this paper, we study multi-objective scheduling problem with consideration of interactions between the objectives. In the area of production management, the single-machine scheduling (SMS) problem is a major decision issue having more than one objective that needs to be considered simultaneously. Because compliance with deadlines and avoidance of delay penalties have become a necessity to survive, minimum total weighted tardiness is seen to be one of the most common objective functions in SMS literature. Besides, additional objectives need to be addressed to have competitive advantage. Therefore, measures of maximum tardiness and maximum earliness have also been taken into account. Maximum tardiness is associated to meet customer due dates, while maximum earliness is associated with the inventory cost of finished goods. The weighted arithmetic mean operator is typically used to aggregate the objective functions when developing a multi-objective optimization algorithm. However, if there is a positive relationship between some of the objectives, the related ones may prevent the achievement of good solutions by dominating others. The use of a different operator will eliminate this problem in the aggregation process. In this study, a tri-criteria SMS problem with the objectives of minimizing total weighted tardiness, maximum tardiness and maximum earliness is discussed. SMS has been proved to be an NP-hard problem in terms of computational complexity. Since exact methods are insufficient to solve the large-scale problems, a genetic algorithm is proposed to ensure near-optimal solutions. To aggregate the criteria by considering interactions, the Choquet integral operator is implemented as a tool to each individual solution's fitness function. Performance of the proposed algorithm is evaluated on small, medium and large sized test problems. Through this study, fuzzy measure is indicated as an effective tool to aggregate the criteria, especially when they are correlated.

Keywords: Single-machine scheduling problem, fuzzy measure, multi-objective optimization, genetic algorithm

References

- [1] Giannopoulos, N., Moulianitis, V. C., & Nearchou, A. C. (2012). Multi-objective optimization with fuzzy measures and its application to flow-shop scheduling. Engineering Applications of Artificial Intelligence, 25(7), 1381-1394.
- [2] Branke, J., Corrente, S., Greco, S., Słowiński, R., & Zielniewicz, P. (2016). Using Choquet integral as preference model in interactive evolutionary multiobjective optimization. European Journal of Operational Research, 250(3), 884-901.
- [3] Laguna, M., Barnes, J. W., & Glover, F. W. (1991). Tabu search methods for a single machine scheduling problem. Journal of Intelligent Manufacturing, 2(2), 63-73.
- [4] Choobineh, F. F., Mohebbi, E., & Khoo, H. (2006). A multi-objective tabu search for a single-machine scheduling problem with sequence-dependent setup times. European Journal of Operational Research, 175(1), 318-337.
- [5] Chiou, H., Tzeng, G., & Cheng, D. (2005). Evaluating sustainable fishing development strategies using fuzzy MCDM approach. Omega, 33(3), 223-234.

×

Corresponding Author Email: <u>esradurmaz@gazi.edu.tr</u>

Pairwise comparison scale's with Analytic Hierarchy Process: Gsm operator preference of university students

Esma Canhasi Kasemi^{1⊠}, Luan Vardari²

¹ Prizren University, Education Department, Prizren, Kosovo ² Universum College, Business and Management Department, Prishtina, Kosovo

Abstract

The Analytical Hierarchy Principle (AHP) [1], which has elegant mathematical properties, is very useful in complex decisions where the data used as input can often be easily provided, and especially in complex decisions that require comparison of decision elements that are difficult to measure. In this study, the explanation of the theory of AHP, which has a multi-purpose and multi-criteria decision making technique, and the traditional judgment scale used in binary comparison, which is the stage of the method, namely the balanced scale [2] are introduced. The authors discuss the use of these two judgment scales in a real problem and their impact on priority estimation in AHP. The aim of the study is to compare the results using two different judgment scales included in the AHP method of the GSM operator preference of students in Kosovo. In practice, the survey was conducted in three languages with University of Prizren students, which are existing in Kosovo with VALA and IPKO Gsm operators. The questionnaire was applied to students studying in 3 languages (Bosnian, Turkish and Albanian) at the Faculty of Education at the University of Prizren. According to the data obtained from the surveys, the importance weights of the decision criteria were calculated separately for each scale and compared, and thus, the preference ranking of the GSM operators was made according to each decision criterion and all criteria.

Keywords: Analytic Hierarchy Process (AHP), judgment scales, GSM Operator, Mobile Phone, Students

- [1] Saaty, T. (1980). The analytic hierarchy process (AHP) for decision making. In Kobe, Japan, 1-69.
- [2] Salo, A. A., & Hämäläinen, R. P. (1997). On the measurement of preferences in the analytic hierarchy process. Journal of Multi-Criteria Decision Analysis, 6(6), 309-319.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: esmacanhas@hotmail.com

Financial Efficiency of Companies Operating in the Kosovo Food Sector: DEA and DEAHP

Esma Canhasi Kasemi^{1⊠}, Necati Özdemir²

¹ Prizren University, Education Department, Prizren, Kosovo ² Balıkesir University, Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

In this study copmanies operating in the food sector in Kosovo were evaluated with the weight-restricted DEA (Data Envelopment Analysis)[1] model created using the unweighted DEA model and then the AHP (the Analytical Hierarchy Process)[2] model, and the two models were compared. DEA is a nonparametric method that is used frequently in operations research and management sciences. DEA evaluates a large number of input and output variables using mathematical programming techniques and analyzes the effectiveness of similar Decision Making Units (DMU). Unlike traditional methods, the most important advantage of DEA is that the weights of input and output variables can be determined by the analyzer. In this study, the limitations of the weights of DMUs in DEA were determined by using the AHP, which takes into account the expert opinion. In addition, an alternative scale was used for the Saaty scale, which is used as a standard in AHP method, and thus a more sensitive analysis was performed. As a result of the first model that was run, 6 companies were found effective, and only 3 of them were found effective as a result of the second model, and the remaining unethical companies were determined and made necessary suggestions to improve the efficiency of the companies.

Keywords: Analytic Hierarchy Process (AHP), Data Envelope Analysis (DEA), AHP-DEA, Decision Making Criteria, Efficiency Measurement, Scale.

- [1] Charnes, A., Cooper, W., Lewin, A. Y., & Seiford, L. M. (1997). Data envelopment analysis theory, methodology and applications. Journal of the Operational Research society, 48(3), 332-333.
- [2] Saaty, T. (1980). The analytic hierarchy process (AHP) for decision making. In Kobe, Japan, 1-69.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>esmacanhas@hotmail.com</u>

A Caputo Fractional Order Model for Tumor-Immune System-Host Cells Interaction: A Lung Cancer Application

Fatma Özköse^{1⊠}, İlhan Öztürk², Seçil Yılmaz³, Tamer Şenel⁴, Mehmet Yavuz⁵, Burcu Şen Bağcı⁶, Medine Doğan⁷

¹ Erciyes University, Departments of Mathematics, Faculty of Science, 38039, Kayseri, Turkey
 ² Erciyes University, Genome and Stem Cell Center (GENKOK), 38039, Kayseri, Turkey
 ³ Necmettin Erbakan University, Department of Mathematics and Computer Sciences, Faculty of Science, 42090 Konya, Turkey

Abstract

In this manuscript, a fractional-order model of tumor-immune system-host cells interaction has been considered. In modelling dynamics, the total population of the model is divided into four subpopulations: macrophages, activated macrophages, tumor cells and host cells. The Caputo fractional order derivative [1] is used in the modelling of tumor-immune system. In this study, the effects of fractional derivative on the stability and dynamical behaviors of the solutions are investigated by using the Caputo fractional operator that provides convenience for initial conditions of the differential equations. The existence and uniqueness of the solutions for the fractional derivative is examined and numerical simulations are presented to verify the analytical results. In addition, our model is used to describe the kinetics of growth and regression of the tumor cells in the lung tissues of five lung cancer patients in Erciyes University hospitals. Numerical simulations are given for different choices of fractional order and the obtained results are compared with the experimental data. One can conclude that fractional model best fit experimental data better than the integer order model [2,3,4,5].

Keywords: Tumor-macrophage and host cells, existence and uniqueness, equilibrium points, real data, fractional calculus

Acknowledgements

This work is supported by Research Fund of the Erciyes University. Project number: FDS-2021-11059.

- [1] Podlubny I. (1999). Fractional differential equations. New York: Academic Press.
- [2] Öztürk, I., & Özköse F. (2020). Stability analysis of fractional order mathematical model of tumor-immune system interaction. Chaos, Solitons &Fractals. 133, 109614.
- [3] Mukhopadhyay, B. & Bhattacharyya, R. (2008). Temporal and spatio temporal variations in mathematical model of macrophage-tumor interaction. Nonlinear analysis: Hybrid Systems, 2, 819-831.
- [4] Naik, P. A., Yavuz, M., Qureshi, S., Zu, J., & Townley, S. (2020). Modeling and analysis of COVID-19 epidemics with treatment in fractional derivatives using real data from Pakistan. The European Physical Journal Plus, 135(10), 1-42.
- [5] Yavuz, M., & Özdemir, N. (2020). Analysis of an epidemic spreading model with exponential decay law. Mathematical Sciences and Applications E-Notes, 8(1), 142-154.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: fpeker@erciyes.edu.tr

Design of Clamps for Use in Flexible Pipes and Development of Production System

Engin Demir^{1⊠}, Bilal Kurşuncu²

¹Tork Valve & Automation, Istanbul, Turkey ²Bartın University, Departmant of Mechanical Engineering, Bartın, Turkey

Abstract

Today, it has become a necessity to make continuous improvements in machines and factors affecting production, and to keep production integrity up-to-date and efficient. The whole of the improvements made to meet the requirements is called innovation. In this context, the production integrity of the clamp systems used in flexible pipes is starting to lose its effectiveness with the developing technologies. In this study, the important parts of an improved clamping machine, the current data obtained and its advantages compared to the previous version are included.

Examining the subject is important in terms of the results to be obtained and the evaluation of the gains in clamp production. Innovation covers all the processes carried out to develop a new or improved product, service or production method and to make it commercially profitable. Developing a new or improved product, service or production method arises from new ideas [1]. R&D has a vital importance in revealing technological innovation [2]. However, the role of R&D differs from various perspectives. For some, R&D is the development of new products or processes, while others see R&D as merely conducting scientific studies [3]. By a generally accepted definition, R&D is any creative systematic activity undertaken to increase knowledge, including knowledge of people, culture and society, and the use of this knowledge to develop new applications [4]. R&D involves researching initially, then discovering what has not yet been discovered, and using this knowledge to develop or improve a product [5-6].

Keywords: Clamp, flexible conduits, machine design

References

- [1] Koçyiğit S. and Ayan M. (2014). https://www.academia.edu/8638602/%C4%B0novation. Innovation, York University Turkey Representation Department of Business Administration
- [2] Greenhalgh, C., & Rogers, M. (2010). Innovation, intellectual property, and economic growth. Princeton University Press.
- [3] Forbes, N., & Wield, D. (2004). What is R&D? Why does it matter?. Science and Public Policy, 31(4), 267-277.
- [4] OECD, Frascati Manual 2015. Paris: OECD Publishing, (2015)
- [5] Khoshnevis, P., & Teirlinck, P. (2018). Performance evaluation of R&D active firms. Socioeconomic planning sciences, 61, 16-28.
- [6] Chiesa, V. (2001). R&D Strategy and Organization Managing Technical Change in Dynamic Contexts, 7(5).

http://icame.balikesir.edu.tr

[™] Corresponding Author Email: demir201@hotmail.com

Suggestion of Standard and Optimized Stages in LOC (Lab On A Chip), LOD (Lab On A Disc), POC (Point Of Care) Development Process for Biomedical Applications

Gülsen Yaman [⊠]

Balıkesir University, Balıkesir, Turkey

Abstract

Molecular imaging, sensing and diagnostic systems have recently produced new microanalysis technologies (LOC - Lab on a Chip, LOD - Lab on a Disk) such as biosensors for point of care (POC - Point of Care) testing systems and their benefits in medical applications has been recognized as a promising area of research for further development. Biosensors have evolved over the last decade towards paradigms of fast and real-time sensing, ease of use, and low cost. However, it has difficulties in meeting sensitivity requirements and detecting low concentration for early-stage diagnosis while maintaining efficiency and speed. Typically, a simple point-of-care (POC) diagnosis can test for blood, saliva, or other biological material. They must be able to directly measure a parameter in a sample with little intervention from other fluid components or the need for a series of preparatory procedures prior to analysis. In this study, the whole process is evaluated by examining optimization, Computational Fluid Dynamics (CFD) and simulation stages to design and build microfluidic-based chips by increasing the detection probability of biological materials for diagnostic systems (LOC). Here we provide a glimpse into the stages of a standard and successful manufacturing process, taking into account laboratory bio-analysis on the design and fabrication of a new chip for rapid and early detection of viruses or bacteria used in cellular materials.

Keywords: Biosensors, molecular diagnostics, CFD, LOC, LOaD, POC

References

- [1] Shu, Jung I.. (2019), Computational Analysis and Design Optimization of Convective PCR Devices" (2019). Doctor of Philosophy (PhD), dissertation, Mechanical & Aerospace Engineering, Old Dominion University, DOI: 10.25777/v8tg-w217, https://digitalcommons.odu.edu/mae_etds/206
- [2] Xie, Z., Pu, H., Sun, D.W., (2020), Computer simulation of submicron fluid flows in microfluidic chips and their applications in food analysis, Comprehensive Reviews In Food Science And Food Safety, 20, 3818-3837. DOI: 10.1111/1541-4337.12766
- [3] Zagklavara, F., Jimack, P.K., Kapur, N., Querin, O.M., Thompson, H.M., (2021), Numerical Modelling and Analysis of a Microfluidic PCR Device, Proceedings of the 6th World Congress on Momentum, Heat and Mass Transfer (MHMT'21), Lisbon, Portugal Virtual Conference—June 17–19, 2021 Paper No. ENFHT 201, DOI: 10.11159/enfht21.lx.201
- [4] Kim, N., Han, K., Su, P.C., Kim, I., Yoon, Y.J., (2021), A rotationally focused flow (RFF) microfluidic biosensor by density difference for early-stage detectable diagnosis, Scientific Reports, 11, 9277
- [5] Mahshid, S.S., Sarah Elizabeth Flynn, S.E., Mahshid, S., (2021), The potential application of electrochemical biosensors in the COVID-19 pandemic: A perspective on the rapid diagnostics of SARS-CoV-2, Biosensors and Bioelectronics 176, 112905
- [6] Lim, G. S., Chang, J.S., Lei, Z., Wu, R., Wang, Z., Cui, K., Wong, S., (2015), A lab-on-a-chip system integrating tissue sample preparation and multiplex RT-qPCR for gene expression analysis in point-of-care hepatotoxicity assessment, Lab on a Chip, DOI: 10.1039/c5lc00798d

 \sim

Corresponding Author Email: <u>yamangulsen@gmail.com</u>

Heat Waves Due To Cattaneo-Hristov Heat Diffusion Occurring on the Half-Real Axis

Derya Avci^{1⊠}, Beyza Billur İskender Eroğlu¹, Jordan Hristov²

¹Balıkesir University, Department of Mathematics, Balıkesir, Turkey ² University of Chemical Technology and Metallurgy, Department of Chemical Engineering, Sofia, Bulgaria

Abstract

This study aims to investigate the heat waves observed in the Cattaneo-Hristov heat diffusion model [1] under different harmonic effects. In this model, the fading regular memory effect is described with Caputo-Fabrizio fractional derivative [2]. We assume that this phenomenon is occurring on the semi-infinite real axis. Wave-like temperature curves are obtained analytically. For this purpose, the Laplace and the sine-Fourier integral transforms are used [3]. The effects of problem parameters such as angular frequency, the velocity of the moving harmonic heat source, and fractional order on heat waves [4] are simulated with Matlab software.

Keywords: Cattaneo-Hristov heat diffusion, Caputo-Fabrizio fractional derivative, heat waves, analytical solution

- [1] Hristov, J. (2016). Transient heat diffusion with a non-singular fading memory: From the Cattaneo constitutive equation with Jeffrey's kernel to the Caputo-Fabrizio time-fractional derivative. Thermal science, 20(2), 757-762.
- [2] Caputo, M., & Fabrizio, M. (2015). A new definition of fractional derivative without singular kernel. Progress in Fractional Differentiation and Applications, 1(2), 73-81.
- [3] Povstenko, Y.Z. (2015). Linear Fractional Diffusion-Wave Equation for Scientists and Engineers. Springer, New York.
- [4] Povstenko, Y.Z, & Ostoja-Starzewski, M. (2021). Doppler effect described by the solutions of the Cattaneo telegraph equation. Acta Mechanica, 232(2), 725-740.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>dkaradeniz@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Optimal Control of a Fractional Computer Virus Propagation Model

Derya Avci [⊠], Fatma Soytürk

Balikesir University, Department of Mathematics, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, we aim to examine the optimal control of computer viruses spreading in a network [1]. The main goal is to reduce both the number of infected computers and the cost of installed programs. For this purpose, an antivirus program or firewall is adapted to the model as a control function [2]. The system discussed is the Caputo fractional derivative SEIR model [3]. The Euler-Lagrange equations describing the optimality conditions are calculated using the Hamiltonian formalism [4,5]. To solve the optimal system numerically, we apply forward-backward sweep method coupled with the Adams-type predictor-corrector method [6]. Numerical results are simulated for the variation of problem parameters using MATLAB software.

Keywords: Computer virus, SEIR model, fractional optimal control, Caputo fractional derivative, Adams-type predictor-corrector method, forward-backward sweep method

- [1] Ren, J., Xu, Y., & Zhang, C. (2013). Optimal control of a delay-varying computer virus propagation model. Discrete Dynamics in Nature and Society. 2013, Article ID 210291.
- [2] Murray, W. H. (1988). The application of epidemiology to computer viruses. Computers & Security, 7(2), 139-150.
- [3] Ebenezer, B., Farai, N., & Kwesi, A.A.S. (2015). Fractional dynamics of computer virus propagation. Science Journal of Applied Mathematics and Statistics. 3(3), 63-69.
- [4] Naidu, D.S. (2002). Optimal Control Systems, CRC Press, Boca-Raton.
- [5] Agrawal, O.P. (2004). A general formulation and solution scheme for fractional optimal control problems. Nonlinear Dynamics. 38, 323–337.
- [6] Kheiri, H., & Jafari, M. (2018). Optimal control of a fractional-order model for the HIV/AIDS epidemic. International Journal of Biomathematics, 11(07), 1850086.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: dkaradeniz@balikesir.edu.tr

Fractional Optimal Control Problem For A Delayed Computer Virus Propagation

Beyza Billur İskender Eroğlu [™], Dilara Yapışkan

Balikesir University, Mathematics Department, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, the fractional optimal control problem (FOCP) is proposed to control the spread of computer viruses generated with a delayed SIR model. For this purpose, the optimal control problem, in which a trade-off is made between the control cost and the control effect, previously presented with the integer derivative in [1], is reconsidered with the Caputo fractional derivative. Using Hamiltonian formulation, the fractional optimality conditions are derived by Euler-Lagrange equations. Then, the optimal control function is achieved with the help of the Pontryagin Maximum Principle. The numerical solutions of the optimality conditions are obtained by using the Adams-type predictor-corrector algorithm for state equations, and the Forward-Backward Sweep method combining with Adams-type predictor-corrector algorithm for costate equations, [2,3]. Finally, the solutions drawn by MATLAB program illustrate that the FOCP minimizes the number of the infected computers.

Keywords: Fractional optimal control, delayed computer virus model, Caputo fractional derivative, Adams-type predictor-corrector algorithm, forward-backward sweep method.

- [1] Zhu, Q., Yang, X., Yang, L. X., and Zhang, C. (2012). Optimal control of computer virus under a delayed model. Applied Mathematics and Computation, 218(23), 11613-11619.
- [2] Bhalekar, S., and Daftardar-Gejji, V. (2011). A predictor-corrector scheme for solving nonlinear delay differential equations of fractional order. Journal of Fractional Calculus and Applications, 1(5), 1-9.
- [3] Kheiri, H., and Jafari, M. (2018). Optimal control of a fractional-order model for the HIV/AIDS epidemic. International Journal of Biomathematics, 11(07), 1850086.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>biskender@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Could Stem Cells' Behaviors be Modeled as an Optimization Algorithm?

Ramazan Yaman[⊠]

Istanbul Atlas University, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Many optimization approaches mimic natural behaviors. These approaches are used for optimizing different engineering and decision problems. The dilemma has occurred from the understanding of natural behaviors to optimize the problems or conventional optimization approaches used for solving natural behaviors. The first is called biomimetic or biomimicry.

This study is on examination for an understanding of the stem cells' mechanism for optimizing their performances. It could also be used for stem cell modeling to optimize systems and decision problems. This study could be assessed as an early point of view of the stem cell algorithm approach for optimization.

Keywords: Biomimicry, stem cell mechanisms, stem cell optimization algorithm

References:

- [1] Passino, Kevin M., (2005), "Biomimicry for Optimization, Control, and Automation", 2005, ISBN 978-1-84628-069-6, Springer Nature Switzerland AG., 926 p. 365 illus.
- [2] Pisu, M., Comcas, A., Cao, G., (2007), A novel simulation model for stem cells differentiation, Journal of Biotechnology, 130, 171-182
- [3] Fouliard, S., Benhamida, S., Lenuzza, N., Xavier, F., (2009), Modeling and simulation of cell populations interaction, Mathematical and Computer Modelling, 49, 2104-2108
- [4] Zeng, X., Li, S., (2011), Multiscale modeling and simulation of soft adhesion and contact of stem cells, Journal of the Mechanical Behavior of Biomedical Materials, 4 180-189
- [5] Pavlovsky, Y.N., Fundamentals of mathematical modeling for complex systems, System Analysis and Modelling of Integrated World Systems, Vol.1, [online], https://www.eolss.net/sample-chapters/C15/E1-26-05-01.pdf
- [6] Tutak, T., Güder, Y., (2014), Matematiksel modellemenin Tanımı ve Önemi, Turkish Journal of Educational Studies, 1, (1), 173-190
- [7] Wang, C., Ros, R.R., Redondo, P.M., Ma, Z., Shi, L., Xue, Y., et.al., (2015) In vivo partial reprogramming of myofibers promotes muscle regeneration by remodeling the stem cell niche, Nature Communications, 12, 3094, 1-15
- [8] Stiehl, T., Czochra, A.M., (2019), How to characterize stem cells? Contributions from Mathematical modeling, Current Stem Cell Reports, 5, 57-65
- [9] Qin, X., Tapr, C.J., (2021), Deciphering Organiods: High-Dimensional analysis of biomimetic cultures, Trends in Biotechnology, 39, (8), 774-787
- [10] Yousefzade, O., Katsarava, R., Puiggali, J., (2020), Biomimetic Hybrid Systems for Tissue Engineering, Biomimetics, 5, (49), 1-31

143

[☐] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ramazan.yaman@gmail.com</u>

Exact Solutions of Lienard II-type oscillator equation by group classification

Zehra Pınar^{1⊠}, Özlem Orhan²

Abstract

In this study, we show that the Lienard II-type oscillator equation is linearizable for a special parametric choice. We obtain an exact solution for these special choices. Therefore, we identify a method to yield symmetries. This new generalized method is used and they obtain integrals from a single integral. The first integral $I(t,x,\dot{x})$ of the Lienard II-type oscillator equation is found and obtain an analytical solution by these first integral. The time-dependent first integral can be derived using symmetries and the exact solutions can be found by these time-dependent first integrals. The procedure will be explained then this procedure will be applied to the Lienard II-type oscillator equation. Moreover, this equation can be classified according to arbitrary coefficients.

Keywords: First integral, symmetries, Lienard II-type oscillator equation.

- [1] Noether, E. (1918). Invariante Variationsprobleme Nachr. König. Gesell. Wissen. Göttingen, Math.-Phys. Kl. Heft, vol. 2, pp. 235-257. English translation in Transport Theory and Statistical Physics, vol. 13, pp. 186-207, 1971.
- [2] Bluman, G. W., & Kumei, S. (2013). Symmetries and differential equations (Vol. 81). Springer Science & Business Media.
- [3] Ovsiannikov, L. V. E. (2014). Group analysis of differential equations. Academic press.
- [4] Ibragimov, N.H. editor. (1994). CRC Handbook of Lie Group Analysis of Differential Equations, vols, I-III.
- [5] Olver, P.J. (1986). Applications of Lie Groups to Differential Equations, Springer-Verlag.
- [6] Stephani, H. (1989). Differential equations: their solution using symmetries. Cambridge University Press.
- [7] Lie, S. (1883). Klassifikation and integration von gewhnlichen differentialgleichungen zwischen x; y, eine gruppe von transformationen gestatten", III, Arch. Mat. Naturvidenskab. Cambridge, vol. 8, pp. 371-458.

¹ Tekirdağ Namık Kemal University, Faculty of Arts and Science, Department of Mathematics, 59030 Merkez-Tekirdağ, Turkey

² Bandırma Onyedi Eylül University, Faculty of Engineering and Natural Sciences, Department of Basic Engineering Sciences, Bandırma, Balıkesir, Turkey

[™] Corresponding Author Email: zpinar@nku.edu.tr

Finite Element Method with Crank-Nicolson Scheme for the Nonlinear Klein-Gordon Equation in de Sitter Spacetime

Harun Selvitopi^{1⊠}, Muhammet Yazıcı²

Abstract

It is already known that the Klein-Gordon equation is an important physical phenomena so that it arises in quantum field theory and cosmology. In this article, we consider the initial value problem for the nonlinear Klein-Gordon equation in de Sitter spacetime,

$$u_{tt} + Hu_t - e^{-2Ht} \Delta u + m^2 u = |u|^{p-1} u, \quad (x,t) \in \mathbb{R} \times [0,\infty),$$

$$u(x,t) = u_0(x), \quad u_t(x,0) = u_1(x), \quad x \in \mathbb{R},$$
(1)

where m > 0 is the physical mass and p > 1. Here, H denotes the Hubble constant. In Minkowski spacetime, the existence of global weak solutions of the initial value problem for the Klein-Gordon equation

$$u_{tt} - \Delta u + m^2 u = |u|^{\alpha} u, \tag{2}$$

has been extensively studied (see eg., [1]).

The existence of small global solutions of the initial value problem for the following Klein-Gordon equation with the power type nonlinear term

$$u_{tt} + dHu_t - e^{-2Ht}\Delta u + m^2 u = |u|^\alpha u, \quad (x, t) \in \mathbb{R}^d \times [0, \infty), \tag{3}$$

is shown in [2] in the Sobolev space
$$H^s(\mathbb{R}^d)$$
 for $s > d/2$ when $m \in \left(0, \frac{\sqrt{d^2 - 1}}{2}\right) \cup \left[\frac{d}{2}, \infty\right)$.

Numerical solutions of the nonlinear Klein-Gordon equation in de Sitter spacetime is considered. The mathematical model of the physical problem is a hyperbolic type equation. Therefore in the solution procedure, the temporal variable is discretized by finite difference method and the spatial variable is discretized by implicit Galerkin finite element method. The numerical error analysis is shown with different values of time step. Finite difference method is also used for discretization of spatial variable to confirm the realibility of the numerical results. Several simulations are performed to show the behavior of the numerical solutions for the equation in de Sitter spacetime. The finite element method with the finite difference scheme is used to obtain the numerical solution of the linear form of the considered initial value problem in [3].

Keywords: De sitter spacetime, Klein-Gordon equation, Finite element method, Finite difference method

- [1] Brenner, P. (1979). On the existence of global smooth solutions of certain semilinear hyperbolic equations, Math Z., 167(2), 99-135.
- [2] Yagdjian, K. (2012) Global existence of the scalar field in de Sitter spacetime, J. Math. Anal. Appl, 396, 323-344.
- [3] Selvitopi, H., Yazıcı, M. (2019) Numerical results for the Klein-Gordon equation in de Sitter spacetime Math. Method Appl. Sci., 42, 5446-5454.

¹ Erzurum Technical University, Department of Mathematic, Erzurum, Turkey

² Karadeniz Technical University, Department of Mathematic, Trabzon, Turkey

Reliable Fast Algorithm of Taylor Wavelet Method for Some Fractional Delay Differential Equations

Gökçe Özaltun¹, Ali Konuralp¹⊠, Sevin Gümgüm²

¹ Manisa Celal Bayar University, Department of Mathematics, Manisa, Turkey ² İzmir University of Economics, Department of Mathematics, İzmir, Turkey

Abstract

This paper presents a reliable fast algorithm of Taylor wavelet method to solve some linear and nonlinear fractional differential equations. The fractional derivative is considered in the Caputo sense. This method transforms the differential equation into a system of algebraic equations. Then the approximate solution is obtained from approximated function whose coefficients are calculated from the system of equations. Several types of differential equations are solved by using that algorithm and their numerical data are obtained. It is observed that the proposed algorithm is applicable getting either the exact or the approximate solution to these types of differential equations.

Keywords: Taylor Wavelet, fractional differential equation, Riemann-Liouville fractional integral, function approximation

- [1] Toan, P.T., Vo, T.N., & Razzaghi, M. (2021). Taylor wavelet method for fractional delay differential equations. Engineering with Computers, 37, 231–240.
- [2] Vichitkunakorn, P., Vo, T.N., & Razzaghi, M. (2020). A numerical method for fractional pantograph differential equations based on Taylor wavelets. Transactions of the Institute of Measurement and Control, 42(7), 1334–1344.
- [3] Krishnasamy, V.S., Mashayekhi, S., & Razzaghi, M. (2017). Numerical solutions of fractional differential equations by using fractional Taylor basis. IEEE/CAA Journal of Automatica Sinica, 4(1), 98–106.
- [4] Yuttanan, B., Razzaghi, M., & Vo, T.N. (2020). A fractional-order generalized Taylor wavelet method for nonlinear fractional delay and nonlinear fractional pantograph differential equations. Mathematical Methods in the Applied Sciences, 44(5), 4156–4175.
- [5] Balaji, S. (2015). Legendre wavelet operational matrix method for solution of fractional order Riccati differential equation. Journal of the Egyptian Mathematical Society, 23(2), 263–270.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>harun.selvitopi@erzurum.edu.tr</u>

[™] Corresponding Author Email: ali.konuralp@cbu.edu.tr

A New Coding/Decoding Algorithm Based on k-Fibonacci Numbers

Öznur Öztunç Kaymak

Balıkesir University, Balıkesir, Turkey

Abstract

As the mass media has become widespread day by day, it has also brought the problem of information security along with its many advantages. It is well known that the insufficient provision of information security conditions may cause unauthorized alteration, disclosure, recording and damage of data. The technology developed for preventing these problems is called cryptology. "Provable security" is the foundation of cryptology and this security is based on mathematical problems. Therefore, before developing cryptological hardware or software (high speed, low memory track, etc.), an applicable mathematical theory is required. In the coding theory, which is one of these theoretical fields of study, methods are created for the transfer of information from one place to another. These methods focus solely on the encryption and decryption process. Moreover, it is considered that the environment in which the data is exchanged is noisy. For this reason, the main purpose of the coding theory is to provide fast encryption and decryption of information. Apart from that, the relations are also developed in order to correct the errors that are likely to occur in the channel. As a result, the developed model can be said to be successful, if it makes fast encryption and has high error verification capability. Although there are many studies in this field, one of the best known is the Fibonacci method. This method is based on Fibonacci p-numbers and Q_p is a square $(p+1) \times (p+1)$ matrix and the Cassini formula well known in the literature in [1]. The k-Fibonacci sequence, which is the more general form of Fibonacci numbers, is defined by

$$F_{k,n} = k F_{k,n-1} + F_{k,n-2}$$

with initial conditions $F_{k,0} = 0$, $F_{k,1} = 1$ for any positive integer k. These numbers are found by the recursive application of two geometrical transformations named as 4-triangle longest-edge (4TLE) partition in [2]. Many features of the k-Fibonacci numbers, which are known as the extension of Fibonacci, Pell numbers etc., have been found in related studies in [3]-[8]. In this paper we present a new method of coding/decoding algorithms using Fibonacci Q_k^n -matrices. Asymmetric encryption method, which uses a mathematically related pair of keys for encryption and decryption, constitutes the basis of our model. In doing so, this algorithm contributes to authentication problem in cryptology.

Keywords: Coding Theory, k-Fibonacci Numbers, Cryptology

- [1] Stakhov, A. P. (2006). Fibonacci matrices, a generalization of the Cassini formula and a new coding theory. Chaos Solitons Fractals, 30(1), 56-66.
- [2] Falcòn, S., & Plaza, À. (2007). The *k*-Fibonacci sequence and the Pascal 2-triangle. Chaos, Solitons & Fractals, 33, 38-49.
- [3] Bolat, C. & Köse, H. (2010). On the properties of *k*-Fibonacci numbers. Int. J. Contemp. Math. Sciences, 5, 1097-1105.
- [4] Falcon, S. & Plaza, A. (2007). On the Fibonacci k-numbers. Chaos, Solitons & Fractals, 32, 1615-1624.
- [5] Özgür, N.Y. & Kaymak, Ö.Ö. (2015). On determination of *k*-Fibonacci and *k*-Lucas numbers. Math. Sci. Appl. E-notes, 3, 20-26.
- [6] Kaymak, Ö.Ö. (2017). Primes of the Form 4m+1. Turk. J. Math. Comput. Sci., 7, 16-20.
- [7] Özgür, N.Y., Uçar, S., Kaymak, Ö.Ö. (2016). Complex factorizations of the *k*-Fibonacci and *k*-Lucas numbers. An. ,Stiin,t. Univ.Al. Cuza Ia,si. Mat. (N.S.), LXII, 13-20.
- [8] Catarino, P. (2014). On some identities for k-Fibonacci sequence. Int. J. Contemp. Math. Sci., 9(1), 37-42.

Analysis of Artificial Intelligence in the Web of Science Database via Topic Modeling

Özlem Aydın [™], Özlem Tülek, Nimet Aksoy, Öznur Öztunç Kaymak

Balıkesir University, Turkey

Abstract

As the mass media increased, the prevalence of information increased more and more. As this information presented through different platforms (phones, tablets, computers, etc.) has grown, the analysis, classification and comparison of this information has also become important. Topic modeling, a machine learning method, is used to reveal hidden structures within a single document. In this method, the words contained in the documents are automatically grouped into clusters to characterize similar expressions. [1] Since the proposed algorithms for this model are statistical methods, it is aimed to reach a conclusion by analyzing the words that make up the document. [2] The Latent Dirichlet Allocation(LDA), which is used as a topic modeling method, was first developed by Blei et al. [3] In this method, without the need for any prior knowledge, the distribution of words in subjects and subjects in documents is obtained from the Dirichlet distribution. [4] Although the LDA is a very popular method, its tendency to learn excessively and its inability to generalize on newly seen documents are among the disadvantages of the model. [5] The Non-Negative Matrix Factorization (NMF) method [6], which gives better results compared to the LDA method, does not contain negative values in topic modeling and a vector space is created for the representation of the data. [7]

In this study, it is aimed to determine which studies have been carried out in the field of 'artificial intelligence', especially in Turkey, published in Web of Science (WOS) with the Non-Negative Matrix Factorization (NMF) method used in topic modeling and to reach results related to interdisciplinary studies in this context. In the last 15 years, 1284 abstracts extracted from WOS have been analyzed. Word clouds and LDAvis graph [8] are used to visualize the results. In addition, it is aimed to answer three basic questions about topic modeling. These questions are as follows:

- 1. What is the meaning of each topic?
- 2. How common is each topic?
- 3. How are the subjects related to each other?

Keywords: Artificial Intelligence, Topic Modeling, Non-Negative Matrix Factorization (NMF)

- [1] Stevyers, M., Griffiths, T. (2007) Probabilistic Topic Models, Handbook of Latent Semantic Analysis. Journal of the Korean Society for Information Management, 30(1), 7–32.
- [2] Blei, D. M. (2012) Probabilistic Topic Models, Communications of the ACM, 55(4), 77-84.
- [3] Blei, D.M., Ng, A.Y. (2003) Latent dirichlet allocation, The Journal of Machine Learning Research, 993-1022.
- [4] Ekinci, E., Omurca, S. İ., Kırık, E., Taşcı, Ş. (2020) Tıp Veri Kümesi için Gizli Dirichlet Ayrımı. Dokuz Eylül Üniversitesi Mühendislik Fakültesi Fen ve Mühendislik Dergisi, 22(64), 67-80.
- [5] Popescul, A., Ungar, L., Pennock, D., Lawrence, S. (2013). Probabilistic models for unified collaborative and content-based recommendation in sparse-data environments, 17th Conference in Uncertainty in Artificial Intelligence, 437-444.
- [6] Güven, Z. A., Diri, B., Çakaloğlu, T. (2019). Comparison of Topic Modeling Methods for Type Detection of Turkish News, 4th International Conference on Computer Science and Engineering (UBMK), doi: 10.1109/UBMK.2019.8907050.
- [7] Python, Non-negative matrix factorization (NMF or NNMF), Available from: https://scikit-learn.org/stable/modules/decomposition.html#id11, (Accessed: 10.11.2020).
- [8] Sievert, C., Shirley, K. E., pyLDAvis, python, (2015). Available from: https://pyldavis.readthedocs.io/en/latest/, (Accessed: 10.11.2020).

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>oztunc@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

The center problem for some biochemical systems

Ilknur Kusbeyzi Aybar^{1⊠}, Brigita Fercec^{2,3}, Orhan Ozgur Aybar⁴, Masa Dukaric³

Yeditepe University, Department of Mathematics and Science Education, Istanbul, Turkey
 University of Maribor, Faculty of Energy Technology, Krisko, Slovenia
 University of Maribor, Center for Applied Mathematics and Theoretical Physics, Maribor, Slovenia
 Piri Reis University, Department of Management Information Systems, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

The center-focus problem of polynomial differential equations known as the Poincare center problem is one of the crucial problems in the qualitative theory of dynamical systems. The limit cycles, which are isolated periodic solutions that bifurcate from a center or a focus when the parameters are perturbed by an arbitrarily small amount in particular families of polynomial systems of ordinary differential equations representing biochemical reactions, can be investigated by studying the center problem. The studies of the dynamical systems arising in biochemistry generally involve searching for positive steady states or periodic positive trajectories for only some given values of the coefficients. The center-focus problem is related to the theory of the algebraic invariants of differential equations and the commutative algebra, where there are some new results in the dynamical systems arising in biochemistry. In this work, we develop efficient computational approaches for studying bifurcations of limit cycles and apply them to the investigation of the center problem for some biochemical systems. The methods of computational algebra based on Groebner's base theory are developed with the help of the SINGULAR system to make the complex calculations of the polynomial ideals. We find necessary and sufficient conditions for the existence of a center by using methods of computational algebra. We investigate the center problem with an efficient computational algorithm for computing the focus quantities, which are the polynomials that define the center variety. We study Darboux integrability for proving the existence of a center in a biochemical system applying algorithms of computational commutative algebra. Finally, we perform numerical simulations to visualize the limit cycles of biochemical oscillatory behavior.

Keywords: Center problem, biochemical systems, limit cycle

Acknowledgements

This work is supported by the Slovenian Research Agency (research core no. "P1-0306" and the project no. "BI-TR/19-22-003") and the Scientific and Technological Research Council of Turkey (TUBITAK) under the project 119F017.

- [1] Romanovski, V., Shafer, D. (2009). The Center and Cyclicity Problems A Computational Algebra Approach, Birkhäuser, Boston.
- [2] Ferčec, B., Mahdi, A. (2013). Center conditions and cyclicity for a family of cubic systems: Computer algebra approach, Math. Comput. Simul., 87.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ozlem.aydin@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Corresponding Author Email: <u>ikusbeyzi@yeditepe.edu.tr</u>

Algebraic and Numerical Analysis of Chaos Transition Mechanisms in Electronic Circuits

Orhan Ozgur Aybar ^{1,2} ⊠

¹ Piri Reis University, Department of Management Information Systems, İstanbul, Turkey
 ² Piri Reis University, Department of Computational Science and Engineering, Institute of Graduate Studies, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Chaos theory and chaotic circuits have attracted interest in applied sciences. Chaos theory studies the mathematical behavior of nonlinear dynamical systems that are sensitively dependent on initial conditions and where a slight change in one state of the system can cause significant differences in a later state. With the help of bifurcation theory, these systems have recently been classified as chaotic attractors. An attractor is said to be self-excited if the gravitational pressure overlaps a neighborhood of a critical point. Chaotic attractors that are not self-excited are known as latent attractors, such as Lorenz, Chua, and Rossler attractors. In many experimental studies of Chua on electrical circuits, a periodfolding sequence that turns into chaos has been observed. Chua studied a three-dimensional system of autonomous differential equations representing a nonlinear electrical circuit [1]. In their studies, they demonstrated the chaos in two different quasi-periodic ways. First, they observed alternately that as the control parameter changes, quasi-periodic and phase-locked oscillations appear and disappear before chaos ensues through cyclic fold bifurcation of a phase-locked solution [2]. In another route, they showed alternately that quasi-periodic and phase-locked oscillations appear and disappear as the control parameter changes before chaos arise from a phase-locked oscillation via a period-doubling sequence [2]. We first investigate the chaotic regions for bifurcation analysis. In these regions, we study stability analysis and use Lyapunov exponents to show the chaotic regimes. We also investigate the Hopf bifurcation conditions and limit cycles. We will show the circuit simulation showing the results of these analysis in chaotic electrical circuits.

Keywords: Chaotic Circuit, Stability Analysis, Computer Algebra

- [1] Chua, L.O. (1985). The Double Scroll. IEEE Transactions on Circuits and Systems. IEEE. CAS-32 (8): 798–818.
- [2] Nayfeh, A. H. & B. Balachadran. (2004). Applied Nonlinear Dynamics: Analytical, Computational, and Experimental Methods. Wiley.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>oaybar@pirireis.edu.tr</u>

Solutions of Modified Schrödinger Equation by Using Analytical and Numerical Methods

Asıf Yokuş^{1 ⋈}, Mehmet Yavuz²

¹ Department of Actuary, Faculty of Science, Firat University, Elazig, 23100, Turkey ² Department of Mathematics and Computer Sciences, Necmettin Erbakan University, Konya, 42090, Turkey

Abstract

Partial differential equations are mathematical models of physical events. The physical interpretation of the solution functions to these equations improves the perspective of many events that occur in nature. Many scientists who accepted the accuracy of this have directed their studies to this field. The solutions of these mathematical models become more valuable as they shed light on many events if they are physically meaningful. Many scientists develop solutions, methods and techniques of differential equations with their illustrative works. In this study, we discuss the modified Schrödinger equation (MNLS) which has a physically important place in mathematics and science, by using the (G'/G, 1/G)-expansion method. With this method, trigonometric, hyperbolic and rational solutions have been obtained. These solutions have an important place for scientists working with asymptotic behavior and shock wave structure. Many complex and long processes have been encountered while obtaining mentioned solutions. These difficulties are easily overcome with the help of computer technology, which is the technology of today. Moreover, we have used the Laplace decomposition method to obtain the numerical solution to the mentioned equation. By giving special values to the constants in the obtained solutions, the state of the wave at any moment t is presented with 3D, 2D and contour graphics. These methods used in the paper are useful and reliable methods for obtaining the solutions to nonlinear partial differential equations. In this context, these suggested methods can be recommended to obtain the solutions of nonlinear partial differential equations.

Keywords: (G'/G, 1/G)-expansion method, Laplace decomposition method, modified Schrödinger equation, exact solution, approximate solution, error analysis.

- [1] Sulaiman, T. A., Bulut, H., Yokus, A., & Baskonus, H. M. (2019). On the exact and numerical solutions to the coupled Boussinesq equation arising in ocean engineering. Indian Journal of Physics, 93(5), 647-656.
- [2] Aziz, I., & Šarler, B. (2010). The numerical solution of second-order boundary-value problems by collocation method with the Haar wavelets. Mathematical and Computer Modelling, 52(9-10), 1577-1590.
- [3] Yavuz, M., & Ozdemir, N. (2018). Numerical inverse Laplace homotopy technique for fractional heat equations. Thermal Science, 22(Suppl. 1), 185-194.
- [4] Yokuş, A., & Durur, H. (2019). Complex hyperbolic traveling wave solutions of Kuramoto-Sivashinsky equation using (1/G') expansion method for nonlinear dynamic theory. Balıkesir Üniversitesi Fen Bilimleri Enstitüsü Dergisi, 21(2), 590-599.
- [5] Benia, Y., Ruggieri, M., & Scapellato, A. (2019). Exact solutions for a modified Schrödinger equation. Mathematics, 7(10), 908.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: asfyokus@yahoo.com

A Computational Approach to Shallow Water Forced Korteweg–De Vries Equation on Critical Flow Over a Hole with Three Fractional Operators

Pundikala Veeresha^{1 ⋈}, Mehmet Yavuz²

Abstract

The Korteweg–De Vries (KdV) equation is always provided a venue to study and generalize diverse physical phenomena. The pivotal aim of the study is to analyze the behaviors of forced KdV equation describing the free surface critical flow over a hole by finding the solution with the help of q-homotopy analysis transform technique (q-HATT). The projected method is elegant amalgamations of q-homotopy analysis scheme and Laplace transform. Three fractional operators are hired in the present study to show their essence in generalizing the models associated with power-law distribution, kernel singular, non-local and non-singular. The fixed-point theorem employed to present the existence and uniqueness for the hired arbitrary-order model and converges for the solution is derived with Banach space. The projected scheme springs the series solution rapidly convergent, and it can guarantee the convergence associated with the homotopy parameter. Moreover, for diverse fractional order the physical nature have been captured in plots. The achieved consequences illuminates, the hired solution procedure is reliable and highly methodical investigate the behaviors of the nonlinear models of both integer and fractional order.

Keywords: Force KdV equation, fractional derivatives, q-homotopy analysis transform technique, fixed point theorem.

- [1] Shen, S. S. P. (1995). On the accuracy of the stationary forced Korteweg-de Vries equation as a model equation for flows over a bump. Quarterly of applied mathematics, 53(4), 701-719.
- [2] Yavuz, M., Sulaiman, T. A., Yusuf, A., & Abdeljawad, T. (2021). The Schrödinger-KdV equation of fractional order with Mittag-Leffler nonsingular kernel. Alexandria Engineering Journal, 60(2), 2715-2724.
- [3] Veeresha, P., Prakasha, D. G., & Baskonus, H. M. (2019). Solving smoking epidemic model of fractional order using a modified homotopy analysis transform method. Mathematical Sciences, 13(2), 115-128.
- [4] Keten, A., Yavuz, M., & Baleanu, D. (2019). Nonlocal Cauchy problem via a fractional operator involving power kernel in Banach spaces. Fractal and Fractional, 3(2), 27.
- [5] Veeresha, P., Prakasha, D. G., & Singh, J. (2020). Solution for fractional forced KdV equation using fractional natural decomposition method. AIMS Mathematics, 5(2), 798-810.

¹ Center for Mathematical Needs, Department of Mathematics, CHRIST (Deemed to be University), Bengaluru-560029, India

² Department of Mathematics and Computer Sciences, Necmettin Erbakan University, Konya, 42090, Turkey

[☐] Corresponding Author Email: <u>pundikala.veeresha@christuniversity.in</u>

A Risk-Averse Two-Stage Stochastic Programming Model for a Joint Multi-Item Capacitated Line Balancing and Lot-Sizing Problem

Yuchen Li^{1⊠}, Francisco Saldanha-da-Gama²

 ¹ Beijing University of Technology, School of Economics and Management, Beijing, China
 ² Departamento de Estatística e Investigação Operacional, Faculdade de Ciências da Universidade de Lisboa, Lisboa, Portugal

Abstract

In late December 2019, the Chinese Health Commission reported the outbreak of an uncommon type of pneumonia (that would later be called ``severe acute respiratory syndrome coronavirus 2 (SARS-CoV-2)"---COVID-19) of unknown origin in Wuhan, Hubei Province. The spread of the virus has severely impacted the global economy and health systems. In the manufacturing sector, the pandemic has caused serious disruptions in many supply chains. In this paper, a comprehensive production planning problem under uncertain demand is investigated. The problem intertwines two NP-hard optimization problems: an assembly line balancing problem and a capacitated lot-sizing problem. The problem is modelled as a two-stage stochastic program assuming a risk-averse decision maker. Efficient solution procedures are proposed for tackling the problem. A case study related to mask production is presented. Several insights are provided stemming from the COVID-19 pandemic. Finally, the results of a series of computational tests are reported.

Keywords: Assembly line balancing, Lot-sizing, Uncertain demand

Acknowledgements

This work was partially supported by the National Natural Science Foundation of China (71901006, 71704007), the Beijing Social Science Fund (19GLC053), and the National Funding from FCT-Fundação para a Ciência e a Tecnologia, Portugal, under the project: UID/MAT/04561/2019.

- [1] Alimian, M., Saidi-Mehrabad, M., and Jabbarzadeh, A. (2019). A robust integrated production and preventive maintenance planning model for multi-state systems with uncertain demand and common cause failures. *Journal of Manufacturing Systems*, 50:263–277.
- [2] Barany, I., Van Roy, T. J., and Wolsey, L. A. (1984). Strong dormulations for multi-item capacitated lot sizing. *Management Science*, 30:1255–1261.
- [3] Markowitz, H. M. and Todd, G. P. (2000). *Mean-Variance Analysis in Portfolio Choice and Capital Markets*. Wiley
- [4] Noyan, N. (2012). Risk-averse two-stage stochastic programming with an application to disaster management. *Computers & Operations Research*, 39:541–559
- [5] Tiacci, L. and Mimmi, M. (2018). Integrating ergonomic risks evaluation through OCRA index and balancing/sequencing decisions for mixed model stochastic asynchronous assembly lines. *Omega*, 78:112–138.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>liyuchen@bjut.edu.cn</u>

Effects of Scanning Strategies on Thermal Behavior and Stress Fields During Selective Laser Melting Of 316L Stainless Steel

Zezhou Kuai¹, Zhonghua Li²⊠, Bin Liu¹⊠, Yang Shuai¹

North University of China, School of Materials Science and Engineering, Taiyuan, China
 North University of China, School of Mechanical Engineering, Taiyuan, China

Abstract

Simulation of temperature fields and stress fields during selective laser melting (SLM) of 316L stainless steel powder were performed using the finite element method. The effects of scanning strategies on the SLM thermal behavior, stress evolution and residual stress were investigated. The commercial finite element analysis software ANSYS (APDL) was used to establish a single-layer multi-track threedimensional transient numerical model of SLMed 316L stainless steel. The model considers the temperature-dependent material properties which consist of thermal conductivity, density, enthalpy, yield stress, thermal expansion coefficient and Young's modulus. Three partition scanning strategies were designed. In addition to the different sizes of the divided areas, the three scanning strategies have the same total scanning area and other settings. The results show that for partition scanning, the partition size largely determines the heat accumulation during SLM processing, which in turn affects the cooling rate and temperature gradient. Partition scanning reduces the residual stress of the part to a certain extent, and as the partition increases, the scanning length decreases and the residual stress decreases more significantly. The effect of heat accumulation under different scanning strategies is obviously different. As more regions are divided, the length of the scan track in each region becomes shorter, which will result in more significant heat accumulation effects in each region. The reduction of the scan length can effectively reduce the cooling rate and temperature gradient of the node. Strategy 2 reduces the maximum residual stress of Strategy 1 by 2%, and Strategy 3 reduces the maximum residual stress of Strategy 1 by 6%.

Keywords: Selective laser melting, Numerical simulation, Thermal behavior, 316L stainless steel

Acknowledgements

This research was funded by the National Natural Science Foundation of China (grant no. 51905497), the Major Science and Technology Projects of Shanxi Province, China (no. 20181102012), the Scientific and Technological Innovation Programs of Higher Education Institutions in Shanxi (no. 2019L0559), the Opening Foundation of Shanxi Key Laboratory of Advanced Manufacturing Technology (no XJZZ201805), and the Support Program for Young Academic Leaders of North University of China (no. QX201902).

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>lizhonghua6868@163.com</u>; <u>liubin3y@nuc.edu.cn</u>

Author Index

Abdelhakim Hammoudi, 99 Abdelouahed Alla hamou, 117 Abdul Wakil Baidar, 128 Abdullah Nuri Somuncuoğlu, 43

Adrián Toncovich, 78 Ahmed Kh. Abbas, 41 Ahmet Şahiner, 69, 92 Albert C. J. Luo, 5 Ali Konuralp, 146 Ali Rıza Alan, 26, 37 Ali Ugur Sazaklioglu, 76

Alperen Ekrem Çelikdin, 115, 126

Amin Jajarmi, 9 Anıl Akpunar, 129 Arran Fernandez, 50

Alper Döyen, 125, 131

Arshed A. Ahmad, 39, 40, 41 Ashwin Chand, 80, 104

Asıf Yokuş, 151

Aslan Deniz Karaoglan, 21, 23

Asuman Zeytinoglu, 32 Augusto Ferraro, 78 Ayşegül Kayacan, 67 Aytül Gökçe, 53, 54, 133

Barış Namlı, 106 Bedri Yuksel, 23 Benbakreti Samir, 112 Benbakreti Soumia, 112 Benouis Mohamed, 112

Beyza Billur İskender Eroğlu, 140, 142

Bin Liu, 154 Brigita Fercec, 149 Burak Urazel, 87

Burcu Gürbüz, 132, 133 Burcu Şen Bağcı, 137 Calin-Adrian Comes, 116

Can Gonenli, 48

Canan Bozkaya, 35, 65, 71

Canan Çelik, 81 Carla Pinto, 9 Cemaliye Kürt, 50

Cihan Bayındır, 24, 25, 26, 37, 38, 44, 46, 106

Damla Kizilay, 113

Daniel Alejandro Rossit, 78

Derya Altıntan, 45, 47 Derya Avci, 140, 141 Derya Sucu, 36 Dilara Yapışkan, 142 Dumitru Baleanu, 7 Elgiz Bairamov, 58 Elif Ebren Kaya, 34

Elimhan N. Mahmudov, 85 Emre Cevikcan, 60

Engin Demir, 138 Enis Günay, 107 Erdem Ilten, 119, 120

Eren Altun, 93

Erhan Pişkin, 102, 109, 110

Ertan Yakıcı, 79 Ertuğrul Ayyıldız, 111

Esma Canhasi Kasemi, 135, 136

Esmehan Uçar, 93

Esra Duygu Durmaz, 127, 134

Esra Yaganoglu, 100 Eylem Bahadır, 82 F. Sidre Oglakkaya, 71 Faruk Develi, 81 Fatma G. Eroglu, 72 Fatma Özköse, 137 Fatma Soytürk, 141 Figen Özpınar, 51

Francisco Saldanha-da-Gama, 153

Fulya Yoruk Deren, 86 Gerhard-Wilhelm Weber, 7 Gökçe Özaltun, 146 Gökhan Gülmez, 64 Gulcin Bektur, 122 Gulistan Bicen, 21

Güher Gülçehre Özbey, 57 Gülden Kapusuz, 69 Güler Başak Öznur, 57, 58 Gülesen Üstündağ Şiray, 56

Gülnur Yılmaz, 107 Gülşen Yaman, 139 Hande Fendoğlu, 35 Hande Öztop, 113

Hande Uslu, 39, 40, 41, 77, 100

Haris Calgan, 119, 120

International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering (ICAME) September 1-3, 2021 - Balikesir, Turkey

Haruka Tomobe, 52 Murat Sari, 22, 39, 40, 41, 49, 77, 90, 94, 95, Harun Selvitopi, 145 100 Hazal Yurtbak, 38 Mustafa Saltan, 89, 91 Hazal Yüksekkaya, 109, 110 Müfit Şan, 61 Heinz Koeppl, 47 Mümtaz Karataş, 74, 75 Hidekazu Yoshioka, 52, 130 Münevver Tezer-Sezgin, 31, 34, 35 Hilal Demirel, 114 Necati Özdemir, 93, 118, 136 Huseyin Merdan, 9 Nihal İnce, 84 Hüseyin Tunc, 90 Nimet Aksoy, 148 Ibrahim Kucukkoc, 101 Nimet Coskun, 63 Ihsan Salman, 39 Nisa Aslan, 83, 89, 91 Ilknur Kusbeyzi Aybar, 149 Nurullah Yılmaz, 66, 67, 92 Ismail Aounil, 103 Oguzhan Das, 59 İlhan Öztürk, 137 Okan Kon, 23 İlker Gölcük, 127 Oluwaseun Olumide Okundalaye, 118 İpek Sırma, 108 Omar Khadir, 103 İsmail Aslan, 83 Orhan Ozgur Aybar, 149, 150 İzzettin Demir, 105 Ovgu Cidar Iyikal, 123 J. A. Tenreiro Machado, 5 Ö. Tolga Altınöz, 64, 88 Jordan Hristov, 8, 140 Önder Türk, 82 Kajal Kothari, 68 Özgül İlhan, 55 Khalid M. Saffer, 40 Özlem Aydın, 148 Kubilay Ates, 44 Özlem Orhan, 144 Kunihiko Hamagami, 52 Özlem Tülek, 148 Levent Erişkin, 74, 75 Öznur Öztunç Kaymak, 147, 148 Luan Vardari, 135 Pelin Celenk, 94 Pelin Senel, 73 Mahir Ceylan Erdoğan, 30 Mahmut Gökhan Turgut, 88 Praveen Agarwal, 8 Mahmut Modanlı, 133 Pundikala Veeresha, 152 Masa Dukaric, 149 Rabia Durak, 21 Medine Doğan, 137 Ramazan Şahin, 127, 134 Mehmet Acıkgöz, 96, 97 Ramazan Yaman, 143 Mehmet Ali Kaygusuz, 42, 43 Ramin Nashebi. 95 Mehmet Ali Özarslan, 50 Rando R.Q. Rasul, 117 Mehmet Kunt, 128 Razika Sait, 99 Mehmet Yavuz, 137, 151, 152 Roumane Ahmed, 112 Melike Erdoğan, 111 Saliha Şeker, 91 Samire Yazar, 54, 98 Melike Karta, 124 Melike Sultan Karasu Asnaz, 28 Seçil Yılmaz, 137

Merve Gürbüz, 33

Metin Demirtas, 119, 120

Merve Okurer, 105

Mohammed, 39, 41 Mohammed Said Radjef, 99

Muhammet Yazıcı, 145

Murat Saldamlı, 105

Seda Gülen, 94

Selçuk Han Aydın, 29, 30, 31

Sena Aydoğan, 134 Sevgi Şengül Ayan, 108 Sevilay Demir Sağlam, 85 Sevin Gümgüm, 146

Seydi Battal Gazi Karakoç, 36 Seyfullah Enes Kotil, 95

International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering (ICAME) September 1-3, 2021 - Balikesir, Turkey

Shko Ali Tahir, 49 Sıla Övgü Korkut, 62 Sofi Farazande, 46

Sohaib Moussaid El Idrissi, 103

Steven Weago, 68

Sunil Narayan, 68, 70, 80, 104

Sverre Holm, 6 Şener Akpınar, 129 Şeyma Ramazan, 61 Tahir Cosgun, 22 Tamer Şenel, 137 Tlemsani Redouane, 112

Tolga Önel, 79

Tugba Senlik Cerdik, 86 Tuğrul Cömert, 102 Uğur Duran, 96, 97 Ulaş Yamancı, 27

Utkal Mehta, 68, 70, 80, 104

Varian Akwai, 68

Vilda Purutçuoğlu, 42, 43 Wan Ainun Mior Othman, 118

Yadigar Sekerci, 54

Yakup Atasagun, 125, 131

Yang Shuai, 154 Yelda Aygar, 57, 58 Yeliz Buruk Sahin, 87, 114

Yılmaz Koçak, 56 Yildiz Kose, 60 Yuchen Li, 153

Zakia Hammouch, 117 Zehra Pınar, 144

Zehra Pinar, 121

Zeynel Abidin Çil, 113 Zezhou Kuai, 154 Zhonghua Li, 154 Zixiang Li, 101